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2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Good
3 morning, everyone. We"re going to start.
4 This 1s the public hearing of the

5 Committee of the Whole regarding Bills

6 No. 150162, 150163, 150164, and

7 Resolution No. 150179.

8 Ms. Lewis, please read the

9 titles of the bills and resolution.

10 MS. LEWIS: Bill No. 150162, an
11 ordinance to adopt a Capital Program for
12 the six Fiscal Years 2016 through 2021
13 inclusive.

14 Bill No. 150163, an ordinance
15 to adopt a Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget.

16 Bill No. 150164, an ordinance
17 adopting the Operating Budget for Fiscal
18 Year 2016.

19 And Resolution No. 150179,
20 providing for the approval by the Council
21 of the City of Philadelphia of a Revised
22 Five Year Financial Plan for the City of
23 Philadelphia covering Fiscal Years 2016
24 through 2020, and incorporating proposed
25 changes with respect to Fiscal Year 2015,
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2 which 1s to be submitted by the Mayor to
3 the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental
4 Cooperation Authority (the "Authority')
5 pursuant to the Intergovernmental
6 Cooperation Agreement, authorized by an
7 ordinance of this Council approved by the
8 Mayor on January 3rd, 1992 (Bill No.
9 1563-A), by and between the City and the
10 Authority.
11 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
12 Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Lewis.
13 Today we continue the public
14 hearing of the Committee of the Whole to
15 consider various bills read by the Clerk
16 that constitute proposed operating and
17 capital spending measures in Fiscal 2016,
18 a Capital Program and a forward-looking
19 Capital Plan for Fiscal 2016 through
20 Fiscal 2021.
21 Today we will hear testimony
22 from the following departments:
23 Aviation, Water Department, Public
24 Property, City Commissioner, Sheriff.
25 We would like to call up the
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2 Department of Aviation.

3 (Witnesses approached witness
4 table.)

) COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Good
6 morning.

7 MR. GALE: Good morning,

8 Council President.

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

10 Proceed.

11 MR. GALE: If it pleases you, I
12 can summarize my testimony, hit the

13 highlights.

14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: That
15 works for us.

16 MR. GALE: First off, again,

17 good morning. My name is Mark Gale,

18 Chief Executive Officer for Philadelphia
19 International Airport. Seated with me
20 today 1s Chellie Cameron, our Chief
21 Operating Officer, and Tracy Borda, our
22 Acting Deputy Director of Aviation for
23 Finance and Administration.
24 Before 1 start with the
25 testimony, Council President, 1 just
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2 would like to thank the members of City

3 Council who spent a few minutes this

4 morning talking to our support staff that
5 are here, part of our Airport team that

6 really help us get so many things done on
7 a day-in-and-day-out basis that don"t get
8 the recognition that they deserve, and I
9 think that this was a great opportunity.
10 We bring them here each year just so they
11 can see the wheels of government in

12 progress. So thank you again,

13 Councilman. 1 appreciate your time this
14 morning.

15 Just to summarize, again,

16 regarding Philadelphia International

17 Arrport is the only major ailrport serving
18 the City of Philadelphia and the

19 surrounding counties located iIn
20 Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, and
21 Maryland. It"s one of the largest
22 economic engines, generating more than
23 $14.4 billion annually in spending to the
24 regional economy and accounting for more
25 than 140,000 jobs within the region. The
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2 Alrport operates without local tax

3 dollars. It generates significant tax
4 revenues for the Greater Philadelphia

5 region, but we are totally

6 self-sustaining, operating on the

7 revenues that are generated at the

8 Alrport.

9 In Calendar Year 2014, PHL

10 accommodated 30.7 million passengers,

11 including more than 4.5 million

12 international passengers on nearly

13 419,000 aircraft takeoff and landings.
14 Currently we sit as the tenth busiest

15 airport in the United States in terms of
16 aircraft takeoff and landings, hosting
17 some 29 tenant airlines that operate over
18 550 daily flights over 130 cities,

19 including 40 international destinations.
20 PHL endeavors to be the
21 region®s ailrport of choice by attracting
22 new airlines to serve our region,
23 offering ailr service to new destinations
24 In the United States and around the
25 globe. In 2014, one new carrier began

Page 6

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 service at PHL, one new iInternational

3 carrier, named Qatar Airways, with

4 offering service to Doha, the capital

5 city of Qatar. Also, several other

6 airlines, including American, US Ailrways,
7 Delta, Spirit, Frontier, and Southwest,
8 also recently launched new service to

9 cities that we currently had not served
10 before.

11 The Ailrport continues to focus
12 on new International service, with

13 special attention being given to the

14 development of service to Far East Asia,
15 Latin America, India, and other emerging
16 markets. To assist with accomplishing
17 this goal, PHL has developed synergies
18 with regional tourism and business

19 partners such as the Philadelphia
20 Convention and Visitors Bureau and Select
21 Greater Philadelphia as part of the
22 Chamber of Commerce and many, many other
23 partners. The Airport will continue to
24 pursue meetings with international
25 airline officials i1In the coming year to
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2 discuss i1nitiating service from

3 Philadelphia direct to those

4 destinations.

5 In addition to attracting new
6 alr service for Fiscal Year 2016 and

7 beyond, we will focus on some of the

8 following: 1mproving and expanding the
9 Alrport™s infrastructure, including

10 advancing the Airport"s Capacity

11 Enhancement Program and continuing to
12 repair and rehabilitate our aging

13 infrastructure to improve efficiency and
14 modernize the facility in order to

15 maintain PHL"s competitive position iIn
16 the region;

17 Enhancing the customers*

18 experience through our exhibition,

19 hospitality services, entertainment
20 programs, free WiFi, new seating,
21 carpeting, lighting, signage, and much,
22 much more to make our airport that much
23 more attractive for our patrons as they
24 come through;
25 Continuing our philosophy of
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2 diversity and inclusion by focusing on

3 contract awards and outreach events. In
4 2014, October 2014, PHL held our annual

5 Business Opportunity Forum. Last year

6 this was attended by nearly 500 business
7 people representing more than 450

8 organizations. Over 200 of those firms

9 were registered with OEO and almost 150
10 were fTederally certified DBEs. Attendees
11 learned about the opportunities at the

12 Alrport, received instructions on how to
13 respond to request for proposals and

14 invitation for bids, and gained an

15 understanding of diversity, certification
16 requirements, and responsibilities.

17 In addition, the attendees had
18 the opportunity to become familiar with
19 the Airrport®s recently launched job
20 portal website, www.phljobportal.org.
21 This site 1s a resource for both
22 employers needing to fill positions and
23 individuals seeking employment at PHL and
24 other related Airport entities such as
25 concessions, ailrlines, car rental
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2 companies, as well as federal agencies
3 such as the TSA, or Transportation
4 Security Administration.
5 As one of the largest economic
6 drivers in the region, PHL i1s committed
7 to diversity and inclusion within i1ts
8 ranks. Of the 776 employees currently
9 employed with the Division of Aviation,
10 71 percent are minorities and 30 percent
11 are females. During Calendar Year 2014,
12 the Airport hired 76 new full-time
13 employees, of which 62 percent were
14 African American, 8 percent were white
15 females, 5 percent were Hispanic, 5
16 percent Asian, 3 that were listed In
17 other race category, and the remainder of
18 17 percent were white males.
19 The Airport is committed to
20 involving disadvantaged businesses that
21 possess the necessary qualifications in
22 Its contracting business opportunities.
23 The Airport plays an active role 1In
24 setting and monitoring participation
25 goals for the City"s program, minority,

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 11
1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.
2 women, disabled-owned/disadvantaged
3 business enterprises, collectively
4 M/W/DSBE. They"re also responsible for
5 administering two federal DBE programs.
6 In regard to financial
7 resources necessary to fulfill i1ts
8 mission, the Airport Operating Budget
9 request for Fiscal Year 2016 totals 183.4
10 million, an increase of 15.1 million from
11 the FY 2015 estimated obligations of
12 168.3 million. The requested Fiscal 2016
13 appropriations will provide sufficient
14 resources to operate and maintain both
15 PHL and Northeast Philadelphia Airport.
16 Overall, the total FY 2016 Aviation Fund
17 request is $440.3 million and includes
18 appropriations in the Police, Fire, Fleet
19 Management, Technology, Public Property,
20 Sustainability, Law, and Finance
21 Departments, as well as the Sinking Fund
22 Commission. Revenue sources that fund
23 Airport operations include space rentals,
24 landing fees, net parking revenue, and
25 concession fees.
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2 In closing, the Airport will

3 continue I1ts mission to better position

4 Philadelphia on the global economic stage
5 by providing a premier transportation

6 facility that i1s safe and secure, with

7 unparalleled customer service,

8 exceptional amenities, and superior air

9 service.

10 I want to thank you, Council

11 President, members of Council, for the

12 opportunity to testify here this morning
13 on the 2016 Operating Budget. 1 and the
14 managers along with me are here to answer
15 any questions you may have.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

17 Thank you very much for your testimony.
18 I just have a couple of

19 questions, and 1 think you will have more
20 than enough from other members today, so
21 I will be very brief.
22 Talk about the decrease i1n your
23 debt service payments. That"s on Page 2
24 of your testimony. Can you give me a
25 sense of why that"s happening. Is that a
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2 good thing? If 1t"s a good thing, can

3 you give us some insight as to how we may
4 be able to reduce our debt service

) payments?

6 MS. CAMERON: Chellie Cameron,
7 Chief Operating Officer.

8 Council President, it"s really
9 simply a matter of a number of our bonds
10 have retired. So the debt service has

11 gone down just because bonds that were

12 issued 30 years ago for projects are

13 fully paid off.

14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: No
15 magic?

16 MS. CAMERON: 1t"s really no

17 magic. |1 wish I had that magic wand.

18 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 1

19 was hoping you can give us some, and 1
20 was going to pass it on to the School
21 District.
22 I just want to talk about --
23 and 1t"s good to hear your minority
24 numbers as i1t relates to new hires at the
25 Arrport, but on your contract
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2 participation, i1t appears that you®ve had
3 a reduction, the lowest number since
4 2010. Can you give me a sense of what"s
5 going on with that.
6 MS. CAMERON: 1 can.
7 Especially as i1t pertains to us meeting
8 our 30 percent City goal, 1t really
9 depends on what contracts come up that
10 year and are awarded. And every contract
11 i1s individually evaluated by the Office
12 of Economic Opportunity based on the
13 capacity iIn the region for those kinds of
14 firms available to do that specific kind
15 of work.
16 We did a deeper dive iInto the
17 contracts that were actually offered for
18 bid in Fiscal Year "14, and a number of
19 them were public works contracts. None
20 of them carried a goal at or above the 30
21 percent goal that we have overall for the
22 department. So i1t°"s very difficult
23 sometimes for us to meet the goal when
24 the contracts that are actually coming up
25 just don*"t have the capacity iIn the
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2 region with those sorts of firms.

3 That said, we are doing a lot
4 of work to really try and develop that

5 capacity on an ongoing basis. In

6 partnership with our Program Management
7 Office, we are hosting a series of

8 educational programs this year, as well

9 as we have for the last two years, where
10 we"re educating firms on how to do

11 business with us. We did a bond

12 development program to teach them how to
13 get bonding for construction contracts,
14 those sorts of things. So we"re really
15 focused on increasing the capacity, but
16 with the contracts that were actually

17 awarded last year, there just really

18 wasn"t a lot of capacity iIn the region.
19 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Can
20 you give me an example of those contracts
21 that you find most challenging.
22 MS. CAMERON: It goes across
23 the board when it comes to construction
24 contracts. 1 think we awarded an HVAC
25 contract and didn"t have that, and then I
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2 think there was some taxiway work that

3 was also awarded that didn"t have the

4 capacity. Those contracts fall under our
5 federal goal program, but, again, 1t"s an
6 iIssue of capacity.

7 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

8 Okay .

9 The Chair recognizes Councilman
10 Goode.

11 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Thank you,
12 Mr. President.

13 Good morning.

14 (Good morning.)

15 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Staying on
16 the theme of contracts, on Page 10 of

17 your written testimony, you referred to
18 large contracts and DBE participation,

19 but you also talk about whether they are
20 compliant with the living wage law. And
21 so | see your contracts with Elliot-Lewis
22 and First Transit and Parkway Garage are
23 all compliant with the living wage and
24 benefits law because they are new Fiscal
25 Year "15 contracts.
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2 I guess my question is -- and

3 you may not have an immediate answer --

4 IS, what percentage of Airport workers

5 are currently compensated at the level of
6 the City"s living wage and benefits law?
7 MR. GALE: Councilman, just to
8 clarify, when you say "City workers,'" are
9 you referring to the construction

10 contracts themselves or contracted agents
11 that work for us?

12 COUNCILMAN GOODE: 1"m talking
13 about the total universe of workers at

14 the Airport. What percentage of Airport
15 workers are currently compensated at the
16 level of the City"s living wage and

17 benefits standard?

18 MR. GALE: I don"t have that

19 number for you, Councilman. There are
20 some 20,000 badged employees that work at
21 the Airport. Eight hundred of those
22 employees are City employees, and then
23 there are a number of employees that are
24 contracted to us like Elliot-Lewis. We
25 can dig for some of that information, but
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2 as we"ve iIndicated, they“"re living wage
3 compliant.

4 COUNCILMAN GOODE: 1°d like to
5 know that number to date, what i1s that

6 number currently.

7 MR. GALE: Okay.

8 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Second

9 question is, how will that change July 1?
10 MR. GALE: Okay. In terms

11 of -- we"ll have to, again, look at that
12 data. As of July 1 last year?

13 COUNCILMAN GOODE: July 1 of
14 this coming year.

15 MR. GALE: July 1 coming up

16 this year?

17 COUNCILMAN GOODE: How will

18 that number change?

19 MR. GALE: According to the
20 21st Century Living Wage Law, anybody
21 that we are contracted with, first tier,
22 second tier, third tier, that we have a
23 direct contractual relationship will be
24 required to pay that living wage amount
25 of $12 with the CPEIl increase.
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2 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Are there

3 contracting leases as of July 1 that

4 won"t include the living wage and

5 benefits standard?

6 MR. GALE: There were leases

7 with particularly our concessions program
8 that were done years ago that have end

9 dates that go out for several years.

10 That law, I do not believe, would apply
11 to them until those leases expire, and we
12 have a list of all those as well.

13 COUNCILMAN GOODE: So the

14 second number I need is, as of July 1,

15 the new fiscal year, what percentage of
16 Arrport workers will be at the level of
17 the City"s living wage and benefits

18 standard.

19 And the last question | guess
20 iIs a legal question with regard to the
21 same issue. Will any lease extension or
22 new lease automatically trigger the wage
23 and benefits standard?
24 MR. GALE: 1 believe that any
25 new agreement and 1 also believe an
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2 extension of the agreement, although 1°d
3 ask Law for clarification of that, would
4 trigger the application of the living

5 wage, yes.

6 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Is there

7 anyone here that can answer the question
8 of whether any lease extension would

9 trigger 1t?

10 MR. GALE: Law.

11 (Witness approached witness

12 table.)

13 MR. MESSINA: Councilman, Joe
14 Messina for the City Law Department.

15 Every extension, amendment or
16 new contract with the City has 21st

17 Century Wage Law i1n i1t.

18 COUNCILMAN GOODE: Thank you.
19 I just wanted to put that on the record.
20 Thank you, Mr. President.
21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
22 Thank you, Councilman.
23 The Chair recognizes Councilman
24 Greenlee.
25 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
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2 you, Mr. President.

3 Good morning. A question on a
4 different theme here. Unfortunately,

5 Arrport security gets media coverage

6 every now and then. 1 was wondering, has
7 there been any particular efforts to

8 Improve security at the Airrport? Can you
9 go into that a little bit, what you can
10 tell us.

11 MR. GALE: Absolutely. And I
12 think -- 1 appreciate the opportunity to
13 answer the question, Councilman, because
14 I think sometimes that the media reports
15 weren®t fair to how we treat security at
16 the Airport, and 1 think in particular

17 you might be referring to the last

18 article that came out that had to do with
19 breaches at airports and how they ranked
20 across the U.S.
21 Of the 25 breaches, security
22 breaches, that were listed that we were
23 required to report to the authorities
24 over the course of the last ten years, 19
25 of those 25, or nearly or 80 percent of
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2 those, were just vehicle accidents along
3 the perimeter of the Airport where

4 there"s roads that lead to United Parcel
5 Service, fuel farms, and whatnot that are
6 public roadways that a vehicle may have

7 deviated off the road and broke the fence
8 fabric, and as such, 1t"s considered a

9 breach of security.

10 To help combat those types of
11 incidents and from vehicles actually

12 being able to get onto the airfield, the
13 Airport has invested over $1.3 million in
14 recent years, largely in response to the
15 incident that occurred where the

16 gentleman crashed through the gate

17 intentionally and drove up and down the
18 runways. So now if you drive around the
19 perimeter of the Airport, there"s some
20 ten miles of fence line. We sit here iIn
21 City Hall down to the Airport i1s 7.2
22 miles. So we have enough fence line to
23 go down to the Airrport and halfway back
24 here to the City, iIs the amount of fence
25 line that we cover. But all of our fence
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2 line now Is protected either by Jersey
3 barriers, guide rail or we"ve actually
4 installed one-inch steel cable through
5 the fence, two strands of i1t, to prevent
6 vehicles from actually being able to
7 penetrate onto the airrfield. And if
8 there®s a gate where we need access to
9 the airrfield for operational or
10 maintenance reasons, that gate 1is
11 protected by a crash beam, so that a
12 vehicle can™"t crash i1t like it did iIn
13 2012.
14 So I think that the unfortunate
15 part about the numbers took into account
16 very unintentional vehicular mishaps that
17 occurred on the perimeter roadway, but
18 we"ve gone a long way since then to
19 strengthen up the perimeter of the
20 Alrport.
21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Great.
22 All right. Thanks for that information.
23 Thank you, Mr. President.
24 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
25 Thank you, Councilman.
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2 The Chair recognizes Councilman
3 Jones.

4 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,

5 Mr. President.

6 And thank you for an

7 opportunity to talk to your rank and file
8 staff that make i1t happen at the Airport
9 every day. It was a pleasure to meet

10 them, particularly the one from the 4th
11 Councilmanic District. She"s a voter,

12 and I went over i1t and talked to them.

13 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Point of
14 information, Mr. Chairman. They"re all
15 from my councilmanic district.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

17 You"re absolutely right, sir.

18 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: 1 just

19 want to let you know, at-large they“re
20 all from Bill Greenlee"s and Wilson
21 Goode®"s and myself. They"re all our
22 councilmanic district.
23 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
24 COUNCILMAN JONES: And 1"m just
25 thankful for the one 1 got.
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2 We also want to thank you for

3 being, as | said to your workforce, one

4 of the crown jewels of any city iIs its

5 airport, and the perception of visitors

6 that come to a city i1s fFirst shaped by

7 the airport and i1ts efficiency and

8 ability to deliver people in a clean,

9 safe, on-time method. So we thank you

10 for that.

11 MR. GALE: Thank you,

12 Councilman.

13 COUNCILMAN JONES: We

14 understand also that you deal with a lot
15 of subcontractors, and one of the issues
16 that was brought to our attention i1s that
17 need for labor peace there, and as

18 Councilman Goode talked about 1t, we want
19 to, from the executive to the baggage
20 handlers, have a consistency that people
21 are able to have a living wage, be
22 respected by their employers. And so we
23 are going to pay keen attention to, as
24 those leases expire, that people comply
25 with it.
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2 Have there been any requests

3 for waivers to the living wage ordinance?
4 MR. GALE: Not that I"m aware

5 of, no, Councilman.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: And 1T there
7 are, we would like you to provide that to
8 the Chair just so that we know as a

9 matter of record.

10 According to your testimony,

11 there are some things that you"re

12 concerned about. Because of the aging

13 and growing infrastructure issues of

14 maintenance, you"re having a problem with
15 your carriers. Could you describe that a
16 little bit for us for the record.

17 MR. GALE: I think -- let me

18 first start off with a positive note, 1is
19 that this year Philadelphia International
20 Airport i1s celebrating i1ts 75th
21 Anniversary of commercial airline
22 service, and when you take a look back at
23 much of the iInfrastructure that has been
24 serving the public over the course of
25 that time, there are pieces of the
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2 facility that have been in place for 50,
3 60 years, and while 1t"s been maintained,
4 even well-maintained facilities after, of
5 course, 50, 60 years need either major
6 overhaul or some significant replacement
7 going forward.
8 In working with our carriers at
9 the airlines, we"ve i1dentified a
10 significant number of what we will refer
11 to as repailr and rehabilitation projects,
12 everything from roof replacements to
13 HVAC, air conditioning, doors, going
14 through the facility on restrooms,
15 carpeting, signage, taking a look at all
16 of that, and have done a terrific amount
17 to date, but there®"s a terrific amount
18 more to do. And even as we are
19 negotiating with the airlines today on
20 what should be iIncluded i1In the next
21 agreement, there is probably between $170
22 and $200 million worth of additional
23 infrastructure projects that we"ve
24 identified that are of a high priority
25 that we need to be working on.
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2 COUNCILMAN JONES: Unlike other
3 departments, are you on time with your

4 capital projects, your projections? We

5 often find out that we have backlogs by

6 way of what we want to get done, what

7 we"ve appropriated to get done. How do

8 you measure up with your capital?

9 MR. GALE: 1 think when we were
10 with this body back in 2013 which

11 resulted in a two-year extension to our
12 Use and Lease Agreement with some $734

13 million worth of additional capital

14 projects to be done, we®"ve moved

15 expeditiously on the things that we can
16 move on unilaterally. So, for example,
17 work that we"re doing in the airfield to
18 design and construct a runway extension
19 or airfield taxiway work, all of those
20 things that we can do without additional
21 buy-1n, we®ve moved expeditiously on.
22 Other pieces of that approval
23 package that were to take pieces of the
24 terminal facility, particularly the area
25 where American Airlines resides, part of
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2 their operation, we"ve needed to work

3 with them, and they®re taking another

4 look at some of that development. And

5 that process going back and forth with

6 them has resulted in another look at what
7 Is It that we"re going to spend hundreds
8 of millions of dollars on, iIs It going to
9 be right for our passengers, for their

10 operation as the new American Airlines,
11 the largest airline in the world.

12 So the things that we can move
13 on, Councilman, we"re moving on as fast
14 as we can.

15 COUNCILMAN JONES: One other

16 point. You also say iIn your testimony,
17 you reference the difficulty in filling
18 vacancies in your facilities and

19 maintenance units. 1 want to know, how
20 are you recruiting and how are you
21 addressing that concern?
22 MR. GALE: Because HR falls
23 underneath Chellie®s group, I"m going to
24 have her direct that question.
25 MS. CAMERON: Sure. We"re
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2 working very closely, Councilman, with

3 OHR to try and do some highly targeted

4 recruitment strategies. We"re also

5 analyzing the turnover rate by discipline
6 so that we can try and predict ahead of

7 time as much as possible where we think

8 we might have some vacancies. We work

9 with the DROP list, projected

10 retirements, that sort of thing. And on
11 occasion for those particularly difficult
12 positions to fill, we"ve actually In some
13 cases fTilled the position early, before
14 the person actually leaves, to allow for
15 some overlap time so that we can get the
16 training in place. |It"s a challenge,

17 though.

18 COUNCILMAN JONES: So I know

19 you have an aggressive Maryanne, our
20 former Maryanne, which we lent you, does
21 a mentorship program with young people
22 from high schools. Have we been able to
23 matriculate any of those mentees iInto the
24 workforce?
25 MS. CAMERON: Off the top of my
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2 head, 1 know that there have been four or
3 five that have come back time and time
4 again. 1 see Yvonne shaking her head in
5 the back. It looks like we have had a
6 number come from our Internship program
7 up through and get permanent positions.
8 COUNCILMAN JONES: One of the
9 concerns that the Council President has
10 for all of our departments is to
11 encourage young people from high school
12 to college locally to matriculate iInto
13 these types of opportunities. So i1f you
14 could forward to us how you"re recruiting
15 them.
16 MS. CAMERON: Sure.
17 COUNCILMAN JONES: I1*"ve always
18 offered to be helpful out In the 4th
19 Councilmanic District to recruit some
20 people for you for those vacancies. |IT
21 we can be of help in -- we have an
22 excellent CTE program at Randolph. We
23 have an excellent -- a fledgling CTE
24 program at Overbrook High School. So
25 we*"d love to have you guys come out and
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2 take a look at our developing workforce.
3 MS. CAMERON: And one thing I
4 would like to point out is that we had 32
5 interns last summer. We have over 40
6 projected to come in this year, and they
7 represent all of the councilmanic
8 districts. And Maryanne has been coming
9 to you since the beginning of the year
10 with flyers, encouraging you to recruit
11 folks from your districts. So, please,
12 1T you have any references that you-d
13 like to send to us of folks who are
14 looking for work this summer, we"d be
15 happy to consider them.
16 COUNCILMAN JONES: Councilman,
17 111 yield for the next round.
18 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
19 Thank you, Councilman.
20 The Chair recognizes Councilman
21 Oh.
22 COUNCILMAN OH: Thank you very
23 much, Council President.
24 Good morning.
25 (Good morning.)
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2 COUNCILMAN OH: I was reading

3 that you®ve received the approval of the
4 airlines for the first phase. 1Is 1t the
5 first phase, 1.1 billion, for the

6 Capacity Enhancement Program? Is that

7 correct?

8 MR. GALE: 1In 2011, we received
9 approval from the airlines for 250

10 million; In 2013, for an additional 734
11 million. When you combine those two with
12 some other previous approvals, we

13 currently have project authorization of
14 $1.1 billion, and all of that has been

15 1dentified.

16 COUNCILMAN OH: Okay. So as

17 that begins to take shape, could you tell
18 me initially two things. One i1s, what

19 are you planning in terms of developing
20 the air service at the Arrport and,
21 secondly, what about the customer
22 experience for both visitors and
23 travelers? So if | could start with your
24 plans, future plans, for air service
25 development.

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 MR. GALE: Sure. So just

3 turning back the hands ever so slightly,
4 Councilman, you know that we enjoyed some
5 really great success In attracting a

6 number of new carriers to the Airport,

7 and we hadn"t attracted a new carrier 1in
8 some eight years previous to that. So to
9 get the likes of JetBlue and Alaska and
10 Spirit coming In to provide competition
11 and lower fares 1 think was a great boost
12 for the Airport in terms of how we"re

13 perceived. Choice of product i1s always a
14 great thing for our consumers, everything
15 from the ultra low-cost carrier up to a
16 premium five-star carrier.

17 In 2014, we had Qatar Airways
18 Inaugurate. They just celebrated their
19 one-year anniversary, and they are doing
20 well and we wish them continued success
21 in moving forward. But clearly there is
22 a really strong desire for residents of
23 this region to be able to get to some
24 additional places around the world
25 directly that we currently don"t get to,
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2 and that becomes a matter of discussion
3 both with our hub carrier, who controls
4 about 70 percent of the market share

5 through Philadelphia, and some of their
6 alliance partners. US Airrways-American
7 Airlines now belongs to the Oneworld

8 Alliance. So we"re doing a lot of time
9 talking to international foreign flight
10 carriers that belong to that Oneworld so
11 that we could get some synergy and

12 possibly do some coach share and revenue
13 share opportunities going forth In the
14 future.

15 But at any given time, I™m

16 probably in conversation with no less

17 than 10 to 15 international foreign

18 flight carriers trying to convince them
19 to come to our region and making the
20 sales pitch, and that effort continues.
21 Emerging markets such as direct access,
22 either additional access through the Gulf
23 to India and to West Africa, service to
24 Tokyo in Japan as well as Beijing and
25 Shanghair 1n China are at the very top of
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2 the list and then, 1f we can, service

3 directly into Latin America, either

4 through, let"s say, Panama City or Mexico
5 on down into Sao Paulo, Buenos Aires,

6 Argentina. All of those destinations are
7 ones that we look at when trying to

8 develop new ailr service.

9 COUNCILMAN OH: Okay. Wwell,

10 I"m glad to hear that. 1 have no doubt
11 that you"re continuing that effort. |1

12 think 1t"s so important for our city.

13 In terms of customer service, |
14 mean, 1 think there®s some new concession
15 programs and exhibits. How is that

16 going?

17 MR. GALE: Just i1f we stick on
18 the theme of the international service

19 just for one minute, one of the things
20 that we installed last year that you may
21 have seen going into new airports are
22 what they refer to as Automated Passport
23 Control or kiosk to expedite the passage
24 when you land in the United States at
25 Philadelphia Airport to be able to get
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2 through the passport control, the

3 immigration check process and into

4 customs to get your bag and get out. We
5 installed 24 of those machines last year
6 In partnership with our airlines. It

7 worked extremely well. That was our

8 Tirst year out of the gate. We"ve

9 modified 1t for this coming summer

10 season. 1 think 1t"s going to be even

11 better. And as they expand who can

12 participate in those programs to folks

13 that come from countries with Visa

14 Waivers, for example, 1 think 1t will

15 enhance the customer experience that much
16 better.

17 This body approved the contract
18 for the new concessions agreement back

19 effective January 1. So we"re already
20 working with our concession operator to
21 take a look at pieces of our program that
22 we feel might have been getting a little
23 long 1n the tooth, so to speak, and to
24 revamp that to provide everything from
25 whether you want fast food and just a
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2 quick meal that way or you want a
3 fine-dining experience, 1If you want a
4 news and gift shop or you want to buy at
5 some of the finest stores, such as a
6 Brooks Brothers or a Johnston and Murphy,
7 to give our patrons from A to Z whatever
8 It 1s that they wish when they come
9 through.
10 Add iIn other amenities, whether
11 you want to get a massage, whether you
12 want to actually go into a concession
13 that i1s referred to as Minute Suites,
14 which are little mini suites that you can
15 lease on a half hour, hour basis and do
16 some work in there very quietly, with all
17 the amenities, with computer access and
18 whatnot, all of those things roll into
19 what we"re trying to provide our patrons
20 on a daily basis.
21 COUNCILMAN OH: Okay. Wwell,
22 thank you very much.
23 Thank you, Council President.
24 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
25 Thank you, Councilman.
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2 The Chair recognizes Councilman
3 Neilson.
4 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Thank you,
5 Mr. President.
6 Thank you for coming as usual,
7 because as the newest member of Council
8 here, you and Maryanne have been In my
9 office on many occasions and keeping us
10 up to date. So | don"t have too many
11 questions, but 1 thought 1 should ask,
12 with the budget woes of our Philadelphia
13 School District -- and 1 know you don"t
14 get any money from the General Fund.
15 However, | was wondering i1f you had any
16 1deas on anything down there that we
17 could tap into. Like we have
18 billion-dollar airlines down there doing
19 business. [Is there anywhere we can tap
20 into that for money for our School
21 District? You“"ve heard of PILOTs and
22 stuff like that where we"re trying to do
23 the institutions around here.
24 Is there anything down at the
25 Airport that you can i1dentify
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2 specifically that would be able to
3 benefit our children®s education?
4 MR. GALE: 1 appreciate the
5 question, Councilman. 1 think you®ve
6 already hit the fTirst part, which 1s we
7 don"t take any general tax fund dollars
8 In order to operate the Airport, but
9 under federal law, the same holds true.
10 We"re not allowed to send revenue back to
11 the City other than what would be charged
12 by way of taxes, sales taxes and whatnot.
13 That"s prohibited by federal law.
14 I think that we can certainly
15 put our thinking caps on to see if we can
16 come up with something that could be
17 helpful, but the way that we operate with
18 federal grants and assurances, we would
19 be 1n violation of federal law, and folks
20 have gone to jail, I believe, over
21 diverting some of that revenue at other
22 locations throughout the U.S.
23 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Don"t want
24 to do that, that"s for sure.
25 Your vacancies, you do have a
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2 lot of vacancies, and as you said, you
3 have an ongoing issue of that. Can you
4 talk about your job portal, because |
5 think that®"s important to get out. It"s
6 something that you and Maryanne have been
7 by my office and showed me a lot, and I
8 just think 1t would be good to get out iIn
9 the record and maybe part of this
10 hearing.
11 MR. GALE: Two efforts | think
12 that the Arrport committed to this body
13 back in 2013 that 1 think that we not
14 only have fulfilled, but they"ve been
15 wonderfully successful. The first, as
16 you referenced, was the creation of a job
17 portal. It was a one-stop shop iIn order
18 for jobseekers to be able to go to a
19 website where you could find a number of
20 different employers at the Airport that
21 would populate that website with their
22 jobs.
23 Today our job portal, which was
24 up and running as of last June, has 147
25 different employers that reside at the
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2 Airport on the website. Over 820 jobs

3 have been posted to that website by the

4 employers. There"s been over 12,000

5 profiles that have been created by

6 visitors to that website and probably

7 between 6,000 and 7,000 resumes that have
8 been uploaded to the website so employers
9 can continue to take a look at that.

10 It"s an unending process.

11 We"re continuing to try to seek

12 additional employers that we haven®t

13 captured to participate i1in that job

14 portal, and at the same time, we"ve also
15 offered and conducted annual job fairs.
16 In 2013, we had a very large job fair

17 down at the Linc. Last year in 2014 we
18 had another job fair at the Liacouras

19 Center that attracted over 1,500 persons
20 that came looking for jobs. We had some
21 30 employers at that site looking for
22 jobs. The Council President was kind
23 enough to be our honorary chair for that
24 as well. And we have another job fair
25 coming up on May 12th at the Liacouras
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2 Center and we"re beginning to really

3 publicize that. So between the job fair
4 and the job portal, we"re really trying
5 to reach out to everybody to let them

6 know what the opportunities are at the

7 Alrport.

8 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Well,

9 thank you very much.

10 I have nothing further,

11 Mr. President. Thank you.

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

13 Thank you, Councilman.

14 The Chair recognizes Councilman
15 Squilla.

16 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you,
17 Mr. President.

18 Knowing that we"re going to

19 have a couple big years with a lot of
20 visitors here iIn Philadelphia, what is
21 the Airport doing to prepare for the
22 papal visit?
23 MR. GALE: So the papal visit,
24 to be quickly followed up thereafter by
25 the DNC, certainly have our fullest
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2 attention. The Ailrport has begun already
3 a series of preparatory meetings, taking
4 a look at our facility and working with
5 our stakeholders at the Airport. It
6 doesn"t matter whether it was the TSA,
7 the airlines, the FAA, folks that handle
8 private airplanes that may be flying in
9 and out of those facilities, to try to
10 get everybody to collaboratively start to
11 prepare for what Is going to come our way
12 first 1n September and then to be
13 followed off in the summer of next year.
14 The Airport also participates
15 directly with a number of other agencies
16 like the Convention and Visitors Bureau
17 on the Welcoming Committee, as well as on
18 many security committees to make sure
19 that everything 1s going to be safe.
20 Our facility we"re going
21 through from top to bottom trying to make
22 sure that all pieces of our facility,
23 whether 1t be carpeting, chairs,
24 lighting, signage, paint, information
25 displays, are as best as they possibly
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2 can be and replaced In advance to the

3 point that we can afford 1t and then also
4 working on customer service issues and

5 attitudes with our employees to try to

6 make sure that as folks arrive at

7 Philadelphia International Airport or

8 depart, they are getting the appropriate
9 welcome and sendoff through our facility
10 as our portal, our gateway to our region.
11 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: All right.
12 I think that"s important, because as

13 people come to the City, 1t might be

14 their fTirst time ever visiting

15 Philadelphia, and 1 think 1f we could --
16 when they first get off the plane to have
17 a great experience and then come visit

18 our city for another great experience,

19 iIt"s really important, because they"re
20 going to be the ones that are selling us
21 in the future, and 1t they could go back
22 home and tell them how great i1t was, |
23 think we"l1l get a lot more travelers here
24 in the City.
25 MR. GALE: We get one shot at
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2 this, Councilman, and we got to get it

3 right.

4 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you
5 very much. Thank you for your help.

6 MR. GALE: Thank you.

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

8 you, Councilman.

9 Councillman Jones.

10 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
11 Mr. Chairman.

12 Real quick question. What"s

13 our busiest city partner route? Who

14 comes here the most and where do people
15 leaving from here go the most?

16 MR. GALE: So we have top

17 destinations or travel markets that are
18 on the domestic side and then others that
19 are on the iInternational side. Domestic
20 side, typically Boston, Atlanta, Orlando,
21 Chicago, and LA hit in our top five.
22 Internationally we"re going to get Mexico
23 and cities in Europe such as London,
24 Paris, and Frankfurt. Very heavy traffic
25 always has been between Philadelphia and
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2 those locations i1n Europe.

3 Some of the airlines that have
4 served us the longest, In excess of 40,

5 45 years, British Airways, Lufthansa have
6 been there that long, and i1t demonstrates
7 the strength of those markets. And then
8 US Ailrways, now American, serving

9 approximately 18 different cities within
10 the European sector really indicates the
11 strength of the -- not only the

12 partnerships with the European union, but
13 the route of travel going back and forth
14 on an international basis.

15 COUNCILMAN JONES: So who would
16 you describe as our -- and I think 1 know
17 the answer to it, but our closest

18 competitor airport, A, and then a route
19 that with a little work we could snatch
20 from them?
21 MR. GALE: So our closest
22 competitors clearly end up being Newark
23 just to our north, and that is a
24 competitor because United Airlines
25 operates a hub there and a very large
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2 international gateway and we used to leak
3 a lot of international traffic to the

4 north. So they would go up and get on

5 those United airplanes, or at that point
6 in time, they were Continental airplanes
7 that they were getting on. And to our

8 south, Southwest Airlines has a very

9 large operation in Baltimore and we see
10 leakage that goes to the south.

11 I think that the work that®s

12 being done right now with American

13 Airlines growing 1ts international

14 gateway, we stemmed some of that leakage
15 going to the north, and with some of the
16 airlines that we have i1n place at

17 Philadelphia right now, Southwest,

18 Frontier, Spirit, some of the low-cost

19 carriers, we"re able to stem some of the
20 leakage that goes to the south.
21 The international markets are
22 key because my competition isn"t
23 necessarily Newark or Baltimore or even
24 Washington, DC. When we get into the
25 international arena, my competition could
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2 be Denver, Dallas, LA, Vancouver, other

3 major international cities. When

4 airlines take delivery of a large

5 wide-body aircraft that costs $250 to

6 $300 million, they can fly them anywhere

7 in the world, and cities all over the

8 world are competing for that as well.

9 I think that our -- the fruit
10 that we"re trying to grab and that we"ve
11 heard the most about -- and 1 think we"re
12 getting much closer each day -- ends up
13 being Tokyo as our number one location
14 that we would like to serve. Right up
15 there with that certainly would be
16 Beijing or Shanghai on the far eastern
17 region side of the house.

18 COUNCILMAN JONES: Well, good
19 luck with that. We want them to visit

20 here, transfer here, spend money here.

21 So we wish you well In your competitive
22 endeavor .

23 MR. GALE: Thank you,

24 Councilman.

25 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
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2 Mr. Chair.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

4 you.

5 Being no further questions,

6 thank you all very much. Thank you for

7 all you do down there.

8 MR. GALE: Thank you.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank you
10 to all the support folks that were here.
11 I hope you were properly entertained by
12 Councilman Neilson before the hearing
13 started. Thank you very much.

14 MR. GALE: Thank you,

15 Councilman.

16 MS. CAMERON: Thank you.

17 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Our next
18 department is the Water Department.

19 As the Water Department is

20 coming forward, 1f 1 could ask the folks
21 that are leaving to please do i1t quietly.
22 (Witnesses approached witness
23 table.)

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Please.
25 We"re trying to continue the hearings,
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2 please. We"ve got a lot of things going
3 today.

4 Commissioner, please. As

5 usual, Commissioner -- please -- we have
6 your full testimony, i1f you"d like to

7 summarize, and then 1"m sure there"ll be
8 questions.

9 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

10 you, Councilman Greenlee and members of
11 Council. My name is Howard Neukrug. [I™m
12 the Water Commissioner testifying on

13 behalf of the Philadelphia Water

14 Department and 1ts FY 2016 Operating

15 Budget request.

16 Before 1 begin, 1 would like to
17 recognize our 2,000 dedicated employees
18 who work together daily to withstand

19 whatever 1t iIs that aging pipes and
20 Mother Nature has to throw at us. They
21 keep the water flowing and protect our
22 public®"s health and the environment. And
23 I would especially like to acknowledge
24 those employees who have taken the extra
25 step to be a mentor In our apprenticeship
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2 programs, as well as those who have

3 worked to make a success of PowerCorps.

4 PowerCorps has quickly emerged as a

5 strong program for young Philadelphians

6 to learn and reach full employment.

7 As detailed in my written

8 testimony, the proposed Water Department
9 Operating Budget is $367 million.

10 Increases over last year are due

11 primarily to projected higher costs for
12 labor, energy, chemicals, and equipment,
13 as well as our commitment to strengthen
14 our workforce, meet consent decree

15 requirements, and confront our ongoing

16 infrastructure and operational

17 challenges. We work hard to maintain

18 affordable rates for all and to ensure

19 the dignity of the neediest and to
20 provide everyone the basic human right of
21 water service.
22 I am very pleased to be working
23 with Council to develop new programs and
24 support services for our low-income
25 customers, and we continue to look for
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2 operating efficiencies and cost savings,
3 as demonstrated in our efforts to create
4 a net zero energy water treatment plant.
5 Our rates are among the lowest In the

6 region and almost half those charged by
7 investor-owned utilities. 1°d like to

8 repeat that. Our rates remain among the
9 lowest i1n the region and almost half of
10 those charged by investor-owned

11 utilities. And 1 am pleased to announce
12 that for the first time In over a decade,
13 the Water Department will not pursue a
14 rate increase for the next fiscal year.
15 We look forward to working with the new
16 Water Rate Board --

17 (Applause.)

18 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank
19 you.
20 And we look forward to working
21 with the new Water Rate Board to maintain
22 affordable rates and access to water
23 services.
24 While other cities struggle
25 with water scarcity, Philadelphia remains
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2 water rich, and we continue to provide

3 100 percent of the time to all of our

4 customers safe, high quality, affordable,
5 and abundant drinking water.

6 The past two winters have not

7 been kind to our pipes, nor our emergency
8 pipe repalr crews. As our infrastructure
9 ages, 1t causes disruptions through

10 leaks, breaks, and sinkholes. It

11 Increases our operating costs and

12 disrupts businesses, residents, and

13 traffic. As such, over the past four

14 years, we have increased our water main
15 replacement activities. We have now

16 doubled, doubled our annual Investment

17 from $22 to $44 million a year. This

18 fiscal year alone we have encumbered

19 monies for the replacement of 37 miles of
20 pipe, more than we have ever done before.
21 I"m also pleased to report that
22 we have made significant progress in
23 growing our disadvantaged business
24 participation program to 24 percent and
25 have set a goal for next year of 27
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2 percent. This represents nearly $50

3 million 1In annual contracts to

4 disadvantaged firms.

5 1"d like to thank our

6 participation director, who i1s sitting at
7 the table with me, Janira Barroso, for

8 developing an aggressive and

9 forward-thinking participation plan. You
10 should have a copy on your desk of

11 propaganda from the Philadelphia Water

12 Department, but included In that

13 propaganda are some really incredible

14 reports 1 hope you all take a moment to
15 take a look at dealing with participation
16 and our apprenticeship program.

17 This plan i1s about building

18 partnerships, creating workshops and

19 training programs, and improving our
20 practices, procedures, and outreach. In
21 addition, we fully expect to double the
22 number of project labor agreements, PLAs,
23 next year, from 13 to 26, as we continue
24 to work on 261 -- and that number is
25 right; 1 asked twice -- 261 Economic
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2 Opportunity Plans.
3 In closing, we"re proud to be
4 investing in our children and our
5 communities, our green schoolyards. The
6 program works to reduce the School
7 District"s stormwater bills while
8 creating attractive, educational, and fun
9 outdoor spaces for the school and the
10 community. Eight schoolyards are now
11 complete and another 25 are planned, and
12 just beyond the schoolyards, we are also
13 investing in the livability of our
14 neighborhoods, contributing to the
15 creation and revitalization of green
16 spaces through our Green Cities, Clean
17 Waters i1nitiatives.
18 Thank you for your time. 1711
19 be happy to take your questions.
20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
21 you, Commissioner, and thank you to
22 everyone In your department for the work
23 you do.
24 You mentioned those water main
25 breaks. Since it seemed to be cold for
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2 about a year this past winter --

3 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Two

4 years.

5 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: -- was

6 there a tremendous increase In water main
7 breaks or were you able to pretty much

8 keep that under control?

9 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: We

10 thought we saw a tremendous Increase in
11 water main breaks with the terrible

12 winter two years ago, but that was topped
13 this past year, yes.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Yeah.

15 Like I said, we didn"t seem to get a

16 break, no pun iIntended, a break in the

17 weather the whole time.

18 Just one quick gquestion. You
19 mention 1 think In your written testimony
20 234 unfilled positions iIn your
21 department. Could you -- I don"t need
22 you to obviously go over every single
23 one, but are they iIn particular areas and
24 are there particular plans to address
25 some of those vacancies?
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2 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Yes.
3 We"ve been working on our vacancy issue
4 for quite some time and did some analysis
5 and realized that because of the number
6 of people 1n DROP and the civil service
7 system in 1tself, we will generally
8 continue to see over 100 vacancies. Two
9 thirty-four i1s too big a number. I did
10 ask, 1 called in yesterday, | said,
11 what®"s the number today, and the
12 number -- because that number i1s from
13 December, and today we"re at 180
14 vacancies. So it does fluctuate quite a
15 bit. A hundred eighty is still at the
16 top of where 1*d like to see i1t, but it
17 does take time. And every time we
18 promote somebody into a vacancy, we
19 create a new vacancy.
20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: So DROP
21 seems to be the main issue?
22 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: We have
23 over 150 people in the DROP program now,
24 and because a number of years ago there
25 was a little nervousness about the
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2 continuation of DROP, a whole bunch of
3 people have joined iIn.
4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: We
5 remember that, yes.
6 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Yes.
7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: All
8 right. Thank you. Thank you very much.
9 Councilman Jones.
10 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
11 Mr. Chairman.
12 I too would like to thank you,
13 and I1"11 start with the fact that I"ve
14 observed your workforce in some of the
15 coldest weather ever repairing water
16 mains in my neighborhood, not because it
17 was my neighborhood but because that"s
18 what you do. And 1711 never forget the
19 image of a guy"s beard having frozen
20 water on 1t as they worked on that
21 street. 1 stopped my car. | rolled down
22 the window -- 1 did not get out because
23 It was that cold -- and thanked him for
24 what he did. And I want to thank all of
25 the hard-working men and women of your
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2 department for what you do.

3 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

4 you, Councilman. That means a lot to all
5 the men and women of the Philadelphia

6 Water Department.

7 COUNCILMAN JONES: Specifically
8 in the 4th District, | also want to thank
9 you for the reservoir work you®ve done up
10 in East Falls and in Wynnefield, some of
11 the work that you did prior on Centennial
12 Lake helping to restore that to national
13 prominence. Morris Park daylighting I

14 always like --

15 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: One of
16 my favorite projects.

17 COUNCILMAN JONES: -- to talk
18 about. And Venice Island most recently
19 where you took lemons and made lemonade
20 In an amphitheater outside and an actual
21 enclosed theatre. And I would argue that
22 it probably i1s on somebody*®s national

23 register as one of the most iInnovative

24 things 1°ve ever seen. To catch water --
25 we were cited by the EPA, and now that"s
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2 the kind of turnaround that I think

3 anybody would be proud of, and | just

4 want to thank you for all of that.

5 On your strategic plan, there"s
6 3,000 miles of pipe under our feet and we
7 leak about 23 percent of i1t through water
8 main breaks every year. Some of the

9 ageing infrastructure i1s close to 100

10 years old.

11 How do you plan -- you said we
12 did some of the largest number of pipe

13 replacement this year. A, is that within
14 your budget? B, do you project us doing
15 that going forward? And, 1f so, do we

16 have the resources, A, to pay for i1t and
17 the body to actually do 1t?

18 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: That"s a
19 great question, Councilman. And, yes,
20 we"ve been watching water main break
21 records for 30-some-odd years and
22 watching them decline because of the
23 process of replacement and knowing which
24 pipes to replace under the street and not
25 replacing the pipe before i1ts time but
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2 replacing i1t before i1t breaks.
3 We are now moving forward with
4 increasing significantly both the dollars
5 in our Capital Budget, not Operating
6 Budget, our Capital Program, from 22
7 million, which was Fiscal Year "11°s
8 number, to today which is 44 million. We
9 have that i1n our six-year Capital Plan to
10 remain at 44 million for the next six
11 years. That represents a 1 percent
12 replacement rate, which 1s the new
13 standard in the industry, 1°d say, new
14 best practice standard. Cities like
15 Washington, DC have recently gone from
16 0.6 percent of the system each year to 1
17 percent, and we"re following suit. We
18 think 1t"s the right thing to do, and
19 iIt"s the only way we can get ahead of the
20 game here.
21 COUNCILMAN JONES: So by way of
22 personnel, can you tell me how you"re
23 reaching in some of the labor portions to
24 our high schools, finding Philadelphians
25 that we can attract into the work pool,
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2 and particularly tell me about your

3 bioretention basin plan and rain gardens.
4 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Sure.

5 And 1°d like to point out iIn everyone®s

6 pamphlet 1s this excellent report on our
7 apprenticeship program. We have a number
8 of different ways that we"re investing in
9 our high schoolers, looking at a number
10 of different approaches to bringing iIn

11 high school students, particularly in

12 vocational high schools, Mastbaum

13 included and Randolph and Overbrook, and
14 we"re looking at these schools and

15 bringing kids in. We"re training with

16 them, both the combination of training at
17 the classroom and also in the field with
18 the Philadelphia Water Department, and we
19 have created a new program which allows
20 the students to come iIn as civil servants
21 after they finished a significant piece
22 of a program, civil service and to be
23 training for another year, and after
24 that, they are eligible for titles like
25 HVAC, maintenance mechanic, electrician.
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2 So we"re really looking forward. These

3 kids are wonderful. They"re highly

4 motivated and they are highly skilled,

5 and we"re really enjoying this program.

6 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1°m going to
7 yield to my -- see, like Pavlov"s dog, 1
8 stop talking when the bell rings. 111

9 wait for the next round.

10 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

11 you, SIir.

12 Councillman Neirlson.

13 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: And thank
14 you, Councilman. 1"m going to pick up

15 right where you left off.

16 Our children®s education is one
17 of our main focuses here during budget

18 times, and you just talked about some of
19 your partnerships and some of the
20 training that you do with the high
21 schools. How much training do you
22 provide your employees? By best numbers,
23 I1*m looking In here In your budget and in
24 specifically Section 56 on Page 19. You
25 identify $2.7 million in training in such
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2 things as math, English, training

3 consultants, training consultants,

4 consultants, consultants. Is there any

5 way we can dump that money into public

6 schools and have those people and your

7 workers trained there as well so we could
8 better utilize our education facilities

9 already? |1 mean, this 1s just a piece,
10 as you know.

11 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: We"re

12 always looking to coordinate and we do

13 work with the school system as best we

14 can, and we"ll certainly take that up as
15 a very good suggestion. It"s critical

16 for us, just to back up for a second, to
17 make sure that everyone who is hired at
18 the Philadelphia Water Department,

19 including those hired at the labor level,
20 have the opportunity to better themselves
21 and move up and make Philadelphia Water a
22 home for life so that they could continue
23 their education, training, learn about
24 safety and learn about what we"re looking
25 to do 1In the future years and just giving
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2 them the opportunity. So the training is
3 very, very important to us. It"s a

4 program that we"ve been investing more

5 and more heavily into, and it Is an

6 investment in Philadelphians. And in

7 terms of the School District, we do a lot
8 of work with the School District and love
9 to take a look at that also, see how we
10 can work together.

11 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Thank you
12 for that and | appreciate you looking

13 into that, because as an electrician, |1
14 mean, | see training to an industrial

15 electrician at $250,000. I"m certain it
16 doesn®"t cost that much to train one

17 electrician. That"s what pulled i1t out
18 of my -- that popped out of my head.

19 But my next question would be,
20 how much do City-owned facilities and
21 City-owned buildings pay for City water
22 annually?
23 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: It"s a
24 significant number. 1°d like to
25 introduce Melissa LaBuda, who Is the new
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2 Chief Financial Officer for the

3 Philadelphia Water Department. Many of
4 you know and remember very well Joe

5 Clare. He retired last February. We"re
6 very fTortunate to have Melissa join us.

7 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

8 Good afternoon, Councilman.

9 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Good

10 afternoon.

11 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA: So
12 the City of Philadelphia --

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: If you
14 could just i1dentify yourself.

15 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

16 Sure. It"s Melissa LaBuda, Deputy Water
17 Commissioner for the Philadelphia Water
18 Department.

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
20 you.
21 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
22 The City of Philadelphia i1s the Water
23 Department®s largest customer. In total,
24 the General Fund contributes about 29
25 million In revenue to the Water
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2 Department for water, stormwater, and
3 wastewater, as well as fire suppression
4 services.
) COUNCILMAN NEILSON: How much
6 do you return back to the City later on?
7 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA: So
8 via the interfund process, we typically
9 owe the General Fund for critical
10 services that they provide to the Water
11 Department of approximately $8 million a
12 year, Sir.
13 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: So we pay
14 you 29; you give us 8 back?
15 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
16 Correct. I"m sorry. The General Fund
17 pays to the Water Department
18 approximately $29 million. The Water
19 Department pays to the General Fund
20 approximately $8 million.
21 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: What was
22 that? 1°m sorry. Eight million, right?
23 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
24 Eight million.
25 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Okay. So
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2 the difference of 21 million. So we"re
3 the largest customer.

4 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

5 Correct.

6 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Do you

7 think that -- I mean, 1 know where 1™m

8 going now, schools. 1 just found $20

9 million. 1"m paying my own City water
10 company $29 million a year for water. |1
11 just can"t grasp that. Can you help me
12 grasp that? Because there"s $20 million
13 sitting right here that 1"m paying a

14 City-owned facility for services to

15 provide -- see where 1"m going, Howard?
16 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Yes, 1
17 see where you"re going and --

18 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: I mean,
19 it"s $20 million. We"re asking for a 10
20 percent increase on real estate taxes,
21 and here on fees and stuff like that 1
22 could save 20 million 1In one swipe by not
23 paying my water bill.
24 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Well,
25 It"s not -- and the problem with the
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2 discussion is that i1t"s not found money.
3 It"s money that needs to be replaced. So
4 iIT you don"t raise 1t in tax X or tax Y
5 and you want to raise i1t In the water
6 rates, that"s something that we can talk
7 about. But the City of Philadelphia is a
8 very important customer of the
9 Philadelphia Water Department, as is the
10 School District and the church system,
11 and they all are part of the community of
12 Philadelphia who pays for the water,
13 wastewater, and stormwater services that
14 need to be provided.
15 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: So there®s
16 additional money that the School District
17 pays too? How much annually does the
18 School District pay for City water?
19 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
20 May we get back to you with that exact
21 figure? But the School District is the
22 second largest customer of the Water
23 Department, sir.
24 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: I guess my
25 bell rang.
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2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Yes.

3 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: 1 think

4 other people will pick up on that,

5 because that"s millions of dollars that

6 we can put back in schools and find other
7 resources to better allocate.

8 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

10 you, Councilman.

11 Councilman Squilla.

12 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Thank you,
13 Mr. Chairman.

14 My question also on that line,
15 you know, there®s a discount for, |

16 guess, non-profits for water. What is

17 the discount for all the non-profits? |Is
18 It 20 percent?

19 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: It
20 varies by customer base, but for the
21 non-profit groups, 1t Is at 25 percent.
22 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA:
23 Twenty-five percent.
24 Do we have an estimated number
25 of what that would be if 1t wasn"t
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2 discounted, how much additional revenue

3 would be brought In?

4 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: I™m

5 tempted to give you a number. 1t will be
6 in the single digit millions, but for the
7 sake of being sure, 111 have to get back
8 to you.

9 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: 1 was

10 curious, because obviously we have some
11 very large non-profits.

12 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Oh, we
13 have the numbers.

14 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: You have
15 it?

16 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA: We
17 do, sir.

18 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Very good.
19 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
20 For hospitals and universities, the
21 discount is approximately $4.3 million a
22 year. For other charitable and education
23 institutions, it"s $3.4 million a year,
24 and the senior citizen discount is $3.1
25 million a year.
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2 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Okay.

3 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

4 And it totals about $21 million a year of
5 discounts that the Water Department

6 provides.

7 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: And that

8 money then iIs -- you do not get any of

9 that money to -—-

10 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

11 Correct, sir. 1It"s a reduction to the

12 bill, Councilman.

13 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Right.

14 First of all, 1 want to thank
15 the Water Department too for their

16 responsiveness to our needs and calls. |1
17 know we get a lot of concerns and

18 complaints, especially after this hard

19 winter, with problems with either the
20 water line or sinkholes or potholes that
21 are caused by some water. And 1 got to
22 say one thing, the Department iIs very
23 responsive in getting back to us, going
24 out to the site, speaking with the
25 constituents, and that"s a big help to us
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2 and 1 think 1t"s a credit to the Water

3 Department for that, and I appreciate it.
4 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

5 you, Councilman, for saying that. The

6 Water Department, all the employees

7 appreciate that.

8 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Yes. And
9 we do bug the hell out of them. |1 mean,
10 whether 1t"s 10 o"clock at night or 5

11 o"clock 1n the morning, we send them

12 e-mails, and i1It"s great the response that
13 we get.

14 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Leaks,
15 breaks, and sinkholes are not fun.

16 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: No, and
17 It"s really important to have that

18 collaboration, and 1 want to thank you
19 for that.
20 I know there®s other questions
21 about the Water Department and the
22 runoff. Do we know how much has been
23 saved or how much less water is going
24 through our system since we implemented
25 our, | guess, our programs to reduce
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2 water runoff?

3 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: 1It"s in
4 the hundreds of millions of gallons a

5 year. It"s a very significant number. 1
6 know 1t"s an iInteresting, wonderful new

7 program that we have that is really

8 benefiting us, and the biggest way that

9 It"s benefiting us i1s, 1t"s the least

10 expensive method to do an awful lot of

11 good for the City.

12 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Is there a
13 savings associated with that water not

14 going into our system?

15 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Yes.

16 Every gallon of water that does not go

17 into our system, 1t only has two places
18 to go, one is overflow as pollution iInto
19 our rivers and streams, which creates a
20 drinking water problem, or i1f It does get
21 to our wastewater plants, we have to
22 treat that and there®s a cost associated
23 with that also.
24 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Right. Do
25 we have an estimated number of the

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 76

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 savings considering the amount of water

3 runoff that we"re reducing?

4 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: 1 can

5 get back to you with that number.

6 COUNCILMAN SQUILLA: Okay. 1

7 think that®"s important also, because I

8 think 1t"s a great program, and I love to
9 put numbers up to see and show people

10 what it really means to the bottom line,
11 and 1 think that"s important to promote
12 and also have the Water Department to

13 promote that. So thank you very much.

14 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

15 you.

16 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

17 you, Councilman.

18 And I certainly want to second
19 the comments of Councilman Squilla.
20 Everyone iIn your department has done such
21 a responsive job whenever -- certainly
22 I1"ve called, and 1"ve heard that from
23 almost every Councilperson.
24 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: May 1
25 just take a moment to acknowledge Debbie
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2 McCarty, who is our Chief Operating

3 Officer.

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: 1 was

5 just going to do that. Great minds think
6 alike. Deputy Commissioner McCarty has

7 been particularly helpful. And 1 have to
8 mention a person who has retired but was
9 our person many years, a direct contact,
10 was Dolores Pringle. She did a great job
11 with us. Thank you.

12 Councilwoman Blackwell.

13 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Thank
14 you. Thank you very much.

15 Good morning. And we likewise
16 thank the Department. In fact, we"re

17 waiting for some copies to come back to
18 do some mailing with some information

19 with regard to the district. 1 talked
20 with you about that early in the year.
21 And we thank you for the information we
22 received.
23 With employment demographics,
24 what"s executive employees under that
25 section and what are not? What are
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2 executive and what are not, and how are

3 the minority employees spread out with

4 regard to labor positions?

) COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: I™m

6 sorry, Councilwoman. Can you say your

7 question one more time. 1 want to be

8 clear.

9 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Yes.
10 What"s under executive employees under
11 that category and what are not, like
12 management, supervisory positions?

13 What"s executive and what are not in some
14 of your positions?

15 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Well,
16 the executive staff consists of 15

17 people, eight men, eight women, one

18 African American female, seven white

19 males, four white females, one Hispanic
20 female, one Asian male, and one Asian
21 female.

22 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: All
23 right. We will let them know that.

24 Greenworks, my staff has been
25 talking to me about how not only my
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2 district, in other areas of the City, how
3 they plan to be distributed, and is there
4 a plan, like where some areas that are
5 blighted or gentrified where they may
6 decide that as a strategy to fix them up
7 or other depressed neighborhoods? How do
8 you decide for your Greenworks project?
9 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: For our
10 Green Cities, Clean Waters program
11 basically we"re looking for where we can
12 collect water. |If you"re on top of a
13 hill, whether you"re blighted or
14 gentrified, there"s probably nothing we
15 can do to catch that water. If you"re
16 down hill, we love you, and we do not
17 look to see whether you®"re blighted or 1in
18 Center City Philadelphia. We do
19 recognize that there"s so much
20 opportunity, particularly during
21 redevelopments and when there are other
22 activities going on, whether it"s through
23 Fairmount Park, the School District, the
24 rec centers, private development. That"s
25 where you really get your bang for the
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2 buck, because you can coordinate and

3 integrate services and provide for

4 stormwater management, green space, and
5 hopefully other things to improve the

6 community.

7 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Great.
8 What percentage of workers are contract
9 employees versus PWD employees?

10 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Our

11 staff 1s approximately 2,000 people, and
12 99.8 percent of them are civil service.
13 We have ten exempt positions, and we also
14 have a number of people who work for

15 consulting firms that work as

16 contractors. | don"t have the exact

17 number for you, but I can get that for
18 you.

19 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: And,
20 finally, how much was appropriated for
21 the rebranding of the Water Department?
22 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: 1 can
23 get that number for you also.
24 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Okay.
25 Again, thank you for the work you do.
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2 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

3 you .

4 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Thank
) you.

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

7 you, Councilwoman.

8 Councilman Jones.

9 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
10 Mr. Chair.

11 It was an iInteresting line of
12 questioning that Councilman Neilson

13 raised about us being our own best

14 customer. What are the other five top
15 institutional clients that we have, 1In
16 that order, and then for bonus points are
17 they paying?

18 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

19 Unfortunately, Councilman, 1711 have to
20 get back to you with our top ten
21 customers.
22 COUNCILMAN JONES: See, that"s
23 a veteran move, but somebody -- we used
24 to go for that. We don"t go for that.
25 Somebody needs to find out. 1711 give
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2 you some. Is 1t the federal government,
3 and do they pay? PHA? Do they pay?
4 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:
5 Yes.
6 COUNCILMAN JONES: Other
7 institutions such as colleges and
8 universities, and do they pay? Because
9 you"d rather find out the answer and give
10 it to us than us call you back.
11 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: And each
12 of those -- all the agencies and entities
13 that you mentioned do pay for water
14 service.
15 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1 do recall
16 a couple of years ago there was one, and
17 I won"t put them out there again, but
18 there was one of them that did not pay.
19 They were behind.
20 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: PHA.
21 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1 didn"t say
22 iIt. See, I was trying not to.
23 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: PHA,
24 we"ve reached agreement with them and are
25 working well with them now, and they are
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2 paying.
3 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1 wasn"t
4 going to say that, but okay. 1"m glad to
5 hear that.
6 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: That was
7 a blip, not a trend.
8 COUNCILMAN JONES: So i1f you
9 could provide to the Chair those top
10 institutional accounts and what their
11 status i1s. | heard there was once a
12 problem with the federal government, and
13 that would amaze me to know that. But if
14 you could provide that to the Chair. As
15 we start to look at ways to kind of ease
16 the burden on real estate holders,
17 Councilman Neilson i1s absolutely
18 appropriate to question whether or not
19 our receivables are managed. And I don"t
20 mean by you, but, you know, the federal
21 government is a big customer that we may
22 be a little intimidated by because we may
23 owe them money, but the point iIs, we want
24 to know. We at least want to know.
25 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: We*"d be
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2 very happy to have any support from City
3 Council to support us In --

4 COUNCILMAN JONES: To do

5 collections?

6 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: To do

7 collections, yes.

8 COUNCILMAN JONES: Okay.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: That was
10 a veteran move too.

11 COUNCILMAN JONES: Yeah, that
12 was. That was really good.

13 But that information, i1f you

14 could give us -- let"s make that the top
15 ten large accounts.

16 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA: We
17 have that.

18 COUNCILMAN JONES: And also

19 industrial accounts. Okay?
20 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: That
21 would be fine.
22 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you so
23 much, Mr. Chair.
24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
25 you, Councilman.
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2 Councillman Neirlson.

3 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Now, this
4 IS your rookie move. It was just

5 explained to me about the $20 million

6 that 1 wanted to try and grasp on the

7 enterprise, and 1 think I want to give

8 you the shot to put that on the record,
9 because 1 think that"s important.

10 Although 1 might have stated | thought I
11 had 20, i1t seems that I can"t touch the
12 20.

13 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LaBUDA:

14 Correct.

15 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: So please
16 explain that for the record. This way,
17 the public knows that | can®"t get that.
18 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank
19 you, Councilman.
20 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: And why.
21 Because 1 think that"s important.
22 Because although I read the budget and
23 I1*m looking at every single line and I™m
24 driving myself Insane, as you can well
25 imagine, every little bit 1"m trying to
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2 grasp. But please, Howard, if you would
3 put that on the record. This way, the

4 public knows.

) COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Thank

6 you, Councilman. Yes. The Philadelphia
7 Water Department i1s one of two Enterprise
8 Funds in the City of Philadelphia, the

9 other one being the Airport. We are

10 operating departments. We are an

11 operating department of the City, but our
12 funds are separate from the City, and

13 that was done purposefully with the City
14 Charter in 1952.

15 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Thank you.
16 I jJust wanted to make sure.

17 Now I want to talk about new

18 technologies, because the EPA put many

19 standards on some of the way our water
20 drainage goes, and there®s new
21 technologies to be able to save residents
22 from water runoff costs and stuff like
23 that, because now we have a charge, and a
24 lot of businesses and a lot of the
25 homeowners are saying, hey, look, It"s
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2 just a money grab. But it"s the way we
3 have to clean our water after i1t goes

4 into our system and comes out.

5 Are we looking at new

6 technologies, cheaper technologies? My
7 understanding, Southern California just
8 came up with a foam use. There"s still
9 going to be a lawsuit filed. Is that

10 something you keep an eye on, because

11 they“"re going to try and say, hey, EPA,
12 we"re not paying this, we"re not doing
13 this, we have something that works. |Is
14 that part of your team that does all

15 that, i1nvestigates that kind of stuff?
16 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: Yeah.
17 We"ve been working both around the U.S.
18 and around the world to identify the best
19 and least expensive technologies to
20 manage stormwater. We"re very proud of
21 where we are. We believe that we"re
22 among the leaders i1n the world in this
23 area, and what we"re finding is that the
24 rest of the country i1s very quickly
25 following and wants to get the same type
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2 of process agreement with EPA that we

3 were able to achieve.

4 In terms of what"s happening iIn
5 Southern California, 1"m not quite

6 familiar with what you were talking about
7 there, but --

8 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: 1 just

9 heard it on NPR yesterday, so it"s kind
10 of something new that"s just coming out.
11 So I"m sure you didn"t get i1t yet. It"s
12 coming.

13 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: As a

14 matter of fact, even tomorrow we"re

15 having a number of cities coming to the
16 City of Philadelphia to talk about green
17 infrastructure and talk about the

18 opportunities and how other cities can

19 get the same kind of consent order that
20 we receilved.
21 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Well,
22 thank you for coming in and also thank
23 all your good work and thanks for staying
24 In constant contact with us, because as |
25 said before, you personally have been in
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2 my office more than any commissioner in
3 the City of Philadelphia, | must say.

4 And I almost say -- | cannot say this for
5 the record. You“ve been in my office

6 more yourself than all of them

7 collectively.

8 COMMISSIONER NEUKRUG: They

9 don"t know how much fun you are.

10 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Well,

11 thank you.

12 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Our

13 sympathies, Commissioner. Thank you.

14 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Thank you.
15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: No

16 further questions. Thank you very much.
17 Thank you all for what you do.

18 (Thank you.)

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: We"re
20 going to keep going because we"re ahead
21 of schedule. So we"re going to move to
22 the Public Property Department.
23 Once again, if I could ask
24 everybody when they leave, to leave
25 quietly, please, so we can keep moving.
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2 We still have a couple more departments

3 today. Thank you.

4 (Witnesses approached witness

5 table.)

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Please.

7 It"s still morning,

8 Commissioner. So good morning.

9 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Good
10 morning.

11 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: If you“re
12 ready, please proceed.

13 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1 am
14 ready.

15 Good morning, Councilman

16 Greenlee and members of City Council. My
17 name i1s Bridget Collins-Greenwald and I
18 am the Commissioner of Public Property.
19 With me today is Lori Davey, our Deputy
20 Commissioner of Administrative Services.
21 In the interest of time, we
22 have submitted written budget testimony
23 before this hearing, so I will just
24 mention a few of the accomplishments we
25 have had this year. These were all
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2 achieved because of the dedicated staff

3 of the Department of Public Property.

4 With Council approval, the

5 Department received additional funding to
6 Create a preventive maintenance team.

7 The team so far has performed almost

8 2,000 PMs this year and i1s on the pace to
9 save the City $500,000.

10 One i1ssue that has historically
11 interrupted Fire operations iIs emergency
12 pipe repair work. Part of the PM process
13 has had us check the lateral connections
14 at each station. To date, we have

15 performed 23 of these inspections and

16 Tfixed five laterals before they became an
17 emergency situation. So the program is
18 working.

19 We moved the Narcotics Unit
20 from leased space Into the Wissahickon
21 BRAC after renovations to that facility,
22 which, combined with the move of Homeland
23 Security and Criminal Intelligence, will
24 save us $650,000 annually. We anticipate
25 the Woodhaven BRAC will be completed this
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2 summer, and we will be moving the police
3 training units as well as units that are
4 currently housed in leased space. So

5 these are leases that we also anticipate
6 we can terminate.

7 We performed major renovations
8 to the space at City Hall and In the

9 triplex, including developing modern

10 space plans for the new L&l inspectional
11 staff and a swapping of space between

12 Council, the courts, and the Mayor-®s

13 Office to create more efficient space for
14 the Police Department®s Court OT Unit,

15 the Mayor*®s Office of Education, and

16 Council®"s technical staff.

17 We continue to beautify City

18 Hall through painting, the cleaning of

19 floors, window washing, the remodeling of
20 ceilings, putting 1nviting images of the
21 history of City Hall In the areas leading
22 to the tower and digital signage. We are
23 working on installing the City Hall gates
24 by the end of the year and beginning
25 concrete work on the north apron this
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2 spring.

3 We completed a full facilities
4 assessment of each Police and Fire

5 district and have been making visits to

6 each facility to verify these reports.

7 These reports have fed Into areas where

8 we feel the most work is needed. We have
9 worked with the Police Department, the

10 FOP, and Council on the process and

11 maintenance plan.

12 We are taking the lead on the
13 new Police Public Safety Campus project
14 at 4601 Market Street, where we have

15 completed the selective demolition

16 process, the environmental abatement of
17 the i1nterior, have solicited bids -- are
18 soliciting bids for the requirement

19 contractors for general construction
20 coming up this April 30th and will be
21 releasing an RFP soliciting bids for the
22 exterior iIn June.
23 Under the project management of
24 the Department of Public Property®s Jim
25 Lowe, a resident of that area, and
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2 working closely with Councilwoman

3 Blackwell, we have been able to achieve

4 high numbers in local participation, with
5 63 percent of the workers to date from

6 Philadelphia, 13 percent of them from the
7 local five area zip codes. We have 66

8 minority tradesperson participation and 5
9 percent female participation on that job
10 to date. We anticipate the

11 state-of-the-art building will be open in
12 late 2018.

13 The DPP i1s also working on two
14 initiatives that support investment in

15 our children and i1n making every

16 neighborhood a neighborhood of choice.

17 Working with the Philadelphia School

18 District, we have established an

19 apprenticeship program In our trades
20 fields, which will allow school children
21 participating in the program to obtain a
22 full-time civil service position after
23 graduation and successful completion of
24 that program. We are also working with
25 our fellow landholding agencies to
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2 transfer City-owned land into the Land
3 Bank where 1t will be better maintained
4 as part of the Land Bank®s budget. In
5 the meantime, we have been working with
6 the VPRC to convey properties for nominal
7 cost In order to have them put into a
8 more productive use, such as gardens, and
9 back on to the tax rolls, thus continuing
10 to improve those neighborhoods.
11 I am concluding with my
12 testimony and happy to answer any
13 questions you may have at this time.
14 Thank you.
15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
16 you, Commissioner.
17 Just a question that I know the
18 Council President always likes to ask,
19 municipal advertising. Where are we with
20 that?
21 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Well,
22 fortunately for me, the MDO has taken the
23 lead on municipal advertising, not our
24 department.
25 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Another

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 96

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 veteran move.

3 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: So 1

4 can punk out of this one.

5 I do know that the contract was
6 awarded. 1 believe Interstate is the

7 name of the company that won that. And I
8 believe they are iIn negotiations right

9 now to see what the revenue projection
10 will be and what types of properties

11 they“"re looking at. And 1 do know that
12 Edward Garcia, the Managing Director-"s
13 Office, 1s heading up that program and
14 he*"s actually the one who is the main

15 point of contact.

16 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: You seem
17 very happy to state that.

18 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1™m
19 very happy to state that.
20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: You
21 mention your partnership with the School
22 District, but 1 think you also say that
23 the pilot program has been slow moving,
24 but you anticipate better participation.
25 Has there been a particular reason why
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2 It"s been slow moving?

3 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1

4 think what happened was, we went out to
5 one school and did some recruitment and I
6 think maybe the expectations weren®"t

7 managed the way they needed to be. So

8 when the apprentices came in -- they had
9 to keep a certailn grade average and had
10 to be able to get to City Hall. That"s
11 where we had -- we had one In City Hall
12 and one i1n the Police Administration

13 Building for the pilot, and 1 think the
14 transportation issues we had to work out
15 a little bit. So what we"ve done 1s,

16 we"ve gone back to the drawing board.

17 We"re working with Mr. Lewis of the

18 School District, and we actually think we
19 have a more robust plan this time and
20 actually are going to like prop i1t up to
21 be more successful.
22 So 1 do anticipate i1t actually
23 working this time around. And we should
24 know soon, because we"ll have the Kkids
25 coming In very shortly.
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2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: 1 was
3 wondering on that note, if you could give
4 us the current participation numbers. If
5 you don"t have i1t, get i1t to us. And is
6 there an expectation of what the
7 participation is for next year?
8 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Yes.
9 Actually, 1 could give you that now. So
10 we anticipate having four apprentices
11 come in and learn in our HVAC and our
12 plumbing fields, because they"re
13 traditionally very hard for us to recruit
14 for. So they"ll be paired up with
15 seasoned HVAC mechanics, seasoned
16 plumbers. They"ll learn those fields and
17 they" 1l come into the system as trade
18 worker helpers. So they"ll come iIn iIn
19 those disciplines, and then that will
20 allow them to move up through the Civil
21 Service system. They"ll be able to test
22 into higher jobs getting promotional
23 opportunities.
24 So we anticipate starting with
25 four. Then based on what kind of
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2 turnover we have iIn the trades fields and
3 what kind of civil service list, et

4 cetera, we will see 1T we"re going to

5 expand that program or stick with the

6 four and see 1T that"s like a good mix

7 complementing our veterans with the

8 students.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.

10 All right. Thank you.

11 Councilman Jones.

12 COUNCILMAN JONES: Thank you,
13 Mr. Chairman.

14 And on that note, we"ve been

15 asking every department to vigorously

16 over the years actually to look at a

17 high-school-to-work opportunity. In

18 light of the DROP program, in light of

19 attrition, in light of recruiting people
20 at a pay scale that i1s a little less
21 competitive than the private sector, that
22 we felt this would be an opportunity. So
23 we will continue to check on your
24 progress in that regard.
25 I want to go to the 1.1, 1
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2 believe, million on improvements to this
3 building. Could you be a little more --
4 I know you said the gate, and what other
5 improvements do you anticipate?

6 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: So we
7 are putting the gates on. So the gates

8 should be up -- we"re partnering with

9 Center City District on that project. So
10 the gates should be installed by the end
11 of this calendar year. So we"re really
12 excited by them, because they"re based on
13 the drawing by McArthur, the architect.
14 He only drew one drawing of the gates.

15 And gates, believe 1t or not, have never
16 been on City Hall, except for those

17 construction gates that are out there

18 now. So they"re based on that drawing.
19 So that takes -- part of the money is for
20 that. Part of the money is for the north
21 apron. So improving the north apron. So
22 now that Dilworth is done, you®ve
23 probably noticed if you come in -- 1f you
24 walk right across, there"s definitely a
25 demarcation line where you can tell
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2 you"re not on Dilworth Park anymore and

3 you"re back on the City park. So we"re

4 going to phase that in. Starting this

5 May, we"re going to do the northwest

6 side. So all the paving will be done.

7 It will mirror what Dilworth looks like.
8 It won"t be granite, but 1t will be a

9 nicer finish. And we also have iIn the

10 Capital Budget some design work set aside
11 for the portals. So we"re going to

12 actually look and see what we need to do
13 with the lighting, what we need to do to
14 clean them up with the statues and all

15 that beautiful artwork that"s In there.
16 IT you go through them now, the portals
17 are a little scary, to say the least. So
18 we want to brighten them up, make them

19 more of an entranceway into the
20 courtyard.
21 We"re actually working with the
22 Water Department on some cool ideas of
23 what to do iIn the courtyard to make that
24 more of a destination rather than a
25 passthrough.
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2 And, finally, we have an

3 exterior maintenance plan that hasn"t

4 been fully funded since the exterior

5 project continued a few years back. So

6 we are going to -- we have about $300,000
7 set aside for that, which we"re going to
8 be taking care of some of the issues that
9 we maybe haven®"t been quite up to date on
10 to this point.

11 COUNCILMAN JONES: So one of

12 the issues that I have with all of the

13 wonderful 1.5 million visitors coming to
14 the City of Philadelphia, | anticipate an
15 increased amount of traffic iIn this

16 building. By way of security, we need to
17 take this opportunity to take a look at
18 not just the second floor but the fourth
19 floor, because, you know, the Mayor
20 enjoys a whole platoon that guards him.
21 The only thing we have up here i1s Shump.
22 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: You"re
23 In very good hands with Shump, though, I
24 have to say. |1 feel safe around Shump.
25 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1 would too,
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2 but even Shump doesn®"t have an S on his

3 chest.

4 So between the Sheriff"s

5 Department, between the Police

6 Department, there needs to be a greater

7 sense of security up here, working with

8 the Sergeant-of-Arms and a plan. We had
9 a scare maybe a month ago now of some

10 powder that was found in our area, and I
11 wasn"t overly impressed with how we

12 handled that. 1t was like everybody was
13 on their own, and, yeah, we cordoned off
14 one of the areas, but I think we can do a
15 little better in light of all of the

16 guests to City Hall. And we are, In my
17 opinion -- and I don"t want to put it out
18 there, but a soft target, and we need to
19 enhance that. And I would be iInterested
20 In you providing to the Chair some
21 suggestions on how to, A, | want
22 beautification, but I also want people to
23 come to this public building and be safe.
24 So i1f you could look into that and
25 provide a plan to the President, that
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2 would be good.

3 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Sure.
4 Can 1 jump in for one second just to let
5 you know that we are working with the

6 Office of Emergency Management and

7 Homeland Security, both the City"s

8 Homeland Security and the federal

9 Homeland Security. They"ve done a

10 complete assessment of this building from
11 a security standpoint and the rest of the
12 triplex, and there is a plan. So we will
13 share that with you. And then what we"re
14 doing 1s, we prioritize all the

15 facilities in the City. So A priority

16 are the ones that we need to shore up the
17 most, and that"s City Hall, the triplex,
18 and the DA"s Office.

19 COUNCILMAN JONES: Within that
20 prioritization, 1 want the fourth floor
21 to be --
22 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1 will
23 make special note of that.
24 COUNCILMAN JONES: 1 know
25 there"s often been some tension between
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2 the second floor and the fourth floor,
3 but I don"t want that to --
4 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: That
5 would not crowd our security plans.
6 Absolutely.
7 COUNCILMAN JONES: On another
8 note, the Wissahickon Avenue BRAC site,
9 which was the Germantown Veterans
10 Memorial Army Reserve Center located at
11 5200 Wissahickon Avenue, there"s a
12 closure plan. Do you have ideas about
13 what we"re going to do with that 4.9 acre
14 site, 330,000 square feet? 1"m putting
15 It out there so that 1f anybody wants to
16 market that, we would be interested.
17 What are our plans for that?
18 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Do you
19 mean the Wissahickon BRAC that --
20 COUNCILMAN JONES: Yes.
21 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: So
22 Narcotics has already moved In. So we"ve
23 done the fTirst phase of the project. The
24 second phase of the project i1s for
25 Citywide Vice to go in, Civil Affairs.

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 106

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 So there®s a part two to this. Funding

3 allowed us to complete that first part.

4 We anticipate we have some funding in for
5 design for the second piece, and we plan
6 on putting more police force i1n there,

7 SO —-

8 COUNCILMAN JONES: At 1ts

9 optimal capacity, how many civilian and
10 uniformed personnel do you anticipate up
11 there?

12 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1

13 don"t have the exact number. 1 have the
14 exact number of units is eight, but I can
15 get you the actual number of people that
16 are In each unit.

17 COUNCILMAN JONES: Okay. So 1if
18 you could let us know, because 1t impacts
19 traffic patterns. It Impacts -- and
20 there might be some opportunities for
21 businesses that might consider that area
22 to come up there because of the new
23 customers. So working with us on that
24 would be good.
25 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:

3 Councilman Neilson.

4 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Good

5 afternoon.

6 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Good
7 afternoon, Councilman.

8 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Last time
9 you were here in front of us we

10 identified $18 million of unused funding
11 from last year for capital improvements
12 to some of our police stations, and we
13 spoke about you getting us a list of

14 priorities. We have yet to receive that.
15 I was just wondering how we were making
16 out with that.

17 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1t

18 came over in a link in a file. You

19 didn"t -- 1 did send 1t over.
20 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: 1 believe
21 you did, Bridge. 1 believe you did. 1
22 would have loved to have had 1t In front
23 of me today.
24 Today you talked about the
25 exterior project right here, maintenance
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2 project, on City Hall. Many historical
3 structures throughout the country have a
4 restricted revenue stream that goes iInto
5 the forever restoration and taking care
6 of such an asset as City Hall, and 1
7 don"t see that ask or anything like that.
8 I never see anybody talking about it
9 because 1t"s such -- this i1s the
10 cornerstone of our city.
11 Has there been any talk from
12 the Administration or anyone about
13 starting a restricted revenue fund to
14 have a funding stream that goes in there
15 that 1s untouchable by any elected
16 official and can only be utilized on
17 saving this asset?
18 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: There
19 i1Is no plan to have that yet. 1 have been
20 In conversations about that with
21 different stakeholders, you know, that
22 are actually very interested in
23 preserving this building because, like
24 you side, it"s iconic. | believe the
25 last more serious conversations on that
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2 topic were starting a "friends of'" group
3 of sorts, you know like how you have the
4 Friends of the Library. So the Friends

5 of City Hall and having 1t more of a

6 private entity.

7 Now, what the Administration

8 has done this year i1s given -- well,

9 actually we"re asking for the

10 appropriation, the $300,000, which is a
11 start. It"s never been -- actually,

12 we"ve never had a dedicated exterior

13 maintenance line i1tem for City Hall, and
14 now we possibly will. So i1t"s a start.
15 But as for dedicated like you"re talking
16 about, a reserve fund, no.

17 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: How much
18 money 1S In your budget to take care of
19 the inside of City Hall? Because we know
20 there®"s -- | mean, the outside to make it
21 look pretty on the outside so people
22 drive by is great, but what about the
23 inside of City Hall?
24 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1t
25 fluctuates. | mean, we have a $57
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2 million budget in facilities, okay? So

3 that takes care of -- and there's

4 numerous things that are involved with

5 that. 1It"s not just taking care of the

6 interior of City Hall, the interior of

7 the Police and Fire stations. There®s

8 contracts on that. There"s some utility
9 pieces In that. But It"s just iIn one pot
10 of money. We don"t really separate it

11 out, except with the personnel. Like

12 Class 100 we do. We now have this new

13 work order system where we"re starting to
14 figure out how to pair it out. We just
15 purchased an inventory module, so we can
16 actually not only just have the people

17 that are dedicated to just working in

18 City Hall and handling these projects,

19 the 1nventory will go right along with
20 it. So you®ll be able to say, Okay, this
21 job costs X amount of dollars because we
22 used this many supplies, this many
23 people, this i1s the equipment, et cetera.
24 We literally just purchased that piece
25 within the past few months, past month.
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2 So 1 could get you a better number on

3 that after we start tracking it that way.
4 Absolutely.

5 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: That would
6 be great.

7 Retrofitting financing, we have
8 a lot of aging facilities, and just take
9 the electric, for iInstance. It changes
10 daily and the conservation of electricity
11 and energy to save us iIn the long run.

12 Are there any plans on having any of

13 these RFPs out on the street for our own
14 facilities to have them finance It at no
15 cost? It"s kind of like the savings. We
16 pay for it through savings.

17 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Well,
18 we actually -- 1 don"t know if Adam is

19 here. He wanted to talk about Noresco.
20 So we have the Noresco program that
21 happens in City Hall. So to date, |
22 believe from them -- and I can let Adam,
23 who i1s the head of the Energy Office,
24 speak on this much more i1n detail than I
25 would. We saved about 2 million so far
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2 In rebates and i1n seeding. So rebates

3 that we"ve gotten back and whatnot. Adam
4 could give you all the details on that,

5 but 1 know that, yes, we absolutely are

6 involved i1n those types of programs, and
7 Noresco has been the first one.

8 (Witness approached witness

9 table.)

10 MR. AGALLOCO: Adam Agalloco.
11 I*m the Energy Manager for the City of

12 Philadelphia.

13 The City has recently completed
14 in January the first guaranteed energy

15 savings project for the quadplex, which
16 iIs City Hall, the One Parkway Building,
17 Municipal Services Building, and the

18 Criminal Justice Center. And as Bridget
19 mentioned, that project has saved $2
20 million just In the construction phase of
21 the project. Now we"re entering into the
22 performance phase where we"re projected
23 to save $1.4 million annually in utility
24 costs. That"s both electricity, natural
25 gas, some steam, and water conservation.
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2 So we"re looking at that model for other
3 facilities, City facilities. It works
4 specifically -- or especially well for
5 large facilities. There"s not really as
6 much of an appetite from the providers to
7 do this on three police stations or
8 smaller facilities. But i1t Is something
9 we"re constantly looking at, and we"ve
10 got some projects that we"re looking at
11 getting off the ground now that we"ve got
12 the first one completed and constructed.
13 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: How about
14 our leased spaces? The people we"re
15 doing leases with, are we asking them and
16 making certain that their facilities
17 are --
18 MR. AGALLOCO: We do. We have
19 a set of kind of criteria that came out
20 of the Facilities Task Force that looks
21 at basically green leasing. We have
22 not -- I"m not sure i1t that"s been
23 incorporated into active leases.
24 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD:
25 Actually, right now we"re actually going

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 114

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 through our first competitive process for
3 a larger lease since the Task Force has

4 been out. So we"re not at that stage

5 yet, because 1t"s actually just iIn the

6 beginning stages of getting some

7 competitive bids.

8 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: All right.
9 Last question, Mr. Chairman, 1f 1 may.

10 Can you i1dentify any structures
11 that 1t would be cost effective to

12 completely demolish rather than holding
13 together another ten years with all these
14 little tiny projects?

15 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: We

16 actually have no official ID buildings as
17 1dentified.

18 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Like the
19 22nd District that 1"m sure the President
20 will bring up shortly.
21 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD:
22 Actually, in doing the structural
23 analysis of the 22nd District, 1t 1s not
24 one of our worst structural districts.
25 The 2nd and the 15th District, the
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2 combined district, is our top priority at
3 the moment and where we"re going to be

4 doing some -- we"ve done the structural

5 assessment and whatnot and we"ll1 be doing
6 a larger capital project on that

7 facility. In that list that |1 sent over,
8 that®"s on that list.

9 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: So, 1

10 mean, but take the 2nd and 15th, which we
11 may know well. Is there any talk about
12 separating them two and constructing two
13 smaller facilities, more energy

14 efficient, better laid out? Because I

15 know there we have the northeast -- they
16 have probably six different entities in
17 there that try and do business, enter one
18 door, go through this one, down this

19 hallway maybe you"ll see them at the end.
20 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD:
21 Actually that plan that we were talking
22 about to do the full assessment that the
23 Planning Commission is heading up, It"s
24 actually going to i1dentify and come up
25 with a plan for exactly what you"re
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2 talking about, should the two districts
3 be split up, should the 22nd be combined
4 with the fire station and be moved to a
5 different location. |It"s going to be
6 based on the operations of that unit and
7 of those specific units, the demographics
8 of the area, where population has shifted
9 and whatnot.
10 So, I mean, | have heard
11 conversations about splitting up the 2nd
12 and the 15th. Whether that will pan out
13 when they actually do the assessment of
14 all the Police and Fire districts in the
15 City, I™m not so sure, but you are right,
16 and right now i1t 1s very highly
17 populated, those two police districts
18 together, and they have Northeast
19 Detectives up there and whatnot. So what
20 we"re doing is based on the population
21 they have there, trying to make 1t -- you
22 know what 1 mean? Trying to fix all the
23 structural issues, which aren"t
24 structural where the property is falling
25 down, but just some of the infrastructure
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2 Issues, and then making the area itself

3 more modern where they could actually

4 have a little bit of room for themselves
5 and not be --

6 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: And even

7 as you go through this process, 1°d ask

8 that you look at commingling services

9 like up on Bustleton Avenue, the Bowler
10 Street. They have the Police iIn the

11 rear, Fire in the front, and it works

12 together, and then they have a Council

13 office. Councilman Brian O"Neill is

14 upstairs.

15 COUNCILMAN O®NEILL: [I™m pretty
16 sure she®"s been there a few times.

17 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Just the
18 commingling, maybe we can save on some of
19 our leasing, our mini city halls and
20 stuff and just commingle them, build one
21 nice facility. We just did an -- Engine
22 38 just relocated a few years back, and I
23 was surprised that we didn"t -- that
24 would have been a great time to split the
25 2nd and the 15th and just add a few
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2 hundred thousand dollars and have a brand
3 new police facility there. 1It"s just

4 surprising that that wasn"t there.

) COMMISSIONER GREENWALD:

6 Actually, as part of our plan and part of
7 Everett Gillison, the Deputy Mayor of

8 Public Safety and the Mayor®s Chief of

9 Staff, one of his mandates is co-locate.
10 So as | was saying, for the 22nd, for

11 instance, the fire station there, like

12 co-locate those two together. We just

13 did one with the Police Department with
14 the Crime Victim where we co-located

15 Special Victims and DHS services and the
16 Children®s Alliance.

17 So 1t just makes sense, and |
18 absolutely agree with you. It makes

19 sense, and 1 think we would gain some
20 great efficiencies to actually do things
21 of that nature.
22 So 1 believe when -- like |
23 said, Planning has actually taken the
24 lead on the plan, because i1t"s involving
25 the whole City, and actually their
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2 district plans will feed into 1t. So I

3 would imagine that co-locations are going
4 to be a big recommendation in that plan.
5 COUNCILMAN NEILSON: Thank you
6 very much for coming.

7 I have nothing further,

8 Mr. President.

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

10 Thank you, Councilman.

11 Real quick and then 1711 call
12 Councilwoman Blackwell. With respect to
13 co-location, the assumption iIs that i1t

14 requires a larger space. Do you agree?
15 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: 1t

16 depends. So we"ve actually been able to
17 when we®ve been doing some

18 reconfigurations of space now In existing
19 space, we"ve actually shrunk the space
20 because people -- like where in the past
21 everyone had the big office and they had
22 bigger cubicles and whatnot with the high
23 walls. Now the way is to have everything
24 more open and give you more touchdown
25 space, 1t"s called. So basically you
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2 come iInto the office. You have your

3 laptop, your computer or whatever you

4 have, your mobile device, and you have

5 some room like some overhead space and

6 some cabinet space for your stuff and

7 then you®"re back on your day. So it

8 could go either way.

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Let
10 me be more specific. You know, 22nd

11 Police District is the smallest, tightest
12 space i1maginable. |If you were going

13 to -- because 1 think 1 heard you say

14 possibly co-locating that with a fire

15 station. So that space i1s extremely

16 small. It"s almost like a little doll

17 house. So we would have to co-locate

18 that at a different location with the

19 fire station. My question centers around
20 space and acquisition of land, because up
21 in that particular area, there"s not a
22 significant parcel of land where that is
23 strategically placed. Acquisition takes
24 a whille. As part of the process, 1Is
25 there any discussion or consideration
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2 about the site? Because you can go

3 through a process and say, Okay, we

4 finally have a design, and then you don"t
5 have anywhere to put 1t. So that should
6 be a part of the conversation, because

7 usually site control i1s the most

8 important part of development. So you

9 probably want to --

10 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: We"ve
11 actually been in discussions with the

12 Planning Commission and the Redevelopment
13 Authority on what does some ideal space
14 look like to actually do exactly what

15 you"re saying and where would that be.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: At
17 22nd and Diamond. You don®"t have to pay
18 me a dime. All right?

19 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Okay.
20 I will take that under advisement and
21 pass 1t along to the group.
22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
23 Southeast corner of 22nd and Diamond, big
24 space, significant now. 1"m saying this
25 now and somebody will -- a speculator
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2 will run out there and buy the property
3 at Sheriff Sale.
4 All right. But I"'m serious
5 about that.
6 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Yes.
7 I"m serious too. We have had a
8 conversation about it.
9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 1
10 don®"t want to go through all this process
11 and then we don"t have anywhere to put
12 it.
13 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: In
14 total agreement with that.
15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: The
16 Chair recognizes Councilwoman Blackwell.
17 COUNCILWOMAN BLACKWELL: Thank
18 you.
19 Mine was small. Just a thank
20 you. Whenever we have questions or
21 concerns and we call the Commissioner,
22 she®s always informed and always helpful.
23 Thank you.
24 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: You"re
25 welcome. Thank you.
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2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

3 Thank you, Councilwoman.

4 The Chair recognizes Councilman
5 O"Neill.

6 COUNCILMAN O*NEILL: Thank you,
7 Mr. President.

8 Commissioner, once again, thank
9 you for just about as quick a response as
10 anybody i1s able to deliver at your

11 department, and thorough. So I really

12 appreciate i1t, and I know the other

13 members do as well.

14 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Thank
15 you.

16 COUNCILMAN O"NEILL: But 1 just
17 have a specific question about the new

18 Police Training Center, the Academy

19 without the ballistics, which will stay
20 over on State Road. The big part of
21 working with the neighbors was the access
22 road that will go north and south off of
23 Comly. The Normandy neighborhood already
24 has a heavy-duty shortcut to Woodhaven
25 Road through 1t that we"re working on,
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2 but with just what"s there now. The road
3 hasn®"t started yet. |1 know i1t"s delayed
4 in terms of where the building i1s, but
5 can you tell me why 1t"s been delayed and
6 what the lag time will be between the
7 building going In and that access road?
8 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Let me
9 see 1T 1 actually have the date.
10 No, | don"t have the date of
11 the road, but 1 can definitely get you
12 that. We anticipate that the actual
13 facility will be filled with the Police
14 Training Unit In the summer and then
15 those various units from 990 Spring
16 Garden. The road is coming after that,
17 but let me get you an exact date on when
18 it 1s. | know 1t"s been held up.
19 COUNCILMAN O"NEILL: Good,
20 because 1 get a lot of questions on It.
21 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Sure.
22 COUNCILMAN O"NEILL: The
23 building 1s looking great, by the way.
24 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: The
25 building looks great and | have to say
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2 our team that"s on that, Francis, who has
3 been the project manager, and our

4 deputies have been up there. They have a
5 Job meeting every Tuesday where they"re

6 out there like really hammering home,

7 bringing this in, and 1t"s on schedule

8 and 1t"s on budget and everything is

9 working out, knock wood, pretty well.

10 And 1t 1s, 1t"s a really nice-looking

11 building. | was up there about a month
12 ago.

13 COUNCILMAN O"NEILL: And 1t was
14 a real good iInteraction with the

15 community, both from Everett Gillison"s,
16 Chief of Staff"s, Deputy Mayor®s

17 standpoint, your department. A lot of

18 good listening going on and reaching

19 consensus on different things. It was
20 very helpful.
21 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Great.
22 COUNCILMAN O"NEILL: So
23 everybody i1s looking forward to it.
24 Thank you.
25 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Great.
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2 Absolutely.

3 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

4 Thank you, Councilman.

5 There appears to be no other

6 Councilmembers teed up. Thank you very

7 much --

8 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Thank
9 yOou .

10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: --
11 for your testimony.

12 COMMISSIONER GREENWALD: Have a
13 good afternoon.

14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

15 Thank you.

16 City Commissioners are due up
17 next. We"ll take a 15-minute break.

18 Thank you.

19 (Short recess.)
20 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Good
21 afternoon. We will reconvene the
22 Committee of the Whole on the FY16
23 Operating Budget. We have the City
24 Commissioners up.
25 Please proceed.

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 127

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 MR. IRVING: Good afternoon,

3 Mr. President. My name is Gregory

4 Irving. 1 am the Department

5 Administrator at the Office of the City

6 Commissioners. | am here joined today by
7 our legal counsel, Fred Voigt. Our

8 Budget Officer, Valerie Crawford-Keith,

9 Is sick today and will not be able to

10 join us.

11 I want to thank you for the

12 opportunity to testify before you today
13 and give a brief summary of our budget

14 request for the coming fiscal year. The
15 total proposed Fiscal Year "16 General

16 Fund budget requested is $9.6 million,

17 which i1s 73,000 less than Fiscal Year "15
18 current estimate due to DC33 employee

19 bonuses that were paid this year.
20 During our current fiscal year,
21 the Department has had several i1mportant
22 achievements. | would like to quickly
23 highlight a few improvements regarding
24 Election Boards.
25 The City Commissioners approved
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2 a second modest increase of $5 to
3 Election Board officials®™ training pay.
4 This Increased the total pay for Election
5 Board officials who attended training
6 from $115 to $120 per election in 2013,
7 General Election, to $125 to $130 in the
8 2014 General Election. We hope these
9 increases will begin to help mitigate the
10 challenge of filling vacancies and
11 contribute to better trained Election
12 Boards.
13 Beginning i1n the 2014 General
14 Election, we recruited, trained, and
15 appointed machine i1nspectors to fill
16 vacancies not fTilled by judges of
17 elections. Through our efforts, we
18 decreased the number of machine iInspector
19 vacancies by 109 between the 2014 Primary
20 Election and the 2014 General Election
21 and are looking to further reduce these
22 vacancies In this upcoming election.
23 The Department began offering
24 Election Board training seminars on
25 Sundays. We iIncreased the total number
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2 of Election Board training seminars per
3 election from 138 i1n the 2013 General

4 Election to 188 in the 2014 General

5 Election.

6 I am now going to provide an

7 overview of the Department"s minority,

8 women, and disabled business enterprise
9 levels and the demographics of our staff.
10 Our department®s current

11 M/W/DBE participation rate is 31 percent.
12 The number of M/W/DBE contracts in our
13 department increased by one from Fiscal
14 Year "14 and the total amount of our

15 M/W/DBE contracts increased by $65,473
16 this fiscal year.

17 The Department®s full staff is
18 composed of 47 percent minority

19 employees, 53 percent white employees,
20 and 30 percent female employees. The
21 Department®s executive staff consists of
22 50 percent minority employees, 50 percent
23 white employees, and 40 percent female
24 employees. We have six full-time
25 bilingual speakers iIn the Department.
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2 Lastly, 1 would like to address
3 how the City Commissioners Office is

4 addressing the investment in our children
5 in closing the 1ncome gap between --

6 excuse me; the income gap themes

7 presented by City Council.

8 The Department strives to

9 educate school children on voting through
10 the City Commissioners and Civil Service
11 staff. We provide voting machine

12 demonstrations and information seminars
13 to school students throughout the City.
14 In 2013, our department began providing
15 each high school iIn the City with voter
16 registration forms, so students who will
17 be 18 at the time of an election may

18 participate.

19 We recently held an information
20 session at the Martin Luther King Day of
21 Service held at Girard College for high
22 school students interested in working as
23 machine i1nspectors on Election Day.
24 Another session is being scheduled during
25 the summer. We are hoping this effort
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2 provides students with a sense of civic
3 duty.

4 Utilizing the Help America Vote
5 Act, the Department has made permanent

6 modifications to school buildings and

7 recreation centers that are used as

8 polling places to make them ADA

9 compliant. This serves the dual purpose
10 of allowing voters with disabilities to
11 have access to a polling place and to

12 make 1t easier for children with

13 disabilities to access a school for

14 education or recreation centers for

15 activities. We hope to work with the

16 School District and Department of Parks
17 and Recreation to utilize more of these
18 funds for this purpose before the HAVA
19 program ends.
20 Income equality: Working with
21 the Office of Human Resources, the City
22 Commissioners have opened career path
23 opportunities for i1ts employees In an
24 effort to better compensate them and to
25 give them valuable experience to be used
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2 when applying for higher level positions.
3 The City Commissioners approved two

4 modest increases for Election Board

5 worker pay, which increased the total

6 stipend from $115 to $120 per Election

7 Day to $125 or $130.

8 In closing, I1*d like to thank

9 the dedicated staff of our department for
10 their hard work and again thank City

11 Council for the opportunity to testify

12 today. We welcome any questions.

13 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

14 Thank you very much for your testimony

15 and thank you for including In your

16 testimony the i1ssues which are very

17 important to us and closing the i1ncome

18 inequality initiative gap by virtue of

19 education. We do believe that people are
20 adequately educated, particularly about
21 the people who ultimately represent them
22 in whatever level of government, iIs very
23 important, and by doing that with young
24 people, i1t puts them In a path towards
25 making sure that they make educated
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2 decisions as i1t relates to who they vote
3 for. So thank you.
4 MR. IRVING: You"re welcome,
5 Mr. President.
6 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
7 Thank you for adhering to that request.
8 You referenced that you have a
9 recruiting process for judges of
10 elections and machine i1nspectors. What
11 exactly i1s that?
12 MR. IRVING: It"s for the
13 machine i1nspectors. The judges are
14 elected positions, Mr. President.
15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So
16 the machine inspectors are appointed?
17 MR. IRVING: Yes. They"re
18 appointed by the Commission.
19 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: You
20 can tell 1t"s been a while since 1%ve
21 been a ward leader.
22 How exactly do you do that
23 recruitment?
24 MR. IRVING: What we do 1s,
25 when people fill out their voter
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2 registration affidavit, 1t they check off
3 the box on the back of 1t which says

4 they"re i1nterested in working the polls,
5 we comprise a listing of those, and what
6 we try to do Is where we have vacancies,
7 we" 1l go through our listing and we"ll

8 see who actually resides in that

9 division. |If i1t"s not the division,

10 we" Il expand 1t and we"ll get the ward.
11 So we try to see 1T these people are

12 actually iInterested. We bring them in

13 and we train them and they serve on the
14 Election Board.

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

16 Interesting. So is that information made
17 available to other individuals who can be
18 recruited, like ward leaders, people who
19 deal with elections on an annual basis?
20 MR. IRVING: Yes, it is.
21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So
22 they“"re familiar, aware of that process
23 where the person can apply essentially
24 for the --
25 MR. IRVING: To my knowledge,
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2 they are.

3 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Can
4 you confirm that? Because | know --

) MR. IRVING: Yes.

6 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 1It"s
7 been a while, but 1 know there was always
8 a challenge i1n identifying people and we
9 were kind of scrambling around at the

10 last minute trying to get people to

11 participate on Election Day.

12 I had a question about this

13 capital request, but 1 think Councilman
14 Greenlee had the same question, so I™m

15 going to defer to Councilman Greenlee.

16 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank

17 you, Mr. President.

18 Good afternoon. First, let me
19 just thank you both, the two of you. |1
20 see First Deputy Commissioner Moss back
21 there, who i1s always very helpful, and
22 everybody i1n the Commissioners Office,
23 very knowledgeable and helpful when we go
24 to them with questions.
25 But as the Council President
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2 said, the issue of new voting machines,

3 and since I1"m still a ward leader, 1™m

4 out there every Election Day, and | guess
5 I haven™t seen a big problem with the

6 machines. And obviously as budgets are
7 tight and we"re looking for places to

8 save, I"m trying to see kind of the

9 reasoning behind. 1°ve heard the age of
10 them. To me they don"t sound that old.
11 I guess | remember the old machines that
12 seemed to be around forever. So could
13 you comment on that a little bit as far
14 as what the need was, as far as you know.
15 MR. IRVING: Yes. In terms of
16 the technology, the current voting

17 technology is now 13 years old. We have
18 seen an iIncrease in the number of power
19 failures and printer problems. We also
20 have i1ssues i1n Election Board committee
21 person races with missing write-in tapes,
22 because our machines only produce one
23 record of write-in votes. We use larger
24 paper ballots, which i1s stored
25 electronically on cartridges. Making
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2 changes to the ballot after i1t is already
3 produced is difficult. Printing paper

4 poll books for one million plus voters is
5 time intensive, which means i1t has to be
6 done weeks prior to the election.

7 In terms of the cost, there was
8 a ten-year warranty associated with the

9 purchase of our current machines. The

10 warranty has expired, which has i1ncreased
11 yearly costs to the Department by more

12 than $500,000 per year. Each year these
13 costs increase. The maximum allowable

14 yearly increase was 5 percent. However,
15 these contracts expire in August of this
16 year. We expect to see further increases
17 In costs because the contracts are held
18 by a sole-source vendor.

19 Our current voting machines are
20 large, which iIncreases the cost for

21 hauling and requires the City to rent a
22 large warehouse where the machines are

23 stored and maintained.

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay. 1
25 guess I"ve been around a long time. |1
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2 remember really large machines. So |

3 guess to me they don"t seem that large,

4 but 1 understand what you"re saying. And
5 the machines, 1 guess you -- what do you
6 anticipate buying, what kind of machines,
7 and how different would they be?

8 MR. IRVING: Well, any machines
9 that we get would have to first be

10 approved by the Department of State, and
11 our Commissioners will be much better at
12 answering that question than 1 would be,
13 Councilman.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.

15 Because, again, as we"re looking to try
16 to find money, 1t"s come up a number of
17 times 1In just our personal discussions

18 about these machines and the need. Like
19 I said, ten years doesn"t sound that
20 long. 1Is that like an unusual long time
21 to have machines?
22 MR. IRVING: 1 would say so,
23 Commissioner.
24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: 1t i1s?
25 MR. IRVING: Yes.
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2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Really?

3 MR. IRVING: With the changing

4 technology, it is.

) COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And you

6 say the complaints have increased

7 significantly?

8 MR. IRVING: Yes.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Because |
10 guess | just haven®"t seen that myself.
11 That"s the reason I"m asking.

12 All right. They"re telling me
13 something I don"t know, Mr. President,
14 but 1°11 go with what they say, but it
15 just 1s —- | just did not see a big -- 1
16 have not seen a big problem with these
17 machines, but, again, 1 just have my

18 little piece of the world there.

19 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

20 Okay. So, Councilman, if | may.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Yeah,

22 sure. Absolutely.

23 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

24 Councilman O"Brien, did you have --

25 COUNCILMAN O"BRIEN: Just as a
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2 point of clarification, the motivating

3 factor isn"t that the machines are

4 breaking down; 1t"s that you want to

5 improve the technology. |Is that correct?
6 MR. IRVING: That 1 am not able
7 to answer. Our Commissioners will be

8 better to answer that question. Sorry

9 that they"re not here today.

10 COUNCILMAN O*"BRIEN: I"m just
11 following up on Councilman Greenlee®s

12 questioning iIn that we haven®t

13 experienced breakdowns In the machines iIn
14 the 57th Ward or his ward. And you had
15 mentioned that because they"re ten years
16 old, that technology has advanced

17 significantly, but, there again, we can"t
18 purchase new technology, new voting

19 machines unless they"re on approved lists
20 from the Department of State, correct?
21 MR. IRVING: Yes, sir.
22 COUNCILMAN O"BRIEN: Okay.
23 Thank you.
24 MR. IRVING: You"re welcome.
25 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
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2 Thank you, Councilman.

3 So I"m going to follow up, if
4 It"s okay. So who wrote that testimony?
5 MR. IRVING: It was written by
6 the office staff and our Deputy

7 Commissioners.

8 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: The
9 staff? Okay. And it didn"t come from
10 the Commissioner?

11 MR. IRVING: No.

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: But
13 yet the Commissioners are the ones that
14 could respond to the questions?

15 MR. IRVING: Yes.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
17 right. So do you have the

18 documentation -- 1"m actually requesting
19 the documentation to show the incidents
20 of disrepair, power shortages, all the
21 other things that you just indicated in
22 your testimony.

23 MR. IRVING: We can provide

24 that to Council, sir.

25 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: And
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2 I want to see, as you referenced, an
3 increase in those malfunctions with the
4 machine. You have all that in detail?
5 MR. IRVING: Yes. They"re
6 charted each election.
7 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
8 right. And the costs associated with the
9 maintenance, which you®re requesting 514
10 for voter machine maintenance, iIs that
11 higher than prior years? What"s the
12 incremental increase in the cost of
13 maintenance?
14 MR. IRVING: That,
15 Mr. President, I am not aware of, the
16 cost for the maintenance.
17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: In
18 the testimony for FY15 you asked an
19 additional 514,000 for voter machine
20 maintenance. So can you also give me a
21 list of Incremental iIncreases, i1f at all,
22 for voting machine maintenance?
23 MR. IRVING: Yes. We"ll see
24 that that"s provided.
25 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
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2 Could you give me that?

3 And I"m going to ask this

4 question, and I 1In no way, shape or form
5 are questioning your integrity, because

6 I*ve known you since -- well, let"s just
7 say I"ve known you a long time. 1 know

8 your mom. We used to work with your mom,
9 so 1 know you personally.

10 My understanding is that this
11 had more to do with the expiration of the
12 warranty than it did as it relates to the
13 condition of the machine?

14 MR. IRVING: That I am not

15 aware of, Council President.

16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
17 right. So do you have the ability to --
18 Is the warranty expired or 1t will be

19 expiring soon?
20 MR. IRVING: The warranty will
21 be expiring in August of this year.
22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So
23 I*m assuming unlike vehicles, you can"t
24 buy an extended warranty?
25 MR. IRVING: That I am not
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2 sure. 1 wasn"t part of the process when

3 they bought these machines and I"m not

4 familiar with the contract.

) COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All

6 right. Because you"re saying that the

7 staff wrote the testimony.

8 MR. IRVING: We had input --

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: But
10 there seems to be a lot of questions that
11 you can"t answer that relate directly to
12 your testimony.

13 MR. IRVING: Right, but all of
14 that will be provided to you. Any

15 questions you ask us today, we"ll provide
16 you with that information, Mr. President.
17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

18 Okay. I mean, you understand the

19 concern. You probably haven®"t been

20 monitoring the hearings, but we do have
21 some fTiscal challenges, and particularly
22 as i1t relates to capital costs. We"re
23 just talking about conditions of Police
24 and Fire stations, and we"ve been told
25 that, well, we can"t really do anything

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 145
1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.
2 until the plan 1s completed, and 1,
3 frankly, as a person who represents the
4 22nd Police District -- and | keep
5 bringing that up because I am a District
6 Councilperson first and foremost -- I1°d
7 much rather like to see us have an
8 opportunity to replace the police station
9 where we have our first responders and
10 that have had some very tragic events
11 over the last couple of years as opposed
12 to buying new machines. And you®re
13 saying that we only have one source? Is
14 there only one vendor?
15 MR. IRVING: Yes.
16 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Why
17 Is that?
18 MR. IRVING: That I am not sure
19 why --
20 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Is
21 it only one --
22 MR. IRVING: You have to have
23 the same type of machine throughout the
24 county, and they could only purchase that
25 from one vendor.
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2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 1

3 mean, the City of Philadelphia is a

4 county. I mean, I understand that. It"s
5 different In other municipalities across
6 the -- so we can get whatever kind of

7 machine we want in the City of

8 Philadelphia because we"re a county also.
9 MR. IRVING: It has to be the
10 exact same machine that"s i1n 58th Ward,
11 the same that"s iIn the 1st. It has to be
12 countywide the exact same voting machine.
13 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: That
14 shouldn®t be an i1ssue. Again, | say

15 we"re a city and a county. And 1

16 understand the need to have that

17 uniformity. Have we not gotten other

18 responses when we do a solicitation for
19 machines, or what i1s that process?
20 MR. IRVING: 1 am not actually
21 part of that process.
22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Who
23 is?
24 MR. IRVING: Our Commissioners
25 are.
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2 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So
3 let me ask you this question, and 1
4 understand why, when the Commissioners
5 are running for reelection, why they
6 don"t necessarily play the same role that
7 they traditionally do on other elections,
8 off elections. Why can"t they be a part
9 of this budget process? And i1s there a
10 requirement by law that they can"t be a
11 part of the budget process? And I'm only
12 asking that question because there seems
13 to be a lot of the issues relating to
14 this testimony that they are the only
15 ones that can answer.
16 It doesn"t matter who. We
17 don"t know?
18 MR. IRVING: As far as 1| know,
19 since they recused their self, they don"t
20 have any dealings with the operations,
21 the day-to-day operations.
22 MR. VOIGT: That"s correct.
23 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: 1
24 mean, why? |Is that law or Charter
25 prohibition?
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2 MR. VOIGT: Their involvement
3 iIs limited by statute. 1It"s not iIn the
4 Charter. 1It"s in the state statute.
) COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
6 State statute?
7 MR. VOIGT: Yes, iIn the
8 Election Code.
9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
10 right. 1 just want to know.
11 MR. VOIGT: 1It"s the state
12 Election Code, which requires that they
13 recuse themselves.
14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: From
15 anything?
16 MR. VOIGT: From anything.
17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
18 Budget testimony or anything?
19 MR. VOIGT: That"s correct.
20 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
21 You"re sure? Because you know 1"m going
22 to check.
23 MR. VOIGT: They"re out of it
24 entirely.
25 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
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2 right. Okay. Because 1 respect you two

3 gentlemen, 1 will not continue to pursue

4 that line of questioning, but I will

5 check. Okay. [I1"m not feeling the $22

6 million request, just me personally,

7 speaking as a Councilperson at this point

8 in time, and as a person that does --

9 although I"m no longer a ward leader, I™m
10 very familiar with the process and | just
11 don"t see the level of -- we got a couple
12 of ward leaders that do work here as
13 Councilmembers. 1°m just not seeing the
14 level of malfunction that you“"re
15 referencing today, but, as you say,

16 you"ll get that information to us?

17 MR. IRVING: Yes.

18 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
19 right.

20 The Chair recognizes Councilman
21 Greenlee.

22 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Yeah.

23 Just quickly, not to belabor this point,
24 but as far as the age of the machines, iIn
25 other counties -- 1t seemed like ten
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2 years you were saying, Mr. lrving, was

3 sort of the breaking point. Are there

4 other counties that have them longer or

5 shorter, or do you know?

6 MR. VOIGT: Yes.

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Mr.

8 Voigt, could you detail a little bit.

9 MR. VOIGT: Well, the same kind
10 of machine you"ll find in Bucks and

11 Delaware County and Dauphin County.

12 Dauphin County has had these machines the
13 longest and they"ve had them since the

14 1980s.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: So quick
16 math tells me like 30 years or so, right?
17 MR. VOIGT: That"s Dauphin

18 County.

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: What
20 about the Bucks and Delaware County?
21 MR. VOIGT: They"re much
22 sooner. They"re around, 1 think, five
23 years. They came after we did.
24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: They came
25 after, okay.
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2 MR. VOIGT: And the State of

3 Delaware also uses these machines.

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: The State
5 of Delaware. How long have they had

6 them; do you know?

7 MR. VOIGT: They"ve had them

8 for about 20 years.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And

10 they"re not, as far as you know, not

11 looking to replace them?

12 MR. VOIGT: 1 can"t speak to

13 that.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: All

15 right. So Dauphin has had 1t for 30

16 years. The whole State of Delaware has
17 had 1t for 20, and we"re only at nine and
18 we"re asking for new ones. All right.

19 I*m just stating something for the
20 record.
21 To me, Mr. President, that says
22 something, you know. Somehow Delaware
23 has been able to survive for that long,
24 as 1s Dauphin County.
25 And 1 think the whole State of
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2 Delaware has got to be right around us,

3 right, as far as numbers?

4 MR. VOIGT: 1 can"t speak to

5 that.

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: All

7 right. Okay. 1°"m not going to beat it

8 up. Okay. Thank you.

9 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: No,
10 I"m not either, but this is a $22 million
11 request and there has to be some
12 justification for that.

13 So can we anticipate -- | guess
14 we can"t, because the Commissioners are
15 candidates through November.

16 MR. VOIGT: That"s correct.

17 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So
18 we basically have a budget process that
19 will be concluded way before these people
20 will then be able to discuss this issue
21 in a public forum.

22 MR. IRVING: Yes.

23 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
24 right. So would you suggest that this

25 particular request can"t be revisited
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2 after they"re elected? 1Is it that

3 critical or crucial that this money be

4 made available In this fiscal year?

5 MR. IRVING: 1 can"t speak to

6 that, Councilman.

7 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: So

8 when people can answer questions about a
9 $22 million request.

10 MR. IRVING: 1 can"t speak to
11 that, Councilman. [I"m sorry.

12 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: That
13 would be the Commissioners.

14 MR. IRVING: Yes.

15 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: All
16 right. Okay. Well, you two gentlemen

17 are In an unenviable position today, and
18 as | said, I1"ve known you all, so I know
19 you have real credibility. 1It"s just
20 unfortunate that you have to be put in
21 the position where you are not iIn a
22 position to answer questions about a $22
23 million request.
24 Okay. Thank you. There are no
25 other questions. | want to thank you
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2 very much for your testimony.
3 MR. IRVING: Thank you.
4 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Have
5 a good day, gentlemen.
6 (Witness approached witness
7 table.)
8 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Good
9 afternoon.
10 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: Good
11 afternoon, sir.
12 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: 1I"m joined
13 by —-
14 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
15 Mr. Vignola, i1t"s okay.
16 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: --
17 Mr. Vignola, who is the Undersheriff, and
18 certainly you see i1in my background that I
19 have what you call backup in law
20 enforcement. So you can see where we"re
21 well diverse here that would answer to
22 any questions of the diversity of the
23 Sheriff"s Office. But, again, 1 want to
24 say good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and
25 thank you for allowing us to come before
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2 this Committee as we talk about the

3 accomplishments of the Sheriff"s Office
4 and some of our requests and some of our
5 concerns that we have to make the

6 Sheriff"s Office more efficient and more
7 transparent.

8 As you know, we built -- may I
9 proceed? 1 didn"t ask for permission to
10 proceed yet.

11 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: No,
12 Sheriff, you"re way deep into your

13 testimony. There®s no way 1 would

14 suggest that you stop, sir, Mr. Sheriff.
15 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Okay. As
16 you know, we"ve built a new data

17 management system, which helped our

18 office become more transparent and more
19 efficient. This year we will be able to
20 turn in over $60 million in delinquent
21 taxes and fees to the City of
22 Philadelphia. It looks as though the new
23 computer system -- and thank you for
24 allowing us to get that new system. Over
25 the last several years, the Sheriff"s

Page 155

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 156

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 Office has been i1In need of that new

3 computer system.

4 In the past, people have lost

5 their homes as a result of a mortgage

6 foreclosure or a tax sale, and we"ve been
7 able to return over to -- this year i1t

8 will be over $5 million back to the

9 public. Years prior to us coming into

10 the office, 1t used to take a long time
11 for people to get their money back if

12 they lost their property as a result of a
13 mortgage or tax sale.

14 Also with our new computer

15 system, we"re able to now give people

16 their deeds, because we"re now doing i1t
17 electronically. Instead of them waiting
18 for a year or year and a half to get

19 their deeds to be recorded, we can do
20 It -- we can get 1t back to them within
21 about 45 days now.
22 We transport about 125,000
23 prisoners a year. To this date, we"ve
24 been able to do i1t successfully without
25 any really major incidents or accidents,
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2 and that"s, | guess, to the credit of our
3 In-service training and making sure that
4 we talk about safety to our men and women
5 of our office, to make sure that they"re
6 driving 1n a manner that is respectful to
7 the safety and the Pennsylvania driving
8 rules and regulations.
9 We protect about 149
10 courtrooms, and now we have about 22 more
11 since the new Juvenile Courthouse at 1501
12 Arch Street. We have about 27 new
13 courthouses. We were able to hire,
14 thanks to Council and the Nutter
15 Administration, we were able to hire 88
16 new deputies since 2013, and we"re almost
17 at the mark of having that 100 percent
18 coverage of the courthouses. We"re still
19 moving people around. We have people now
20 in training who will be out sometime 1iIn
21 August or September time period, and we
22 should -- hopefully we should be able to
23 Tfulfill the needs of the courts iIn those
24 buildings.
25 We took over a 48 unit of the
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2 FJD Warrant Unit. We took that unit
3 over, and we"re able to supervise them
4 and give them the proper training. Over
5 the years they lacked the training that
6 IS needed to serve warrants on the Civil
7 Rules of Procedures. We supervise them.
8 There was an agreement between the
9 courts, City Administration, and the
10 Sheriff"s Office that we would monitor
11 them and oversee their unit. They"re the
12 folks who are responsible for the people
13 who are on the electronic monitoring
14 systems. In other words, as long as
15 people are put on these electronic
16 monitoring systems, there need to be
17 someone to monitor them to keep them from
18 absconding. There have been several
19 incidents where folks in the past have
20 gotten off of the monitors, and our unit
21 working with the FJD, we"re able to
22 capture them.
23 Just as recent, there was a
24 gentleman who was wanted by the FBI for
25 bank robberies and he was wanted under a
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2 warrant for a rape, and our unit was able
3 to catch this person because he was a
4 part of the monitoring system. So as we
5 begin to support this Warrant Unit, we"re
6 able to do more efficient work as we were
7 obligated and contracted to do under the
8 MOU to make sure that we were monitoring
9 people who are in that system.
10 Also, we have -- the 40 new
11 deputies that we have working with us has
12 helped us 1n doubling the collections, as
13 well as the new computer system has
14 helped us make our deeds more -- make our
15 deeds come back more faster and make our
16 office more efficient iIn a transparent
17 way. The new systems, all the processes
18 that we"ve been requested over the last
19 year or so, working with Council and
20 working with this Administration, we were
21 able to put new deputies in place. We
22 were able to satisfy the courthouses. To
23 this day, we had zero incidents of people
24 escaping. There has been no major
25 incidents of any problems that we have
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2 with the public or our deputies in a

3 negative fashion. We now have three K-9
4 dogs. In the past, there was no K-9

5 dogs. We have a bomb detection dog. We
6 have a patrol dog, and we have a narcotic
7 detection patrol dog, as well as 12 new

8 bike unit -- we have 12 new deputies who
9 are assigned to our bike unit, and our

10 bike unit has been securing the

11 perimeters around the new courthouses,

12 preventing witness intimidation. We"ve
13 had a big problem with a bunch of witness
14 intimidation complaints.

15 We"ve been asking over the last
16 six months to a year from this

17 Administration for additional clerical

18 positions for clerks who can help us do
19 more work administratively so we can
20 collect more delinquent taxes and we can
21 give more money to the City. Again, if
22 we can get those additional clerks, that
23 would help our office be financially --
24 we coulld generate more revenue and get
25 more revenue to the City and, of course,
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2 It can go to your General Fund.

3 We also are asking for

4 additional deputies that possibly, 1T we
5 can, we can help secure this building.

6 We believe this building i1s i1n need of

7 more of a security relationship between

8 the security agencies and you have with

9 the Sheriff"s Office and the Police

10 Department.

11 The Warrant Unit, as | said

12 before, we are in the process now of

13 working with the City"s HR department and
14 working with the FJD unit so we can have
15 these folks who was in the FJID Security
16 Warrant Unit that they could be certified
17 as a Sheriff Deputy. So that process

18 IS —- that"s an ongoing process and we"re
19 working to get that accomplished.
20 The other i1ssues that we have,
21 we have been very efficient in trying to
22 make sure that we have minority -- our
23 minority numbers are up. We have right
24 now 24 Hispanics, 105 African Americans,
25 and we have 91 non-African Americans and
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2 two Asians Deputy Sheriffs. And all

3 these numbers are new. We have more

4 supervisors. First time in the history

5 of the Sheriff"s Office we have a Latino
6 lieutenant, a Latino staff inspector, and
7 we"re -- our next hiree under the Deputy
8 Sheriff, we"re getting ready to hire two
9 more Deputy Sheriffs who are Latino who
10 will go into our Civil Unit, who serve

11 the writs and evictions process.

12 Again, we want to thank you for
13 our support we"ve been getting from

14 Council 1n our budget. Again, we are

15 awaiting to get those new deputies, 1If

16 that can get approved. | don"t know if
17 it will be a transfer or 1t we can get

18 that approved for our new hired deputies
19 to do additional securing the courthouse.
20 Thank you for your attention,
21 Mr. Chairman.
22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
23 Thank you very much, Sheriff. First, 1
24 want to thank you for your participation
25 every Thursday. We feel much more secure
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2 since you"ve been providing assistance

3 for our Council sessions. And 1 want to
4 also thank you, you personally, for

5 attending our tangled title meetings.

6 The meetings have been very successful,
7 particularly as it relates to turnout,

8 but your staff"s presentation and

9 yourself on one occasion has been

10 extremely helpful, and we look forward to
11 continuing those.

12 I do have a question, and |

13 think you may have referenced i1t iIn the
14 latter part of your testimony when you
15 talked about the clerks and the

16 court-ordered clerical employees. Is

17 that related to the $700,000 request --
18 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yes.

19 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: --
20 for staff and benefits?
21 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yes.
22 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE: And
23 then they will become full time?
24 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yes.
25 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
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2 Okay. With respect to this 100 percent

3 increase i1n delinquent taxes -- well, you
4 got 60 percent -- 60 million In

5 delinquent taxes during your tenure, an

6 increase of funding 100 percent. Is this
7 based on the Sheriff Sale, the

8 traditional sales which you staff, is

9 that money based on that number or is it
10 separate and aside from that number?

11 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yes. 1It"s
12 based on the sales and how we"re able to
13 get people who are -- right now they"re
14 independent contractors who are doing the
15 work of -- the same work as civil service
16 workers, but don"t have any benefits.

17 They"re sitting side by side, but because
18 of their work ethics, they"re working

19 really diligent with us, we"re able to
20 get a lot of this work done. |If we"re
21 able to have more people -- 1T we"re able
22 to get those folks as equal as their
23 counterparts, it would even be better for
24 us as far as morale and probably get more
25 work out of these folks. But, again, we
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2 have increased the amount of money. Last
3 year 1 think it was over $45 million, and
4 now we"re up to about $60 million in
5 collecting those fees, as you know, from
6 water, taxes, and the gas bill. So the
7 more and better staff that we have,
8 particularly with the morale, 1t will
9 help us get more money over to the City.
10 And our new computer system iIs -- | mean,
11 we asked for a new system. Be careful
12 what you ask for, because we"ve been
13 finding out so many different things, but
14 it really has been good for our office,
15 because at least we know where and how to
16 get more revenue to the City and pay back
17 those liabilities that"s owed.
18 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
19 Right. Yeah. 1 know our staff just got
20 new cell phones that don"t work. So I
21 understand about being careful what you
22 ask for. Thank you.
23 The Chair recognizes Councilman
24 Greenlee.
25 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
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2 you, Mr. President.

3 Very quickly. Good afternoon,
4 gentlemen.

5 (Good afternoon.)

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: 1 know

7 the Sheriff*s Office has been serving the
8 Protection Against Abuse Orders. How has
9 that been working? Would you know? How
10 has that enhanced or helped protect the
11 victims of domestic violence?

12 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Well, one of
13 the problems -- and we thank you, because
14 we remember the testimony about the

15 Protection from Abuse Orders is not being
16 served over 6,000, I believe, the last

17 time we spoke. One of the reasons by

18 having this unit, this FJD Warrant Unit
19 working with the Sheriff*s Office, 1T we
20 could i1ncrease the more men and women
21 power to the staff, we would be able to
22 serve more of those Protection from Abuse
23 Orders. We"re meeting with the Women
24 from Abuse organization to work on how we
25 can have the Sheriff"s Office, one of our
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2 units specifically work on serving those
3 Protection from Abuse Orders.

4 The problem we"ve seen over the
5 years 1s that these Protection from Abuse
6 Orders don"t get served, and now the

7 person who is a victim actually get

8 assaulted and then there®"s other issues

9 that go along with 1t. We collect

10 weapons from the folks that we do get

11 notification from and people we could

12 work with in order to get -- to retrieve
13 those weapons because of the information
14 we get from protection from abuse

15 organizations that helps us get more

16 information, but we really need to get

17 more men and women power so that we can
18 have a dedicated unit who will work right
19 on those orders.
20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Obviously
21 a budget i1ssue too.
22 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yes. But we
23 found -- 1 mean, we found a mechanism to
24 get 1t done. It"s just that i1f we had
25 more manpower, we could do that unit and

STREHLOW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
(215) 504-4622

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)



http://www.novapdf.com/

Committee of the Whole
April 28, 2015

Page 168

1 4/28/15 - WHOLE - BILL 150162, etc.

2 cover the courthouses. Right now we"re

3 at 88 percent of covering the

4 courthouses, and with the more men and

5 women power, we could do additional work,
6 but the FJID Warrant Unit helps us out 1iIn
7 meeting that goal.

8 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Of course
9 the sad part of that is how many

10 Protection from Abuse Orders have to be
11 served.

12 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Yeah.

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: That may
14 be the biggest story.

15 Thank you. But thank you for
16 all you do In that field, because 1t"s

17 important.

18 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Thank you.
19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
20 you, Mr. President.
21 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:
22 Thank you, Councilman.
23 There are no other members teed
24 up-. Sheriff, 1 want to thank you very
25 much for your great work and we continue
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2 to look forward to working with you on

3 your budget, and Ms. Rhynhart will be an
4 integral part of that process.

5 SHERIFF WILLIAMS: Thank you,

6 Mr. President.

7 COUNCIL PRESIDENT CLARKE:

8 Thank you.

9 There are no other witnesses to
10 testify today. This concludes this

11 particular day. The Committee will stand
12 In recess until Wednesday, April 29th,

13 2015 at 10:00 a.m., at which time we will
14 reconvene In Room 400, City Hall.

15 Thank you all very much.

16 (Committee of the Whole

17 adjourned at 1:15 p.m.)

18 - - -

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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City of Philadelphia

Recessed Hearing Notice
April 22, 2015

The Committee of the Whole of the Council of the City of Philadelphia held a Public Hearing on
Wednesday, April 22, 2015, and recessed the public hearing until Tuesday, April 28, 2015 at 10:00 AM,
in Room 400, City Hall, to hear further testimony on the following:

150162

150163
150164

150179

An Ordinance to adopt a Capital Program for the six Fiscal Years 2016-2021
inclusive.

An Ordinance to adopt a Fiscal 2016 Capital Budget.
An Ordinance adopting the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2016.

Resolution providing for the approval by the Council of the City of Philadelphia of a
Revised Five Year Financial Plan for the City of Philadelphia covering Fiscal Years
2016 through 2020, and incorporating proposed changes with respect to Fiscal Year
2015, which is to be submitted by the Mayor to the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental
Cooperation Authority (the "Authority”) pursuant to the Intergovernmental
Cooperation Agreement, authorized by an ordinance of this Council approved by the
Mayor on January 3, 1992 (Bill No. 1563-A), by and between the City and the
Authority.

Immediately following the public hearing, a meeting of the Committee of the Whole, open to the pubiic,
will be held to consider the action to be taken on the above listed items.

Copies of the foregoing items are available in the Office of the Chief Clerk of the Council, Room 402, City

Hall.

Michael Decker
Chief Clerk

City of Phitadelphia



DIVISION OF AVIATION
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET TESTIMONY
APRIL 28, 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT MISSION AND FUNCTION

Mission: To improve, operate and develop premier air transportation facifities to serve the Greater Philadelphia
region that delivers superior standards of customer service and excellence while maintaining the highest levels of
safety, security, convenience and efficiency.

Description of Major Services: The Division of Aviation is comprised of the Philadelphia International Airport (PHL)
and the Northeast Philadelphia Airport. The Division of Aviation operates PHL as a self-sustaining entity and is
‘therefore responsible for the granting of all leases and licenses in the operation and use of its facilities.

PROPOSED BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS/FUNDING REQUEST

The Aviation Fund is an enterprise fund of the City. The Aviation Fund is self-supporting, using aircraft landing fees,
terminat building rentals, concession revenue and other facility charges to fund annual expenses. Though it is
budgeted under the Department of Commerce, it is overseen by the Deputy Mayor of Transportation and Utilities.
The FY16 Proposed Budget increases Aviation's budget by an additional $15.1 million (9%) more than the FY15
Current Projection.

Focus areas for FY16 include: _

1) Prepare for this year’s Papal Visit and next year’s Democratic National Convention. The Airport’s preparations
will include security areas and aesthetic enhancements. Both events bring increased domestic and international
travel activity, which should also bolster revenue.

2) Continue the Terminal F Expansion and Renovation Project. The new baggage claim and security checkpoint will
be finished in the spring of 2016.

3) Make progress on all approved Capacity Enhancement Program projects, such as the Stage One Airfield Project,
Terminal Modernization Program, and Consolidated Rental Car Facility.

4) Implement additional improvements to improve the passenger experience through expanded amenities such as
the Arts & Exhibition program, comfort areas, new way-finding signage, digital media, and new and innovative
concessions.

S} Utilize existing capital funding to rehabilitate aging portions of the terminal facilities. Focus is on bathrooms,
roofs, glass replacement, mechanical rooms and other infrastructure needs.

6} Work to improve or maintain the Airport's bond ratings. Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor's (S&P) have
maintained their ratings of “A”, “A2”, and A+, respectively, for PHL's outstanding airport revenue bonds. Fitch
and Moody's affirmed a stable outlook to the Airport, whereas S&P revised its outlook to negative due to the
increasing debt that may be issued as part of the Airport’s future expansion plans and the uncertainty of the size
and breadth of American Airlines’ new network given its recent merger with US Airways. However, S&P stated
that PHL could return to a stable outlook with settled airline agreement terms, which includes American Airlines
position on preserving PHL as a hub operation.

The Division of Aviation operating budget request for FY16 totals $183.4 million, an increase of $15.1 million from the
FY15 original appropriation of $168.7 million. Requested FY16 appropriations will provide sufficient resources to
operate and maintain the 3.1-million square foot terminal complex and 2,370-acre PHL site, as well as Northeast
Philadelphia Airport. Overall, the total FY16 Aviation Fund request is $440.3 million, a 2.9% increase from the FY15
operating budget estimated obligations of $427.5 million. The $12.8 million increase is primarily due to higher salaries
and benefits and increased services due to new and expanded facilities. The first chart below shows the Division of
Aviation’s budget, and the second chart shows the entire Aviation Enterprise Fund's budget, which is inclusive of
funding included in other City department budgets.



Finandial Summary by Class - Division of Aviation

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2016 Difference

Actual QOriginal Estimated Proposed
Obligations ations Obligations ropriations

FY16-FY15

Y
$1,017,867 $2,480,000 $850,000

-
S0

1$168,722,66

Financial Summary by Class - Full Aviation Fund {inclusive of funding included in_other City department budgets

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2016 Differance

Actual Criginal Estimated Proposed

Obligations  Appropriations Ohbligations Appropriations FY16-FY15

Class 200 - Purchase of Services $1086,627,707 $126,341,956 $126,341,456 $137,169,138 $£6'8271682.

$8,839,800

$427,587,043:

Staff Demographics Summary (as of December 2014)

Minority
Fuil-Time Staff 2
Executive Staff 1
Average Salary - Executive Staff T4 $155,928 155,250 ¢ .5160,86 7. $182,1450. -
Median Salary - Executive Staff $155,250 $155,250 $155,250 5152,145

Employment Levels {as of December 2014)

Filled
Full-Time Positions
Part-Time Positions
Executive Positions

FEDERAL DBE Contracts Summary (*as of March 2015) — using Federal Fiscal Year {FFY)
FFY11 FFY12 FFY13 FFY14 FFY15*

Total amount of contracts
Total amount to DBE
Participation Rate

Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business Enterprise {ACDBE) Program Contracts Summary {*as of March 2015
FEY11 FFY12 FFY14 FFY15*

Total amount of contracts
Total amount to ACDBE
Participation Rate
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M/W/DSBE Contract Summary (*as of Degember 2014)

Total amount of contracts 5737487 7 ,14 ,898
Total amount to M/W/DBE ) §_;L7,31_;,818 516‘,‘]‘.‘38,566 525,294,25‘.! $19,973,013 520,;93,918
298 323% Lo 278w v C[ 31

Participation Rate
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PERFORMANCE, CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE (OPERATIONS}

The number of PHL outbound passengers increased slightly in FY14 (0.7%) and the trend is continuing in the first half
of FY15 relative to the same period in FY14 {1.2%). The cost per enplanement, the amount paid by PHL's signatory
passenger airlines for landing fees, per passenger fees, and terminal rents, increased by 11.1% from FY13 to FY14 due
to increased operating expenses that resulted in part from severe winter weather, which impacted FY14 costs for
personal services {overtime), contractual services, and materials and supplies. Additionally, a settlement with the
City's International Asscciation of Fire Fighters Local 22, increased salary and fringe benefits costs, and increases in
FY14 debt service also contributed to a higher cost per enplanement. The estimated cost per enplanement for FY15
also increased by 9.6%, in part to accommodate the payroll and fringe benefit costs attributable to employee salary
increases. The Airport experienced a decrease in aircraft operations with the difference entirely attributable to
commuter atrcraft traffic as PHL's mainline carriers continue to adjust their respective fleet mixes. Operations
decreased by 3.8% from FY13 to FY14 and have decreased slightly in the first half of FY15 compared to the same time
period in FY14. Cargo activity improved in FY14 by 2.0% and through the first half of FY15 {3.5%). Non-airline revenue,
which represents net parking revenue, car rental concession fees, food/beverage/retail concession payments,
advertising revenue, ground transportation fees and the airport hotel concessions, increased by 8.9% in FY14 and is
up 1.4% in the first half of FY15 compared to the same time period in FY14. Non-airline revenue generation is mainly
influenced by enplaned passenger traffic. Increased passenger traffic in FY14 impacted food/beverage/retail
concession, ground transportation and parking revenue. The increase in the estimated revenue for FY15 is based. on
an analysis of each revenue source with a projection of continuing growth in non-airline revenue at PHL. The number
of Airline gates has remained flat at 126 gates,

FY15-
FY14 FY15 FYia FY15
Q1-02 01-Q2 Qi-Q2 Goal

FY14-
Performance Measure FY13 FYi4 FY13
Change

venue (§ million). -
‘, (3 million) , g 97 9 6o
‘Airline Gate B 128 :126.:: 0.0 126" b 0.0%

*The cost per enplanement (CPE) is the amount paid by PHL's signatory passenger airlines for landing fees, per passenger fees, and
terminal rents

DEPARTMENT CHALLENGES

There are several ongoing and current challenges facing the Division of Aviation.

1. A new Use and Lease extension must be negotiated with tenant airlines prior to the current agreement’s
expiration date of June 30, 2015. The Airport’s hub carrier, American Airlines, is still completing its merger
activities. The result of this is that key projects, including the Terminal Modernization Program, have not
progressed as quickly as hoped while American evaluates PHL's role in its network and the amount of capital
investment it is willing to put inte our facilities. PHL continues to meet and work with its airline partners to
remain cost competitive and advance capital projects.

2. The Airport’s maintenance costs continue to increase due to an aging and growing infrastructure. We continue to
look for ways to be fiscally responsible, while maintaining a comfortable and safe facility for our customers. As an
Enterprise Fund, a growing operating budget results in increasing Rates and Charges for our Airline partners at a
time when all businesses have an acute awareness of their economic constraints. Consequently, the rise in our
operating budget will directly impact the Airlines’ willingness to fund large amounts of new capital projects. To
help offset rising maintenance costs, PHL and the airlines are embarking on a series of critical infrastructure
projects, as well as implementing an upgraded version of Maxime, a state-of-the-art computerized maintenance
management system, This project is the cornerstone of a larger enterprise asset management initiative to
improve the performance of Airport facilities, effectively allocate resources, promote cost-effective decision
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making and enhance customer service through faster response, enhanced communication tools and more reliable
facilities.

Fill key staffing vacancies, particularly in our maintenance and facilities units. PHL continues to explore various
targeted recruitment methods and participates in various job fairs to combat these challenges. We also continue
to evaluate retirement forecasts, develop succession plans to best fill vacancies, and strategize with OHR.

Enlarge the bidder pool for professional service and public works contracts from both local and diversity
standpoints, and continued growth in meeting and exceeding our ACDBE Goals. To assist with this effort, in
October 2014, PHL held a Business Opportunity Forum that was attended by nearly 500 business representatives.
Attendees learned about the opportunities at the Airport, received instructions on how to respond to Request for
Proposals and Invitation for Bids, and gained an understanding of diversity certification requirements and
responsibilities. Additional more highly-targeted outreach sessions are also held throughout the year.
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS & INITIATIVES

Air Service: The Philadelphia International Airport (PHL} endeavors to be the region’s alrport of choice by attracting
new airlines to serve the PHL passengers and offering air service to new destinations around the globe. PHL holds the
status of being the trans-Atlantic gateway for US Airways/American Airlines, PHL's dominant carrier. The merger
between US Airways and American Airlines in 2013 has created additional opportunities for PHL travelers to access a
stronger oneworld global airline network. PHL currently offers a generous mix of air carriers that serve over 130
nonstop destinations, including 39 international cities. In alignment with PHL's goal to attract new airlines and offer
new air service, PHL will continue its efforts to expand its air service offerings to underserved domestic and
international markets.

«  American Airlines ~ International. In November 2014, American Airlines announced a second daily nonstop
flight to London {(Heathrow) starting in late March 2015.

= American Airlines — Domestic, In May 2014, US Airways began twice-daily service to Watertown, NY; in June
2014, US Airways began new daily service to Charleston, WV; also in June 2014, US Airways began an
additional daily flight to Lexington, KY and Memphis, TN for a total of three daily non-stop flights to these
cities; in September 2014, US Airways began twice-daily flights to Grand Rapids, Ml; and in October 2014, US
Airways began twice-daily flights to Fort Wayne, IN. Each is operated as US Airways Express.

s (Qatar Airways. In April 2014, Qatar Airways commenced service to Doha, the capital city of the Persian Gulf
state, making Philadelphia its fifth U.S. city. Qatar Airways is the first foreign flag carrier to start service at
PHL in more than two decades, and the first foreign flag carrier to the Middle East from PHL.

=  Spirit Airlines. In October 2014, Spirit Airlines announced new daily nonstop service to Chicage, IL {O'Hare)
that will commence in mid-April 2015. in February 2015, Spirit announced it will begin new daily nonstop
sarvice to Atlanta, GA in June 2015.

» Delta Airlines. In November 2014, Delta Air Lines announced new daily nonstop service to London (Heathrow)
starting in early April 2015.

e Frontier Alrlines. In December 2014, Frontier Airlines began daily nonstop service to Miami, Orlande, and
Tampa Bay, FL, and five days per week service to Cancun, Mexico. in February 2015, Frontier announced it
will begin flights to Atlanta, GA, Charlotte, NC, and Chicago, 1L {O'Hare) in March 2015 and new seasonal daily
nonstop service to Houston, TX and Minneapolis, MN beginning April 30, 2015.

» Southwest Airlines. In February 2015, Southwest Airlines announced daily nonstop service to Dallas Love
Field beginning August 9, 2015,

Advancing PHL's Capacity Enhancement Program (CEP) and Capital Development Program: The CEP is a complex,

long-term multi-billion dollar effort to expand the capacity, improve efficiency, and modernize the facility of the

airport in order to maintain Philadelphia’s competitive position in the region. In addition to Federal funds, the CEP will’
be financed by Airport Revenue Bonds, which will constitute two thirds of the funding, and a variety of other funding

sources such as user fees and additional grants.

PHL has received approval from its airlines partners for over $1.1 billion to advance CEP projects and rehabilitate and
repair the Airport's existing infrastructure. Airside improvements related to the CEP include new taxiways, aircraft
holding bays, and aprons to allow aircraft to queue more efficiently for departure. In 2014 and 2015, phases of the
Stage One Airfield Project got underway with construction of a new taxiway and realignment of an existing taxiway.
The second phase, which is in design, will provide a 1,500-foot extension of Runway 9R-27L that will increase the total
runway [ength to 12,000 feet, providing the capability to accommodate large, long-haul aircraft flying to any peint on
the globe. The Stage One Airfield Project is estimated to be complete by the end of 2017 and will cost approximately
$118 million. Additional airfield work that was completed during 2014 included a $23 million project for the extension
of Taxiway K, which has increased aircraft taxi flow between the terminal complex and runways in both east and west
operations.

PHL will continue to advance the Capacity Enhancement Program (CEP), completing approved projects and forging the
path forward for additional projects. The following capital projects are currently in planning and design:
e Stage One Airfield Project ($118 million budget);
s Terminal Modernization Program {$247 million budget);
e Replacement of the current rental car facility surface lots with a new, multi-story consolidated car facility
($321 million); ‘
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s An automated people-mover system between concourses {530 million design budget);

* The continued rehabilitation of existing airport infrastructure to include security upgrades, roof and window
replacements, escalator upgrades, restroom renovations, roadway improvements, concession program
enhancements and flight information display system upgrades ($67 million);

» Various land acquisition projects

Expansion and Modernization of Terminals: Terminal F, ane of the busiest terminals at PHL, has been upgraded into
the newly revamped and expanded “Central Hub.” Since undergoing a complete makeover, this center of the bustling
facility reopened in 2013 and has doubled in size to 60,000 square feet, featuring five times as many food, beverage
and retail offerings, and a food court seating area that has grown by 400% to 300 seats. Terminal F is also being
expanded and renovated to provide additional facilities for the processing of passengérs and baggage and to enhance
airline operations. The project reconfigures the terminal and adds approximately 80,000 square feet to the existing
205,000-square foot facility. The expansion will include a new baggage claim building on the arrivals roadway with
two baggage carousels; enlarged passenger holdrooms; an enlarged club; crew lounges; additional airline operations
facilities; a corridor linking Terminals F and E to allow passengers to mave between all Airport terminals without
having to leave the secure areas to be rescreened; a redesigned security checkpoint that has additional screening
capacity and incorporates the latest screening technology; and other infrastructure improvements. Construction of
the baggage claim building and ticketing began in late 2013 and is scheduled to be completed in 2016. The total
estimated cost of the Terminal F expansion project is approximately $160 million, and the work will be LEED
{Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) silver certified.

Leadership in Diversity & Inclusion: The Airport is committed to involving disadvantaged business enterprises {DBEs}
that possess the necessary qualifications in its contract and business opportunities. The Airport plays an active role in
setting and monitoring participation goals for the City’s M/W/DSDBE Program, but is also responsible for
administering two federal DBE programs. The first federal program applies to all contracts that utilize grant funding
from the U.S. Department of Transportation. The Airport receives significant funding from the Federal Aviation
Administration, and all of these contracts carry federal DBE goals. The second federal program applies to all Airport
concession contracts (the Airport Concession Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (ACDBE) Program). The Airport’s
Compliance Unit is responsible for following federal guidelines to set separate goals for these two programs, and it is
one of five organizations in Pennsylvania {and the only City arganization) authorized to certify firms for federal DBE
participation. We consistently strive to meet or exceed goals for these three programs, as evidenced by our
achievements:

PHL continues to show its leadership in diversity and inclusion through its contract awards, outreach events and
accolades and has consistently achieved or surpassed its established Disadvantage Business Enterprises {DBEs) goals.
PHL's federal DBE goal for Federal Fiscal Year {FFY) 2014 (October 1, 2013 thru September 30, 2014) was 14.39% and
actual commitments/awards totaled 18.7%. For FFY 2014, the Airport’s ACDBE participation goal was 6.3%, and its
achievement totaled 29.2%. The Airport's M/W/DSBE goal for Fiscal Year 2014 was 30%, and actual
commitments/awards totaled 26.1%.

In October 2014, PHL held a Business Opportunity Forum that was attended by nearly 500 business representatives.
Attendees learned about the opportunities at the Airport, received instructions on how to respond to Request for
Proposals and Invitation for Bids, and gained an understanding of diversity certification requirements and
responstbilities. The event concluded with a networking session connecting prime contractors with minority firms. In
addition, attendees had the opportunity to become familiar with the Airport’s recently launched Job Portal website,
www.phljobportal.org. The site is a resource for both employers needing to fill positions and individuals seeking
employment with PHL, and other related airport entities such as concessions, airlines, car rental companies, as well as
federal agencies, such as the Transportation Security Administration {TSA).

Enhancing the Customer Experience: PHL has continuously enhanced the customer’s experience at the Airport
through its Exhibitions, Hospitality and Concessions programs. PHL has one of the largest, award winning airport art
programs in the country. PHL's Exhibitions Program has presented more than 325 exhibits featuring a variety of
themes in various mediums and art forms. The Airport’s art program was implemented to enhance the airport
experience for the traveling public through visual arts and to provide visibility for regional artists and art institutions.
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PHL’s Exhibitions Program provides millions of visitors from around the world access to a wide variety of art forms by
artists and arts institutions from the Philadelphia area. in 2014, the Arts & Business Council of Greater Philadelphia
presented PHL with the Business & Arts Partnership Award for its acclaimed Exhibitions Program.

In 2014, the Airport made major progress on upgrades of its WiFi system, The number of access points was increased
from 115 to 578, and WiFi data throughput at PHL has increased four-fold.

Just Plane Fun, the Airport's summer-long customer appreciation program, debuted in 2010. Designed to enhance the
airport experience for travelers during the busy summer vacation season, Just Plane Fun offers free daily
entertainment and activities for travelers of all ages, such as beauty makeovers, photo booths and magicians. The
program also offers frequent prometional item giveaways, and an end of summer raffle with great prizes.

PHL launched Ch, Say [t Ain’t Snow! Weather the Blues at PHL in the winter of 201S in response to the glowing
reviews and growing popularity of our “Just Plane Fun” summer program. PHL had four locations featuring
Adirondack chairs, colorful beach umbrellas, and artificial turf. These Sahara Sam locations included five music,
artist’s demonstrations, caricature artists, and giveaways.

To make unplanned overnight stays at the Airport more comfortable for travelers, the Airport introduced its
Enhanced Hospitality Program in 2012. The initiative created designated sleeping zones and passengers are provided
cots, disposable pillows and blankets as well as vanity kits with personal care items.

The Airport’s food, beverage and retail program, featuring some 170 local and national name brand eateries and
shops, has been consistently recognized as one of the best in the industry. Since 2008, the concessions program has
won numerous awards including Best Specialty Retail Program, BfC Connector {Airports Council International — North
America, 2011), Airport with the Best Concessions Management Team, Large Airport Division {Airport Revenue News,
2011), and Highest in Overall Passenger Satisfaction Amenities/Food & Shops, Large Airport Division (JD Power and
Associates, 2008).

Facility Maintenance/Asset Management: To optimize PHL operations and keep assets running at peak performance,
PHL is embarking on implementing an upgraded version of Maximo, a state-of-the-art computerized maintenance
management system. This project is the cornerstone of a larger enterprise asset management initiative ta improve
the performance of Airport facilities, effectively allocate resources, promote cost-effective decision making and
enhance customer service through faster response, enhanced communication tools and more reliable facilities. The
implementation has been divided intc three phases which will take approximately two years to complete. Best
practices and lessons learned have been incorporated into business processes, system design and implementation
plan in order for PHL to achieve its objectives.
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STAFFING

The Division of Aviation FY16 Position request is for 850 full time positions. As of December 2014, the Airport had 776
positions filled, not including temporary employees. The categorization of the workforce is as follows: 70% are men,
and 30% are women including 604 District Council 33 positions (78%), 86 District Council 47 staff {11%), 79 non-
representative (10%) and 7 exempt (1%).

In 2014 the Division welcomed 76 new employees, of which 62% were African-American, 8% were White females, 5%
were Mispanic, 5% Asian, 3% were in the QOther race categery, and the remainder of 17% were white male.

The senior management team at PHL is diverse as well, and includes a Hispanic male (Deputy Director for Capital
Development), two White females (the Airport Chief Operating Officer and the Acting Deputy Director for Finance and
Administration), and three White males (Airport Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Director of Aviation for Property
Management and Business Development, and Deputy Director of Aviation for Operations and Facilities.)

At PHL, 44 staffers are bilingual or multilingual. Among this talented group 22 Janguages are spoken. In addition, one
Airport employee can utilize sign language.

Staff Demographics (as of December 2014)

Full-Time Staff Executive Staff
Male Female Male Female
African-American African-American African-American African-American
Total ‘ 2 Totof 0
% of Total % of Totol 0%
Totol Toto!
% of Tatol % of Total
Totol Total
% of Totol % of Total
Total Totol
% of Totol % of Tota/
Toto! Tatal
% of Totol % of Tatal
Total Tato!
% of Tatal % of Tatof 3 50.0%
Male Female
Total Total
% of Total % af Tatal
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CONTRACTING

M/W/DSBE Participation on Large FY15 Contracts: In October 2014, PHL held a Business Opportunity Forum that was
attended by nearly 500 business representatives. Attendees learned about the opportunities at the Airport, received
instructions on how to respond to Request for Proposals and Invitation for Bids, and gained an understanding of
diversity certification requirements and responsibilities. The event concluded with a networking session connecting
prime contractors with minority firms. In addition, attendees had the opportunity to become familiar with the
Airport’s recently launched its Job Portal website, www.phljobportal.org. The site is a resource for both employers
needing to fill positions and individuals seeking employment with PHL, and other related airport entities such as
concessions, airlines, car rental companies, as well as federal agencies, such as the Transportation Security
Administration {TSA).

Through the years, PHL has received numerous accolades in recognition of its achievements in supporting DBEs in all
areas of Airport development, construction, contracting, leasing, management and employment. In FY14, the
Women’s Transportation Seminar {WTS) Philadelphia Chapter named PHL the recipient of its 2013 Diversity Award.
This award honors an individual, group, or organization that has made significant contributions in promoting diversity
and cultural awareness within their organization, the transportation industry, or in a project or activity that supports
the goals and mission of WTS. Additionally, PHL was the recipient of the Airport Architectural, Engineering, and
Construction Award presented by the Airport Minority Advisory Council at its business diversity conference in lune
2014. This award is given to an airport that has met or exceeded DBE participation goals over two or more years in an
architectural, engineering, or construction project.

M/W/DBE Participation on Large Contracts
FY15 Contracts

MBE: 7-10% {And/Or} 12% 51,313,013
$10,762,400 7772010 &/1/2011 WBRE-7-10% 0% $21,525 13% Yes
50

First Transit Shuttle Bus
Philadelphia, PA Service

MBE: best 3% $145,535
Patkway Garage Ground
Inc. Transpartation $4,399,864 8/27/2010 11/1/2011 | wae: effort 19% $813,975 2% Yes

DSBE: 0% 50
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OTHER BUDGETARY IMPACTS

FEDERAL AND STATE

Grant Funding for Operating Requirements

The Transportation Security Administration (TSA) awards grants on an annual basis to help offset the Airport’s cost of
providing explosive detection through canine teams, and law enfarcement officer support at security checkpoints.
The current TSA Canine contract allocates $665,500 per year to PHL for a total of four years ending in December 31,
2019. The Airport received $665,500 in Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2014. The Law Enforcement Officer (LEQ} Program
funding received in FFY 2014 was $1,209,760. The current LECQ modification, which ends in September 30, 2015, funds
FFY 2015 with another $1,2089,760.

Grant Funding for Capital Projects

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) awarded a Letter of Intent to the Airport in August 2011 to assist with its
multi-hillion dollar, multi-year Capacity Enhancement Program (CEP). The LOI was approved under the FAA's Airport
Improvement Program, as authorized by Title 49, United States Code, and totals 5466.5 million over a 16-year period,
from FFY 2013 through FFY 2028. In FFY 2014, the Airport was offered $29.8 million in funding, and it anticipates
receiving $22.9 million in FFY 2015 and $34.0 million in FFY 2016. The funding is disbursed according to a schedule
determined by the FAA in accordance with the Airport’s CEP.

PHL receives a state grant for $800,000 annually from the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation’s Aviation
Development Program. These grants have traditionally been used to help with the Airport’s local share of projects
receiving federal grant funding.
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OTHER RELEVANT DATA AND CHARTS

The Airport serves residents and visitors from a [IREEFENEG R ETEIRE TR
the Middle East :

broad pgeographic area that includes eleven
counties within four states: Pennsylvania, New
Jersey, Delaware and Maryland. In Calendar Year
{CY) 2014, PHL accommodated 30.7 million
passengers, including more than 4.5 million
international passengers, on nearly 419,000
aircraft takeoffs and landings. On average, over
84,000 passengers use the Airport facilities daily.
The Airport’s origin and destination market
encompasses over 6.0 million residents in the 11-county Metropolitan Statistical Area in Pennsylvania, New Jersey,
Delaware and Maryland. PHL moves over 432,000 tons of freight and mail annually by commercial airlines and several
cargo carriers. During CY 2014, twenty-nine tenant airlines operated over 553 daily flights to 131 cities, including an
average of 55 flights to 40 international destinations.

Since 2003, PHL has invested over 51.0 billien in facility development, improvements and/or major rehabilitation
projects, including international Terminal A West (5550 million) and Terminals D/E expansion {$346 million). Current
key projects include the Terminal F Expansion ($160 million}), Terminal- A-East Improvements {579 million),
Rehabilitation of Runway SL-27R ($43 million), and Taxiway X Extension ($23 million).
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PHILADELPHIA WATER DEPARTMENT
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET TESTIMONY
APRIL 28, 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT MISSION AND FUNCTION

Mission: To plan for, operate, and maintain both the infrastructure and the organization necessary to purvey high
quality drinking water for the Greater Philadelphia region, provide an adequate and reliable water supply for all
household, commercial, and community needs, and sustain and enhance the region's watersheds and guality of life
by managing wastewater and stormwater effectively.

Description of Major Services: The Philadelphia Water Department {PWD) serves the Greater Philadelphia region by
providing integrated water, wastewater, and stormwater services. PWD also operates three drinking water plants
which treat and deliver about 236 million gallons per day of top quality drinking water that meets or exceeds all
federal, state and local regulations. Additionally, it operates three water pollution control plants that treat
approximately 490 million gallons of wastewater per day at a level that meets or exceeds federal and state standards,
protecting and preserving our vital waterways.

PROPOSED BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS/FUNDING REQUEST

Budget Highlights: As a utility, PWD is not funded through the General Fund but is funded primarily by the revenue
the Water Revenue Bureau collects for clean water and wastewater treatment. The proposed Water Fund operating
budget for FY16 is $767 million which includes not only the operating budget of PWD {$367.1 million) but other
significant costs, such as the operating budgets of the Water Revenue Bureau and the Office of Innovation and
Technology {OIT)-water, debt service, employee fringe benefits, and other central agency support services. The
proposed PWD operating budget for FY16 is $367.2 million which reflects a $18.1 million increase over FY15 Current
Projection. The increase is attributable to projected higher costs for [abor, professional services, energy, chemicals,
and equipment.

FY15 Current FY16 Proposed FY16-FY15 FY16-FY153
FY14 Actual Projection Budget Change Percent Change

s The Water Department Class 100 budget request of $102.9 million is $4.0 million over FY15 Current
Projection. The increase is primarily attributed to the recent settlement of labor contracts.

s The Class 200 budget request of $151.6 million is $12.4 million over FY15 Current Projection. This increase is
primarily due to the costs of electricity, gas, maintenance and repairs at PWD plants and supporting the
Consent Order and Agreement programs. .

s The Class 300 and 400 budget request of $47.4 million is $3.1 million above FY15 Current Projection due
primarily to an increase in chemical costs, building materials, machinery and equipment at PWD water
treatment and water pollution control plants.

s The Class 800 budget request of $65.0 million is $1.6 million lower than FY15 Current Projection, primarily
due to a small reduction in transfers the General Fund for services rendered.

* The total Water department operating budget increase of $18 million represents a 5.2% increase from the
FY15 Current Projection.




Staff Demographics Summary (as of December 2014)

F

Full-Time Staff

Executive Staff

Average Salary - Executive Staff < 19,7007 |-l §108,858: T | $124,3737 7 18] §108,788

Median Salary - Executive Staff $119,025 $104,513 5124,200 $104,919
*Employment level does not include 9 full time apprentices {6 African American males; 3 Hispanic males}; 7 graduate engineers (3
Caucasian males; 4 Caucasian females); and employees on leave.

Employment Levels {as of December 2014}

Budgeted

Filled
947 " 1,714

Full-Time Positions
Part-Time Paositions
Executive Positions

Contracts Summary (*as of December 2014

Total amgunt of contracts " 2: (7913 obo |l .599,50 e
Total amount to M/W/DBE $10,013,494 | $32,535549 | $22,336,432 | $33,113,328 | $39,335,707 | $37,590,607
Participation Rate Tz [ vases, AT | 2dm L L shesm [T 239 o [ d0%)
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PERFORMANCE, CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE {OPERATIONS)

Millions of gallons of water treated increased by 0.7% between FY13 and FY14 and decreased by 4.5% in the first half
of FY15 compared to same time period in FY14 based on the demand of PWD customers. PWD's Water Pollution
Control Piants (WPCP} continue to achieve 100% compliance with their National Pollutant Discharge Standards. In
FY15, the Southeast WPCP will receive a Platinum 15 Award for 15 years of 100% compliance. The Northeast WPCP
will receive a Platinum 9 Award, and the Southwest WPCP will receive a Gold 4 Award.

PWD surveyed 775 miles of pipeline for ieakage in FY14, 19.4% or 187 miles fewer than in FY13. The variation in miles
of pipeline surveyed is partly explained by the trends in water main breaks, as the same crew and equipment are used
to conduct the survey and locate active leaks. With more main breaks to locate in FY14 than in FY13, the crews were
not ahle to survey as many miles of pipeline for leakage as in the prior year. Total water main breaks in Philadelphia
still remain below the national average and PWD continues to implement a detailed water main replacement
planning initiative, which uses risk-based planning to identify and prioritize main replacement projects, ultimately
reducing the total of annual water main breaks throughout the city. In FY14, the average time to repair water main
breaks was roughly 6.2 hours, below the eight-hour target. Additionally, PWD is currently meeting the target of
ensuring 99.7% of hydrants are available. PWD deaned 94,653 storm drains in FY14, a 5.6% decline from FY13
numbers, but FY15 is on track to exceed FY14 totals based on Q1-Q2 trends.

PWD is pursuing an aggressive plan to reduce stormwater impacts and pellution through greening its infrastructure,
and has approved 385 acres of private development plans across the entire city in FY14 {53.4% increase from FY13).
As a result of this work, stormwater discharges were reduced by over 250 million gallons in FY15. As the stormwater
reduction plans move forward, PWD will need to replace some of the related metrics in the table below with more
suitable measures that more appropriately capture the activities in this area.

FYi4-
Performance Measure FYO08 FY13 FY14 FY13

FY14 FY15

Change Qe qra

Pe.rcent of Time Philadélph:a s Drinking

Water Met or Surpassed State & Federal 100.0% 100.0%  100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0%  100.0%

Standards

Miles of Pipeline Surveyed for Leakage .+ 1,113 . .962 . . 775 . -18.
687

DEPARTMENT CHALLENGES

» Aging infrastructure and limited capital: The financing of repairs to aging infrastructure is perceived as the
most critical risk in the procurement and management of water in the next five years, according to the 2014
U.S. Water Industry Outlook. In order to keep up with the degradation associated with an aging system, PWD
is ramping up reinvestment in its infrastructure. PWD continues to schedule infrastructure replacement and
rehabilitation projects as Infrastructure reaches the end of its useful life. PWD utilizes various asset
management tools and a strong maintenance program to optimize the capital program in order to maximize
an asset’s useful life while maintaining a high level of reliability. With a replacement value in excess of $30
billion, the goal of the program is to maintain its assets in a reliable state without prematurely replacing
them, and consequently increasing debt service costs. This is also a key reason why PWD has embarked on a
master capital planning process for the water and wastewater systems for beyond 2040.
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« Succession planning: PWD continues to confront the challenges posed by staff attrition due to retirement.
Among the many programs and initiatives currently in place to ensure that PWD attracts and retains a highly-
qualified and diverse workforce are: increased recruitment from universities, inciuding Historically Black
Colleges and Universities, expanded internship opportunities; comprehensive staff training curricula;
coordinated programing through the Community College of Philadelphia and other trade schools;
establishment of a Philadelphia Water Trades and Green Infrastructure Apprenticeship program, and
sponsorship of PowerCorpsPHL. Finally, PWD has added a number of new staff to the Human Resources
group to ensure that PWD has the ability to handle the increased workload associated with staff loss.

« Changes to process for setting water rates: In February of 2015, City Council confirmed the five candidates
nominated by Mayor Nutter to serve on the City’s first Water, Sewer and Stormwater Rate Setting Board. The
Board has independent authority to approve rate changes requested by PWD and will institute a transparent
processes for fixing and regulating rates and charges. Under the previous process, water rates were
proposed, a hearing officer was appointed to collect input from a variety of stakeholders, including a PWD-
funded public advocate, and then rates were ultimately determined by the Water Commissioner. Moving
away from that process, PWD will work with the Board members to provide key information and an overview
of the utility operations and finances to transition rate-setting responsibility to the Board. )

ACCOMPLISHMENTS & INITIATIVES: The below accomplishments and initiatives are organized according to PWD's
eight strategic plan objectives.

Improved Customer Service, Outreach and Assistance

Call Center: The addition of cloud technology to the PWD call center has allowed the customer call center to handle
an increased number of calls. Prior to the use of this technology, the phone system was not consistently able to
handle the center’s daily call volume, especially during busy periods. Now the center has the capacity to handle and
track all calls, resulting in fewer dropped calls and shorter wait times. Before the addition of cloud technology, the
PWD call center handled an average call volume of 1,800 calls per week, with an abandonment rate of 9% and an
average speed of answer at 2 minutes and 30 seconds. Now, the call center is consistently handling between 2,000 to
3,000 calls, is meeting the industry standard best practice of 3% abandoned calls, and answering calls on average a
little over 30 seconds. Additionally, PWD worked with the Water Revenue Bureau and Community Legal Services to
mediate solutions for customer service issues, such as simplified entry Into payment agreements and a more
streamlined appeals process for bill disputes.

Other customer service improvements include:

s Community-friendly construction specifications: PWD has created new construction specifications for
contractors conducting field activities, such as water or sewer repair and replacement jobs, to improve
conditions during construction processes. These specifications include enhanced safety protections and
cleanliness requirement in addition to business friendly procedures along commercial corridors. The "quality
of life” specifications have been implemented on a pilot basis with standardization for all PWD contracts
targeted for early FY16.

= Emergency and Bill Call Center Performance: PWD and Water Revenue Bureau customer service are working
with the Office of Innovation and Technology to offer self-service options including automated account
balance information, water meter appointments and enhancements to online payment options through an
updated website.

= Business Incentive Programs: The Stormwater Management Incentives Program provides non-residential
PWD customers with financial incentives to manage stormwater runoff and reduce their stormwater bill.
Since its inception in 2012 the program has provided over $16 million to 41 properties that will result in 212
greened acres, at a cost of approximately $80,000 per acre. Based on that program’s success, the Greened
Acre Retrofit Program grant was launched in 2014 to provide grants to project aggregators, such as
contractors, business improvement districts or companies who can build large-scale stormwater retrofits
across muitiple properties. The first GARP grant of $8 million was awarded to ISS Builds, who will be
implementing green infrastructure projects with Cardone Industries, Quaker City Flea Market, Pacifico Ford,
Lasdon Real Estate and others to create approximately 90 greened acres. Both programs are administered
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through PIDC and applications are received on a rolling basis. Grant decisions are made guarterly and based
on a variety of criteria, including cost-effectiveness.

Increase Workforce Strength and Diversity

Recruitment and Workforce Diversity Initiative:_ PWD revamped and formalized its summer intern program to begin
anew in the summer of 201S. During the 2014 fall career fair season, PWD Human Resources representatives
attended local and regional college fairs to promote and recruit undergraduate students for internship opportunities
in the engineering and environmental scientist career fields. As a result of these efforts, and assigning a specific staff
member to coordinate with PWD managers and supervisors, PWD was able to successfully place students in paid
learning opportunities in various units including: capital planning, design, construction, water treatment, energy,
water efficiency and green infrastructure maintenance. This year's group of 25 students hail from various colleges
that includes the University of Delaware, Howard University, Spelman College, Princeton, SUNY as well as Temple
University and University of Pennsylvania. While the goal of this recruitment effort is to create pipelines to fill
vacancies that will occur as a result of the employees enrolled in DROP, our efforts this year and last have also
provided an opportunity to recruit and hire a more diverse professional workforce. 20% of this summer’s interns
identify as ethnic minority and 36% are wormen.

Return of Apprenticeship Program: After a five year hiatus, PWD re-launched its Apprenticeship Program in 2013
with a goal to build and maintain a diverse high performing workforce by effectively recruiting, hiring, and retaining
top talent from Philadelphia high school programs and vocational/technical training institutions. The initial
enrollment of apprentices will complete Phase Il of the program this summer. Phase Il began last July after the
students graduated from Edison High School. [n addition to the initial enroflees from £dison, six students who worked
at the Department through the PowerCorpPHL program transitioned into Phase |l of the Apprentice program. During
the past year each of the Phase Il apprentices worked full-time serving as a vocational school interns at one of the
Department’s facilities. Additionally, each Phase [l apprentice was enrolled in supplementary English and math
courses provided by the Community College of Philadelphia. In July this group of apprentices will transition to Phase
il of the program as Maintenance Mechanics, a permanent civil service title. During the final year of the
apprenticeship program each student will be enrolled in technical training to enhance their backgrounds in HVAC,
electrical and building maintenance skills. In February PWD accepted the second class of Phase | Apprentices who are
now working one day a week at one of our facilities. These students were selected from Mastbaum H.5. and Randolph
Career Academny.

Green Apprenticeship Program: This year PWD also inaugurated a Green Apprenticeship Program. The program is
designed to provide Philadelphia high school students with academic training and work experience in green
infrastructure. This first group of ten students was selected from Randolph Skill Center and Overbrook High School.
The program will take place from January through June {classroom training} and July through August {in-field work].
During the six weeks of in-field training the apprentices will perform green stormwater infrastructure maintenance
and be compensated for their work hours. As a result, Philadelphia Water is being recognized as a WorkReady Seal of
Approval employer.

PowerCorpsPHL: PWD is hosting its third cohort of PowerCorpsPHL members. PowerCorpsPHL is a nine month
program AmeriCorps program for individuals ages 18 to 26 who provide six manths of full-time service as AmeriCorps
members in city departments. The program is designed to address environmental stewardship initiatives as well as
youth workforce development and violence prevention. Current PowerCorpsPHL members are working in the
Department’s facilities in electrical and HVAC trades’ helper positions and in building maintenance, as well as with
inlet cleaning crews and Green Stormwater Infrastructure maintenance crews. Through three cohorts, PWD has
hosted 44 PowerCorpsPHL members. Of those, five have joined PWD’s Apprenticeship program and six have been
offered the chance to serve a second term with PowerCorpsPHL and Philadelphia Water. Several members have
received employment with companies due to their experience with PWD.

Safety Enhancements: During the past year PWD undertook an evaluation of our Safety program which resulted in
the preparation of a gap analysis that compared our current policies and practices with industry best practices. While
it was found that PWD currently operates with a robust overall program there were a number of recommendations
issued for making improvements. These include: documentation of “good catches” & “near misses”; enhanced
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communication between various work sites through monthly newsletters; increasing the number of announced and
unannounced safety inspections, and more detailed data analysis.

Improve Financial Health

Strategic and Financia! Planning: The first annual update to the Strategic Plan was published in the spring of 2015. in
additional to refining previous goals, the update indicates priorities for FY16 and includes key performance indicators
{KPIs) to track progress towards plan implementation. These KPIs will be used to create a strategic plan dashboard
that will make it easier to track performance across PWD and identify areas for improvement. PWD continues to plan
for the future and investment in infrastructure. PWD has developed strategic business and financial plans, and has
developed a long-range capital investment program to proactively tackle both the immediate and the long-term
projects that will ensure the stability and efficiency of the city’s wastewater, storm-water and drinking water systems.

» New wastewater treatment agreements with Cheltenham Township and Abington Township. The amended
wastewater treatment agreements provide for payment of a proportional share of the Consent Order and
Agreement costs along with a management fee from 10% to 12%.

» In March of 2015, Fitch Ratings, Moody's and S&P have assigned to municipal bond ratings of “A+", with a
stable outlook, “Al”, with a stable outlook and “A”, with a positive outlook, respectively to the City of
Philadelphia, Philadelphia Water Department Series 2015A and Series 2015B Bonds.

s During Fiscal Year 2014, PWD continued its record of exceeding its financial projections and demonstrating
fiscal responsibility.

Invest in Capital Planning

Water and Wastewater Systems Master Planning: PWD is creating a 50-year Wastewater Facility Master Plan for
each of the three wastewater treatment plants: Northeast, Southeast, and Southwest WPCPs. The Facility Master
Plan will incorporate elements of long term population projections, sewer flow projections including suburban
contracts, the effects of climate change on precipitation intensity and sea level rise, and city-wide land
redevelopment plans. The Plan also will analyze the replacement of aging infrastructure beyond year 2060, evolving
needs of the City and the rehabilitation or replacement of wastewater treatment and resource recovery plants to
meet the changing technologies.

PWD is also creating a 50-year Water Master Plan for the entire water system including the water treatment plants,
storage reservoirs, pumping, and distribution system. The Facility Master Plan will incorporate elements of long term
population projections, resiliency and redundancy needs, and future drinking water quality technology. The Plan also
will analyze the replacement of aging infrastructure beyond year 2060, evolving needs of the City and the
rehabilitation or replacement of water system to meet the challenges of providing safe and affordable drinking water
to its citizens.

Storm Flood Relief: Like many cities across the nation, Philadelphia is confronted with an increase in flood risk to both
properties and natural areas. Flooding to properties and natural areas is destructive, costly and can render homes and
businesses dangerous and unhealthy. As part of our Capital Improvement Program, PWD is budgeting $40 million
annually to reduce stormwater runoff through green stormwater infrastructure. In addition, PWD is spending $30
million annually to enhance and improve our sewer system. These investments will continue to reduce and mitigate
flood risk throughout Philadelphia. PWD continues to study the feasibility of structural system improvements in areas
susceptible to flooding. Through our Basement Protection Program, PWD has spent $1.7 million since 2005 to protect
more than 450 homes. In coordination with our fellow City agencies, PWD is in the process of chartering the Citywide
Flood Risk Management Task Force. As part of this Task Force, PWD is:

» Coordinating response and recovery with city, state, and federal agencies

*  Providing advanced warning forecasts in advance of large storms

¢ Tidal and neighborhood flooding projections and vulnerability analyses

»  Assessing FEMA flood map revisions

e Projecting climate change impacts

« [nstalling signage in areas susceptible to flooding

e Reviewing zoning and building codes
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» Meeting with communities

Metering: During FY14, PWD began to assess and plan for the Second Generation Advanced Metering Infrastructure
{AMI} System as the state-of-the-art technology to succeed the AMR System, which is under contract to Itron
{including two optional one-year renewals) until September 2019, Work is continuing during FY15 to identify a slate
of options of system capabilities, costs, and project timing. This will provide executive decision-makers with the most
informed data and information to develop a strategic plan for the AMI System and plan its funding.

Capital Budget Efficiency: 64% of PWD’s Capital Budget will be used to improve the performance of our assets and
the water system, These projects help reduce energy and maintenance costs, and help to reduce water loss.
Improvements include water main reconstruction and replacement of outdated meters; sewer reconstruction and
system optimization, and green infrastructure; replacing aging assets with more energy efficient equipment and
projects that reduce water loss.

Protect Infrastructure:

Expanded Investment in Infrastructure Stability: PWD continues to increase its focus and resource commitment to
the protection and renewal of the City’s water and sewer infrastructure. PWD launched a Capital Plan for FY16 that
kicks off a six-year, $1.78 billion Capital Improvement Program. PWD continues to refine the water main protective
model system which fs based on risk analysis to directly inform the program plan.

In FY14, PWD bid $197 million in capital projects, renewed or replaced 30 miles of water and sewer pipes, and
reinvested in our water and wastewater facilities. In addition, PWD implemented a major part of the projects funded
through the $200 million awarded from the PennVest fund as those projects are coming ta completion.

Water main breaks remained below the national average, at fewer than 2.25 breaks daily. PWD's long-term break rate
trend has heen in decline over the past 30 years, and PWD is striving to work toward the optimized level of 15 breaks
per 100 miles of pipe per year established by the Distribution System Optimization initiative of the American Water
Works Association's Partnership for Safe Water Program.

Additionally, Notice to Proceeds were issued on the $36 million New Gravity Thickeners at the North East Water
Pollution Control Plant {(NEWPCP). The $20 million Northern Liberties Flood Relief Project is half way complete, as is
the $17 million Laurel Street Outfall project being performed on PWD’s behalf by Sugarhouse which are the early
phases of flooding abatement program in the Northern Liberties area of the City. Prioritization of projects that
enhance the integrity of the City's water/sewer infrastructure and support sustainable utility operations will allow
PWD to continue its mission ta protect the public and the environment. Additional infrastructure highlights include:

e The Venice Island Sewer Overflow Basin Project and Performing Arts Center: Working in partnership with
Philadelphia Parks and Recreation and the Manayunk Community, PWD unveiled the new center in October
of 2014. This $45 million dollar project included work to construct an underground storage tank and head
house facilities to protect and improve the health of the Schuylkill River; the construction of a new
performing arts center to replace recreation facilities demolished to accommodate the project; and the
development of a new parking lot that includes green stormwater management practices. The underground
storage tank will hold nearly four million gallons of stormwater, thus avoiding overflows directly into the
Schuylkill River. The complementary canal improvements will also greatly benefit the area by creating more
flow through the canal, improving water quality. In addition, the project achieved 31% disadvantaged
business participation. The workforce diversity of this project shows workforce participation in the following
categories:

o Minority lourneypersons: 30%
Minority Apprentices: 28%
Female Journeypersons: 5%
Female Apprentices: 9%
Local Journeypersons: 43%
Local Apprentices: 44%

0O 0 0 0O Q0
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The Northeast Water Pollution Control Plant By-Pass Conduit Project ($16 miliion} began in 2013. When
complete, this project will allow the Northeast Water Pollution Control Plant to increase its wet weather flow
capacity by 215 million gallons per day up to a plant total flow of 650 million gallons per day. This project is
part of PWD's Long Term Control Plan for reducing Combined Sewer Overflows in the city.

Baxter Water Plant Clear Well: In May 2010, PWD discovered a failed 4-foot by 6-foot section in the
vegetated roof cover of the clear water basin (CWB). The CWB contains 50 milfion gallons of Baxter Plant
finished water and supplies the Lardner’s Paint Pump Station. PWD temporarily repaired and covered the
breach and continuously monitors water quality at the influent and effluent of the CWB. No adverse effects
have been pbserved and access ta the failed roof area has been closed-off to prevent further damage to the
basin in operation. PWD has completed a thorough underwater inspection and condition assessment of the
basin, the outlet chamber and the influent valves. Structural improvements were made to the CWB outlet
structure and stoplog chamber and new aluminum stoplog panels fabricated, installed and tested in January
and March 2012, The successful test of the stoplog panels and operation of the influent valves, confirmed
PWD's capability to isolate the CWB in case of an emergency. PWD has sufficient storage upstream of the
CWB and a permanent by-pass conduit as a viable emergency alternative to the CWB. PWD also repaired, re-
commissioned and demonstrated the “A-stage” pumps at Lardner’s Point Pump Station that would be
reguired to be put into service in the event of a CWB outage. PWD will replace the CWB with a smaller set of
basins to be constructed on an adjacent five acre site and tied into the gravity line to Lardner's Point Pump
Station and the south side of the Torresdale High Service Station. The project consists of two 5MG basins and
associated piping. The design is complete and the project is anticipated to be bid in 2015.

East Park: The East Park Reservoir, which is located in East Fairmount Park adjacent to the Strawberry
Mansion neighborhoad, will be undergoing upgrades and changes over the next several years. The upgrades
will include construction of new storage tanks and an exciting partnership with Philadelphia Parks and
Recreation, the National Audubon Scciety, and OQutward Bound Philadelphia. The new water storage tanks
will provide approximately 60 million gallons of drinking water storage for the City, replacing the existing
covered earthen basin reservoir that was constructed over 130 years ago. These new tanks will enable PWD
to continue supplying high quality drinking water to the City during normal and emergency water supply
conditians.

Indian Creek Restoration Project: In partnership with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and Philadelphia
Parks and Recreation, PWD completed the restoration project along the West Branch of Indian Creek, located
behind the Charles Pap Playground and Recreation Center. The PWD project included the construction of a
new stream channel and diversion of the West Branch from a culvert to a natural area within the park before
making its confluence with the East Branch. Diverting the stream out of the culvert is referred to as
"daylighting” the stream. Daylighting the stream has created approximately 1000 feet of new stream
habitat. A vault structure designed to regulate the amount of combined sewage in the new storage tank was
constructed on the east end of the culvert. This vault structure allows can hold about 180,000 gallons of
overflow.

Excellence in Core Services:

Product Quality at 100%: While other cities struggle with water quality issues that make it necessary to issue “boil
water” alerts, PWD met the goals of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Partnership for Safe Water,
providing the highest quality drinking water, 100% of the time, to all our customers. PWD is also protecting rivers
100% of the time, an accomplishment that will be recognized with a Gold Peak Performance Award from the National
Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) and continues a streak of meeting these goals. PWD was able to
achieve this performance even under peak stress conditions. Other highlights include:

Partnership for Safe Water Award: PWD received the Partnership for Safe Water 15 year Director’s Award in
2014 for excellence in meeting the standards set by the Partnership. PWD consistently produces high quality
drinking water, achieving Partnership for Safe Water quality standards that are stricter than State and
Federal water quality regulatory requirements. Philadelphia valuntarily adopted these goals in 1996.

National Association of Clean Water Agencies Awards: Each year, the National Association of Clean Water
Agencies presents awards to wastewater treatment facilities that achieve 100% compliance with their
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Standards permits. In 2015, the Northeast Water Poliution Control
Plant will receive a Platinum 9 Award for nine consecutive years of 100% compliance. Also in 2015, the
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Southeast WPCP will receive a Platinum 15 Award and the Southwest WPCP will receive a Gold 4 Award.
These facilities consistently provide excellent service to our customers and protect the Schuylkill and
Delaware Watersheds from pollution, enhancing our environment and the quality of life in Philadelphia.

s Delaware Valley Early Warning System- Tidal Spill Trajectory Project won the 2015 Governor's Award for
Environmental Excellence.

s Contaminant Warning System: In 20093, PWD received over $9 million in federal grants to launch and expand
a Contaminant Warning System (work completed in 2013). The objectives of the Contaminant Warning
System were to develop strategies, enhance technologies, integrate information and empower people to
provide timely detection and response to water contamination and protect the city’s social, economic, and
environmental investment. PWD has also used the program to create more effective day-to-day management
of the water system. Outcomes of the program include increased cooperation and formal relationships with
stakeholders, improved PWD employee safety, improved communication with the public, created better
understanding of PWD’s needs during a contamination event and of the capabilities of supporting agencies,
and better protection of critical water infrastructure.

Green City, Clean Waters: PWD continues its work in the Green City, Clean Waters Partnership Agreement, a national
model for U.S. cities to implement green infrastructure to address sewer overflow. This initiative saves the City
hillions of dollars by avoiding the need to construct and maintain additional traditional water and sewer
infrastructure. These projects appear in the form of tree lined streets, planted areas in sidewalks or streets, or as rain
gardens or porous pavement at schools and recreation centers. Not only do these projects substantially increase the
rate of greening, but they alsc improve the quality of our air and water and help reduce heat-related and air-related
illnesses. Since the start of FY14, PWD controlled the stormwater runoff from as much as 498 acres or more of the
total area in the City through the use of green stormwater infrastructure, while also creating newly vegetated areas,
better water and air quality, and improved human health conditions for residents. PWD has aiso restored two miles of
local streams, created three and a half acres of wetlands and cleared area waterways for the safe passage of at least
3,500 migratory fish. PWD received the American Planning Association’s 2015 National Planning Excellence Award for
the implementation of Green City, Clean Waters.

In the process, PWD has established strong partnerships with the community and the School District of Philadelphia
for green infrastructure implementation on parks and schools. Through the Rain Check program, PWD installed over
7,000 rain barrels and over 150 other stormwater tools in residential homes. PWD is actively monitoring almost S0
green infrastructure sites and has installed low cost sensors at schools for Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM) education. Through the Infill Soak It Up design competition, engaged 23,000 people in 20 events
focused on accelerating the adoption, adaptation and implementation of green stormwater infrastructure. PWD also
launched incentive grant programs to help commercial properties manage stormwater and reduce their stormwater
bills.

In FY16, PWD will face the first five-year evaluation period set under the Consent Order with the Environmental
Protection Agency regarding the Green City, Clean Waters program. By the end of FY16, 1,000 acres or more of the
overall area of the city may be brought under control of green stormwater infrastructure, while creating newly
vegetated areas, better water and air quality, and improved human health conditions for the residents. PWD will also
seek to create a formalized network of municipalities and utilities with which to share best practices and data to help
drive down costs, increase efficiency and find new financing mechanisms.

Implementation of cost effectiveness study recommendations: In 2014, a management consulting firm was hired to
review PWD field and call center operations and recommend improvements in customer service and cost
effectiveness. The consultants identified several items for consideration, in areas such as [T, training, and
deployment. PWD and WRB are working with the consultants to implement many of the recommendations.

Ensure Sustainghle Utility Operations

Implementation of Utility-Wide Energy Strategic Plan: Since 2008, PWD has led several initiatives that have
furthered its development of its Utility-Wide Energy Strategic Plan including:
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Aijrcraft Deicer Co-Digestion: In the winter of 2008, PWD began accepting aircraft deicer fluid (ADF) from the
Philadelphia International Airport to feed directly into the anaerobic digesters at its Southwest Water
Pollution Control Plant. This process increases the production of energy-rich methane gas that PWD can use
to power plant operations, which reduces PWD’s dependence on non-renewable energy sources. Collecting
the deicer and preventing intreduction to the water effectively curtails the environmental and public health
problems associated with deicer use. Through the addition of deicer to the anaerobic digesters at Southwest,
PWD increased its digester methane production by an average of 8,700 MMBTU per year. The amount of
ADF delivered to PWD depends on the severity of the winter and the winter of FY 2014 was severe, setting a
record high of 6.4 million gallons of ADF delivered which produced 17,000 MMBTU of energy and earned
over $345,000 in tipping fees. PWD has accepted 19.7 MG of ADF, produced 52,413 MMBTUs of energy, and
earned $1,064,951 in tipping fees since 2008. i

Solar Panel System: In August of 2011, PWD finalized the installation of a photovoltaic system consisting of
1,014 solar panels at the Southeast Water Pollution Control Plant. Since installation, the system has
generated approximately 1,010,000 kWh, averaging 337,000 kWh per year, equal to the electrical energy
needed to power approximately 36 homes annually. The total project cost was $1.6 million, with over half
coming from the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program. The project payback was
estimated to be 12 years. The facility supplies roughly 5% of the facility’s electrical load and saves PwD about
$25,000 annually, varying with the cost of electricity. PWD also produces and sells Solar Renewable Energy
Certificates {SRECs}). In 2013, PWD sold 370 SRECs from 2011 and 2012 worth approximately $6,200 to PPL,
Sewer Geothermal: In February of 2012, PWD put its Sewage Geothermal Installation intoc operation at the
Southeast Water Pollution Control Plant. The installation extracts energy from the sewage arriving at the
plant and uses it to heat the plant’s compressor building and gallery space, saving PWD $18,000 annually.
PWD collaborated with NovaThermal Energy to test their unique, patented geothermal process for the first
time in the United States. The project was partfally funded through a $150,000 Greenworks Pilot Energy
Technology Program Grant. The balance of the $240,000 project cost was covered by NovaThermal. As a
result, the system was installed at no cost to PWD and its ratepayers. The system was put into operation in
February 2012. During FY14, the energy cost savings totaled over $15,000. The expected savings over the life
of the project is $216,600

Biogas Cogeneration Facility: The Biogas Cogeneration Facility at the Northeast Water Pollution Control Plant
(WPCP) began operation in December 2013. This facility captures methane generated from the existing
sewage treatment process, which can then be used to meet all of the process heat needs and 85% of the
electrical requirements for plant operations. The facility produces 43 million kwh per year, enough energy to
power 4,000 homes annually. During its first seven months of generation in FY 2014, the facility generated
24,730,000 kWh of electricity while delivering 65,000 MMBTU of heat to the WPCP. The $47.5 million project
was made possible through an innovative public-private partnership between the City, Ameresco Inc. and
Bank of America, with Investment Tax Credit funding provided through the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act. PWD set and has met aggressive Economic Opportunity Plan goals for the project,
achieving a 42% total minority contractor participation rate and workforce inclusion percentages at 33.8%
minority, S.3% female and 53.6% minority apprenticeship. Of particular interest, the biogas co-gen unit was
fully operational during the polar vortices of January 2014 and avoided over $600,000 in related energy cost
spikes.

The Philadelphia Renewable BioFuels/Synagro facility project was the result of a challenging public-private
partnership to upgrade PWD’s biosolids management program. Synagro Technologies was selected for the
project and developed a comprehensive approach to maximize sustainability while streamlining costs. Its
best-in-class heat drying and pelletization system produces quality biosolids pellets for sale in organic
fertilizer and renewable fuel markets. These sustainable outlets will ensure consistent recycling of
Philadelphia Water biosolids for many years to come. The City will reap many benefits from the project,
including more than $200 million in savings over the 20-year contract, production of a Class A biosolids
product, elimination of off-site odors, improvement of site aesthetics, minimized noise and traffic impacts
and reduced greenhouse gas emissions, while bringing the facility into compliance with air emission
regulations. In addition, PWD solicited significant community input as area residents were previously directly
impacted by odors and quality of life issues. Additionally, Synagro routinely coordinates the hiring of new
employees through the Southwest Phifadelphia community.
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Support a Strong and Diverse Philadelphia Business Community

Increased Contract Participation with Disadvantaged Businesses: PWD has made great strides in creating and
expanding contracting opportunities for minerity and women-owned husinesses over the past several years, doubling
the total participation rate from 12% in FY09 to 24% in FY14. In addition, a Director of Participation was hired to craft
and implement a department-wide Participation Plan to address structural barriers to participation, seek partnerships
with a variety of business and rescurce organizations, and provide training to staff.

PWD is committed to assisting companies in addressing issues around performance, business develapment capability,
capital bonding, business planning, and technical support. During the fall of 2014, PWD partnered with the Mid-
Atlantic Small Business Transportation Rescurce Center to provide a six-week hands-on, multi-component program
designed tc address what businesses need to become bond-ready. This program was tailored to businesses
competing for transportation-related contracts with SEPTA, the Streets Department, PWD, and PennDQT. The
curriculum included topics around construction related business planning and management, construction accounting
and financial management, financing and credit, project management, workforce, field operations, claims and dispute
resolution, estimating, bidding, joint venturing/teaming, and one-on-one meetings with bonding agents. The program
graduated 13 businesses, resulting in three companies getting bonded and two pending bond applications. PWD is
currently planning to host another session in the fall of 2015, pending approval from the U.S. Department of
Transportation,

Project Labor Agreements - The City of Philadelphia has determined that certain projects, because of their size,
complexity, need for a variety of craft labor and critical deadlines are generally appropriate for Project Labor
Agreements (PLAs). PWD reviews all proposed projects with an estimated construction cost of $5 million or more to
determine if a particular project would be appropriate for a PLA. Projects with lower estimated costs may also be
appropriate for PLAs, Currently, PWD has 13 PLAs in place for seven proiects estimated from $4.5 million to $45.8
million. PWD anticipates increasing its PLA portfolio with an additional 14 projects during the remaining part of FY15
into FY16; two projects of which will be a four-part bid. The PLAs for these projects include requirements for diversity
in the trades and the inclusion of local, minerity and women hiring goals.
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STAFFING

PWD operating budget has an allocation for approximately 1,950 positions comprising of 277 job titles. There are
approximately 200-230 vacancies or about a 12% rate. These vacancies, in part, are the result of the movement
{promotional and [ateral} of staff both internally and to other Departments that is the natural result of the Civil
Service system. Positions not accounted in the 1,714 reported staff demographics are nine apprentices {all males; 6
African Americans; 3 Hispanics); in addition to, 7 graduate engineers (3 Caucasian males, 4 Caucasian females). The
remaining balance of vacancies is the result of employee attrition and retirement. During the past year numerous
initiatives have been undertaken to further reduce the overall vacancy level. These include the addition of new PWD
Personnel staff, better I.T. data management capabilities and improved civil service test scheduling to ensure the
availability of qualified candidates for all open paositions. It is expected that during the next year the overall vacancy
rate will be further reduced to around 7% which is sustainable fiscally and operationally. Our staff continues to grow
and fill vacant positions to respond to needs related to planning implementation and maintenance of our Consent
Order, Storm Flood Relief project planning, expediting of development plan reviews, succession and lega!l obligations.
The augmentation of business support, Office of Economic Opportunity {OEQ) coordination and participation data
tracking, workforce diversity and training coordination, and improved internal contral function have also contributed
to these increases.

Qver the past three years, Commissioner Neukrug has hired eight exempt positions. Of those eight, six are women,
three are African American, two are Asian, and one is Hispanic.

Full-Time Staff

Staff Demographics (as of December 2014}

Executive Stoff

Male Female Maie Female
African-American African-American African-American African-American
Tota! Pl S 18eE T Totol E 5 T e
% of Total e UADSY% 9% % of Total 5 67%
White White
Total Cobgp3en T [Tl o 96 Totaf i cAL ALY
% af Tatol e R % of Total S 4B 7Y 26T%
Hispanic Hispanic Hispanic Hispanic
Total R SgnEe Total g R
% of Total 2.1%: £ 0.3% % of Tatol 0.0% 6.7%
Asian Asian Asian Asian
Totol ' Total i
% of Total % of Total
Tatal Totol
% of Total % of Tatal
Bi-lingual*
Totol Tatal S TBO
% of Total g i % of Total : e
Femnale Femnale
Tatal 33 Totol ;
% of Total 54803 % of Tatal

*PWD will provid

e Bilingual information at the budget hearing.
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CONTRACTING

M/W/DBE Participation on Large Contracts
FY15 Contracts

N/A - contract MaE: 15% 51,566,429

Stormwater managed
PIDE 10,462,859 WBE: ¥ ,046,286 25
Management Program 510,462, through a quasi s/2s/12 lo% 51 * Yes
S0 $2,615,715

agency

152,339,264

. Genem! Copsultant

DM s_r‘.;ﬁh‘ - 55;572,766." L 4/5_/1‘3‘. _
' T v L V1 83,108 445,
Green Infrastructure $1,125,160
AKRF Mgmt%::i'::::':l:n /ins | 4892000 afaj12 7/1/12 | WBE: 7% $342,440 30% Yes
pection DSBE: 0% 50 $1,467,600

_ . . MR 0% 7| $14175000 | v
PMA - NE Biogas Cogeneration 54,755.90401 ' 9/7/10 12723011 | WBES, | 5% L. | $236,356 | 35%

/ h | oseer T ow. . s $1,653,750
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OTHER BUDGETARY IVMPACTS

FEDERAL AND STATE (WHERE APPLICABLF)

s 99% of all PWD funds come from the ratepayers, so a decreased in state or federal funding at this time would
have a limited impact on our current operations. However, state and federal funds received in the past have
help PWD start new programs that have proven successful. For example, the federal tax credit was used to
help finance the Cogen facility.

* Anincrease in state and federal funds would help PWD make smart investments and increase the repair and
replacement schedule for aging water infrastructure. It could also help enable PWD to strengthen existing
programs, like the contaminant warning system, or to pilot more efficient stormwater management tools.
PWD has appreciated our ability to access state revolving funds, and if we were able to access additional
funds through PennVest we could allocate them towards programs to help meeting our Consent Agreement
regarding Combined Sewer Overflows.

¢ PWD supports any efforts to create more funding tools. Specifically, PWD supports the federal Water
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act, which would estabiish a five-year $50 million pilot program to
offer low-interest loans for water and wastewater infrastructure projects costing at least 520 million.

¢ PWD is also interested in pursuing additional public private partnerships that can help leverage additional
funds for infrastructure investment. Of interest is Chicago’s emerging Infrastructure Bank, and efforts in the
Pennsylvania legistature to expand authorization for public private partnership projects to local governments
and school district projects such as utility infrastructure and facilities use for public water supply or treatment
or stormwater disposal.

OTHER

Explanation of difference between OEQ Annual Reporting and PWD Participation Reporting: While the OEO report
‘states that PWD achieved 22.9% participation, PWD contends that we actually achieved more because of projects let
through a third party source and/or the active spend was not captured in the OEO report. Further, the OEO report
does not include the participation on public/private-and quasi projects that we fund. These projects alone achieved
28% participation.

The charts below demonstrate how PWD achieved 24% participation:

Table lillustrates combined participation on contracts that are reported in FY14 as awards and contracts under public
and private partnerships; in addition to, projects that have expended dollars in FY14 under an Economic Opportunity
Plan {(ECP).

Table Il summarizes the various contract types under the operating and capital budget by which participation
commitments were made.

Table II: F¥14 Contracts By Contract Type Under Operating And Capital Budget
Contract Type Contract Awarded
P Services 18,104,547
Miscella_ngous Purchase Orders 1,089,000
: PUlic Work 120,374,715
Small Order Purchases 965,122
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Table It summarizes contracts awarded through an authority in FY14,

Contract Spend Cornitment Participation

1,100,0 5,337,
5,200,000 1,300,000

Tahle IV illustrates combined participation on contracts that are reported through the 2" quarter of FY15 as awards
and contracts under operating and capital budget; in addition to, projects that have expended dollars in FY15 under

an authority.

Table V summarizes the various contract types under the operating and capital budget by which participation
commitments were made.

Table V: 2 Qtr. $¥15 Contracts By Contract Type Under Operating And Capital Budget
Contract Type Contract Awarded Comitment Participation
Pr 454, 1,384,327 &

938000 320,000
93,455,593 . . -5 25,849,715
346,543

7,590,607

Tahle VI: 2 Qtr. FY15 Contracts By Project Type
Gran ject Type Contract Award

1,650,00
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A Message from Philadelphia Water's Director of Participation

of the local economy.

As we enter the third year of implementation, PWD

is furthering its efforts to help current and future business
owners grow their skills and increase capacity to become
prime contractors on public and private contracts. To meet
our goat of engaging and assisting the local M/W/DSBE
community, | am working with PWD managers to reinforce
the message that participation is a priority for the
Department. PWD has formed internal working groups
to better analyze contract opportunities and to proactively
inform and expand the bidding community—while
encouraging market competition. This combination of
actions benefits rate payers by helping keep prices in
check while in turn creating and sustaining local jobs.

As Philadelphia Water continues to bring innovation and
upgrades to aging water infrastructure, we educate the
business community on these efforts through contractor
seminars, webinars, on-line communications, and quarterly
updates of the Take Part! participation newsletter. PWD
has placed great emphasis on supporting programs that
help minority, women, green and small businesses grow.
To achieve this task, PWD partnered for the first time
during the fall of 2074 with the Mid-Attantic Small
Business Transportation Resource Center to provide a
six-week, hands-on, multi-component program designed
to address what businesses need to becarme bond-ready.
The curriculum includes topics around construction-related
business planning and management, canstruction accounting
and financial management, financing and credit, project
management, workforce, field operations, claims and
dispute resolution, estimating, bidding, joint venturing/
teaming, and one on ories with bonding agents. Due to

its success, PWD is working with the U.S. Department

of Transportation on plans to host this program on an
annual basis.

| am pleased to report that Philadelphia Water (PWD) has made significant progress in growing
disadvantaged business participation over the last twa years since creating and implementing our
first Participation Plan. In Fiscal Year 2014, PWD achieved 24% participation on overall PWD
contracts and through the second quarter of FY15 the Department has achieved 30% participation.
These numbers reflect the proactive changes set forth in our Participation Plan and the commitment
of PWD's staff and leadership. Additionally, in the last year PWD awarded over $128 million in
contract opportunities to Philadelphia-based businesses, contributing significantly to the growth

PWD continues to wark closely with the Office of Economic
Opportunity (OEO) to set contract goals and to confirm
the availability of qualified M/W/DSBEs to effectively
meet project completion demands. PWD and OEQ also
collaborated on outreach efforts to diverse business
suppliers. These efforts have helped in the growth of
skilled, qualified, and diverse contractors which is
reflected in our six percent increase of contract
commitments in FY15.

Inside this document you'll find a summary of key
accomplishments in growing disadvantaged business
participation in PWD contracts. An update to the Partici-
pation Plan is also included, and it identifies new creative
ways through which PWD plans to continue increasing
economic opportunities for all businesses.

| look forward to working with you, If there is any way PWD
tan help your business, or the businesses in your community,
please don't hesitate to be in touch.

Sincerely,

:

Janira Barroso, Director of Participation

P.S.

Stay up to date on the latest participation news

by visiting our Do Business with Philodelphic Woter
webpage at http://www.phila.gov/water/aboutus/Pages/
DoBusiness.aspx

[3]
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QOverview

Philadelphia Water is committed to meetand exceeding
all requlatory requirements to creating meaningful economic opportunities
for all Philadelphians.

This commitment is embedded in the Department's Strategic Plan to support a strong

and diverse business community to encourage growth, partnerships, and sustainability.

Thus as we move forward in planning for the next fiscal year, PWD continues to be committed
to making great strides in achieving and/or exceeding a 30% participation goal.

Figure T: BEGL |~ =t e e e e
Participation g
Commitments, %
FY2009-FY2015 g 30% |- e e e e e g
=
a3
[
5 25%
— (o]
5
o
l_
o
E 20% e e e
&
[Ad]
&
Ll
o
10% l ! i I | 1 1

FYO9 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

In ¢close partnership with the Office of Economic Opportunity (OEQ),
Philadelphia Water has made great strides towards increasing participation
on contracts over the last few years, This progress report provides a broad
assessment of the implementation to date of Philadelphia Water's
Participotion Plan, which provides an action plan to drive economic
participation on the Department’s contracts. This report includes
recommendations for action and improvement to accelerate
implementation and to ensure that strategies are comprehensive,
coordinated, and integrated.
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*

- Accomplishments | ,

Philadelphia Water takes this opportunity to celebrate the success that we've
achieved and to recommit to making improvements by updating the Participation Plan
to include a number of new initiatives to provide additienal opportunities to the local
disadvantaged business community.

Created and sustained relationships with resource partners, ethnic chambers of commerce, minority development
agencies and technical assistance pragrams to promote economic opportunities and and implement strategies for
broadening participation. These organizations include:

Cheyney University DBE & SBE Services Center - Philodelphio Streets Department

Deloware Volley Green Building Council - SEPTA

The Enterprise Center + Sustoinoble Business Network/GSI Portners

Greoter Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce +  Urban League of Philodelphia Entrepreneurship Center
Greater Philodelphio Hispanic Chamber of Commerce - U.5. DOT Office of Smoll and Disadvontaged

Job Opportunity Investment Network Business Utilization

Mid-Atlantic Small Business Transportation Resource Center - U35 Small Business Administration

During the fall of 2014, PWD partnered with the Mid-Atlantic Small Business Transportation Resource Center to provide
a six-week, hands-on multi-camponent Bond Education Program designed to address what businesses need to become
bond ready. Businesses met with local surety bonding professionals to help in assermnbling the materials necessary for a
complete bond application. Curriculum included canstruction related business ptanning and management, construction
accounting and financial management, financing and credit, project management, workforce, field operations, claims
and dispute resolution, estimating, bidding, joint venturing/teaming, and one-on-aone meetings with bonding agents.
companies participated and as a result three became bonded and two have banding pending. Other partners
1 3 included U.S. DOT, SEPTA, Philadelphia Streets Department, and DBE & SBE Services Center at Cheyney
University. Due ta its success, PWD is working with U. S. DOT to provide this bonding program on an annual basis.

Worked with the Small Business Administration to host

a Capital Assistance Workshop during July 2014. The
workshop covered fundamentals of creditworthiness,
capacity, personal assets, industry conditions, purpose

of loan, and program loan types. Guest representatives
included Philadelphia Industrial Development Carpaoration,
Finanta, East River Bank, Susquehanna Bank, United Bank,
and Surety Bond Associates. This event provided technical

information to ’I 5 local businesses.

Above: Bond Education Graduates

[5]
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Served as an alliance
partner an Philadelphia's
Minority Enterprise
Development Week
(MEDWeek) Committee.
The committee hosted a
series of workshops and
presentations during the
week-long celebration
with the African American
Chamber of Commerce,
the Hispanic Chamber
of Commerce, the Asian
Chamber of Commerce,

the Office of Economic Opportunity, the Office of Coun-
cilwoman Blondell Reynolds-Brown, the Minority Busi-
ness Development Agency, the Black Professionals News,
to name a few.

PW0D started a series of quarterly Contractor Seminars in
January 2014, The seminars have been designed to provide
impaortant information to contractors about PWD's green
stormwater infrastructure (GSI) contracting opportunities
as well as details on industry best practices, specifications and
performance on projects, project completion requirements,
and contract M/W/DSBE inclusion goals and requirements.
The seminars are highly recommended to contractor
forepersans, superintendents and/or owners that are
interested in bidding on GSI projects. One goal of the
seminars is to increase contractor compliance on policy

and regulatory mandate, such as inclusion goals.

To date, there have been three contractor
seminars with an average attendance of

3 5 companies [50-60 participants at each
seminar) from the Philadelphia region.

Worked with Contractor Association of Eastern PA
to address barriers identified by prime contractors
with regards to contractor goals set on water

and sewer projects, in addition to industry
availability of M/W/DSBE business community.

Continued to host an annual training series on

Contract and Fiscal Management for PWD project staff
to increase understanding of PWD's in-house tracking
and data management systems for internal monitoring
of progress and contractor performance in meeting OEQ
goals. These workshops were designed with a strong
emphasis on understanding the relationship of the OEQ
pragramto broader Department goals and the needs

of the local business community.

Each training cycle has over

8 O participants from various units
of the Department.

Trained in construction
industry best practices to
address utilization of
minority and women
business on construction
projects and identify
contractor fraud through
the American Contract
Compliance Association.

Formed severalinternal
working groups to

better analyze contract
opportunities an our
contracts so we can be
proactive in outreach to a
broadening bidding com-
munity while encouraging
market competition.

Waorked closely with the
City's Procurement Depart-
ment to identify changes and
improvements on hidding
processes and improve
outreach through
procurement forums.

Implemented process for
collecting feedback and
suggestions from staff on
ways to make complying
with participation
protocols easier.
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Seven issues of the

Take Part! newsletter

have been released since
the Participation Plan's
gradsaes 3 bosoess launch. The newsletter
highlights current initiatives
of our partners, showcas-
es successful contracting
examples, shares upcoming
bidding opportunities and
provides an events calendar
to keep businesses aware
of upcoming opportunities.
This publication is

emailed to over

23800

readers with an averaged
35% open rate and
25% clicks read perissue.

pond £ducation Prageam

par tor Contration pidding cn

PWD established a

“Do Business with PWD"
webpage (http:/www.
phila.gov/water/aboutus/
Pages/DoBusiness.aspx),
which provides businesses
the resource to become a
City contractor and allows
them to search business
opportunities through the
City procurement systems.
The continually updated site
includes an events calendar
and warehouses all Take
Port! newsletters, contractor
seminar content materials
and video presentations.

Comract Participat:on

Lomracor Schunars
; 5
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Project Labor Agreements’
& Economic Opportunity Plans

Project Labor Agreements (PLAs): The Mayor's Executive Order for PLAs was instituted
in FY2012. The City determined that certain projects, because of their size, complexity,
labar needs and critical deadlines, required agreements to ensure contract success. PWD
reviews all proposed projects with estimated construction costs of $5 million or more to
determine if a particular project would be appropriate for a PLA, although projects with
lower estimated costs mayalse be included. Currently, PWD has 13 PLAs in place far sev-
en projects estimated between $4.5 million to $45.8 million from FY14. PWD anticipates
increasing its PLA portfolio with an additional 14 projects during the remaining part of
FY15 into FY18; two projects of which will be a2 four-part bid.

The PLAs for these projects include requirements for diversity in the trades
and the inclusion of minority and women hiring goals as follows:

Minority Apprentices — 50% of all hours worked by all apprentices
Minority Journeymen — 32% of all journey hours worked across all trades
Fernale Apprentices — 7% of all hours worked by all apprentices

Female Journeypersons - 7% of all hours worked across all trades

Economic Opportunity Plans (EOPs)’ outline goals for the inclusion of M/ W/ DSBEs
on public, private, and nonprofit sector projects that meet the following criteria:
«  The value of the project is in excess of $250,000
+  The project receives a grant of financial assistance from the City of Philadelphia,
as defined in Section 17-1407;
»  Anon-competitively bid contract, as defined in Section 17-1407;
« Acity-funded development project, as defined in Section17-1107;
= Adevelopment project or contract that requires an ordinance of Council
in order to proceed; ar
«  Adevelopment project or contract that requires an action of the
Zoning Board of Adjustment.

To date PWD has 261 EOPs in various stages of the project timeline. 14 EOPs were closed
in FY13 and 46 EOPS in FY14 were closed. PWD achieved 18.9% of actual participation,
paying minority and women businesses $10.7 million on construction projects closed in
FY13 and FY14. Currently, there are 65 active projects underway. On average, PWD is
exceeding goals on active construction projects by achieving 25.1% of all dollars paid to
date totaling $45.6 million. For a summary report on EOPs, please visit the Office of
Economic Oppor’cunityl webpage at www.phila.gov/oeo.

Update

1. Sourced from A Summary of Economic Opportunity Plons, Assessing Goal Achievement ond Compliance
2009-2074, published by City of Philadelphia, Office of Economic Opportunity, 2015
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PWD has also required contractors to implement a local goal for hiring on their projects. PWD provides project oversight
by way of a monthly committee meeting with union representation, contractors, community members, and city officials
to assure that these goals are met.

PLA/EOP PROJECT EXAMPLE:

Venice Island Underground Storage Tank and Recreation Center

This is an excellent example of a PLA working well. This project is located in the Philadelphia neighborhood
of Manayunk. This project work included: constructing an underground storage tank and PWD head house
facilities to protect and improve the health of the Schuylkill River; the construction of a new performing arts
center to replace recreation facilities demolished to accommodate the project; and the development of a new
parking lot that includes green stormwater management practices. The underground starage tank will hold
nearly four million gallons of stormwater, thus avoiding overflows directly into the Schuylkill River. The
complementary canal improvements will also greatly benefit the area by creating more flow through the
canal, improving water quality.

The Prime Contractors on the Project were: Daniel J, Keating (General Contractor),
Riggs Distler & Co. (Electrical), and Five Star (Plumbing and HVAC).

The M/W/DSBE contractors that participated on this project include:

«  Decisign Distribution, LLC (MBE) +  CNS Construction Carp (MBE)

»  Trijoy Systems, Inc (MBE) +  Disposol Carporation of America (MWBE)

- Lobe Sales, Inc (WBE} «  Lake Glenn Enterprises, Inc (MBE)

- Manno Supply, Inc (MWBE) +  Minority Contractors, Inc (MBE)

- MJK Electricol Corp (MBE) +  The Lobov Plumbing & Heating Supply, inc (WBE)
Tharnas Building Group, Inc (WBE) «  Tierra Construction Services, LLC (MBE)

This project achieved 31% in contract
participation on $44.6 million, which is above

the goal. The workforce diversity of this project
shows that goals are being met and/or exceeding
minority and local workforce participation:

Minority Journeyperson...... 30%
Fernale Journeyperson....... 5.43%
Local Journeyperson. ......., 3%
Minority Apprentice ......... 28%
Female Apprentice. .......... 9%

Local Apprentice ............ 44%
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PLA/EOP PROJECT EXAMPLE: , PLA/EOP PROJECT EXAMPLE:
Belmont Raw Water Basin NEWPCP

Contract Participation Wet Weather Expansion

Total Project Cost: $ 18,548,250* o

Total Subcontract Opportunity: $8,736,500 Contract.P articipation .

Subcontractor Commitments: $2,782,245 Jotal Project Cost: $ 15,137,000

(31.8%) Subcontractor Commitments: Current commitment

is at $1,675,407 (11%)

Workforce Participation
Minority Journeyperson. 30%
Female Journeyperson- . 3.28%
Local Journeyperson. ... 48%

Worldorce Participation
Minority Journeyperson. .33%
Female Journeyperson. . .0%

Minority Apprentice .... 6% Lo.cal.fourneyperfson """ SZ%
Female Apprentice. ... .. 2%, Minority Appren_tlce ..... 0%
Local Apprentice ....... 30% Female Apprentice....... 0%
Local Apprentice ........ 0%
* Non-Opportunity Deductions: ($9,811,750) *  Original commitment $2,341,222- 15%;
(15% without deductions) reduced per solicited subcontractor unable to deliver
on the project.

PLA/EOP PROJECT EXAMPLE: PLA/EOP PROJECT EXAMPLE:
Northern Liberties - Baxter Raw Water Basin
Flood Relief Contract Participation

L Total Project Cost: $ 4,320,692
Contract Participation Subcontractor Commitments: $613,172 — 14%
Total Project Cost: $ 19,371,128
Subcontractor Commitments: $5,647,629 (29%) Workforce Participation

L " ‘Minority J;i'urneype'rs'pn ... 817%

W?rkforce Participation Female Journeyperson....2% °
Minority Journeyperson. 35% Local Journeyperson...... 2%
Female Journeyperson.. . 3% Minority Apprentice ...... 0%
Local Journeyperson. ... 45% Female Apprentice ....... 0%
Minority Apprentice .... N/A Local Apprentice ......... 0%
(No opprentice hours worked)
Female Apprentice....... N/A
Local Apprentice ....... N/A

The above projects are currently active and being monitored by an Economic Opportunity Oversight Committee
that include representatives from PWD, the Office of Economic Opportunity, Office of the Managing Director,
Office of the City Controller, Office of Labor Standards, Office of Councilman W. Wilson Goode, Jr. and

pritme contractors managing the projects.

[10]
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Community Benefrits Program

As part of Philadelphia Water's broader mission of being a model 21st Century utility,
the Department is seeking to develop a community benefits program that creates a
positive impact for the Philadelphia business community and all residents. The goal of

such a program is to foster partnerships that can create economic opportunities, facilitate

workforce training programs, and promote community engagement.

A Community Benefits Agreement {CBA)? is a project-specific agreement and/or program

between private partners, such as a developer, project owner, contractor ar grantee, and
a broad community coalition. The agreement details the project’s contributions ta the
community and ensures the community support for the project. It also allows taxpayers
to have a voice in determining the community needs orissues that should be addressed
through the project.

Community benefit agreements® ensure that projects with public dollars have local
economic inclusion. CBAs set the framework to enable the City to track economic
impact among its businesses and residents. Benefits of CBAs include

Maximizing returns on locol taxpayer investments, such as tax incentives,

abotements or subsidies

Tronsforming the region through stronger, more equitable economies

Helping generate public support for economic developrment projects

Holding project owners accountable for their commitments to

the City ond its residents

Completing projects more smoothly, on time and within budget

PWD has demanstrated that CBAs can work with projects like the Biosolids Recycling
Center (BRC) Class A facility. Philadelphia Water, through its contractor, Philadelphia
Biosolids Services, LLC {PBS) - Synagro on BRC, currently has an agreement with a local
civic organization to hire local residents. This agreement is embedded in the Economic
Oppartunity Plan which specifies that PBS will make “best and good faith efforts” to
require its contractors to utilize Philadelphia-based subcentractors that employ local
residents in its long term operations workforce consistent with a workferce utilization
goal of 50%.

For any jobs created in connection with the operation of the new facility, the minimum
goals for employment are 30% for minority persons, 15% for women, and encouraged
participation for disabled workers. PBS has demanstrated best and good faith efforts

by reaching out to Philadelphia Works, the Urban League of Philadelphia, and the Jewish
Employment and Vacational Services for referrals for minority, female and disabled
workers. PBS is also in partnership with local organizations to develop appropriate
workforce development programs to provide training to employees.

PWD would like to use CBAs to forge relationships between developers, contractors,
and local community groups to hire job seekers within the immediate area of the project
lacation and/or the city at large. PWD can include CBA requirements in Economic
Opportunity Plans and/or Project Labor Agreements to set local hiring goals and

require inclusion of minority and female workers.

1. Create meaningful
engagement with
the community

2. Support and
mentor small
disadvantaged
minarity, woman,
and local business

3. Support
workforce
development
through training

4. Improve
educational
outcome
for youth

5. Support physical
neighbarhood
improvements
where appropriate

6. Commit to local
purchasing

7. Appoint a
community
liaison

2. Sourced from Portrership for
Working Families, Policy & Tools:
Community Benefits Agreements
ond Policies in Effect.

3. Sourced from Community
Benefits Agreements, Moking
Development Projects Accountoble
by Julian Gross
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Philadelphia Water (PwD)
s committed to recruiting,
oreparing and maintaining
a reserve of local, small anc
disadvantaged businesses
with capacities and skill
sets conducive to their
participation as contractors
and/or subcontractors on
all our projects.

)
City Of Philadelphia '
Philadelphia Water i
Howard M. Neukrug pe
Commissioner .
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Executive summary |

The goal of this long-term, integrative plan is to implement strategies that engage local, small,
and disadvantaged businesses and residents to increase their participation as contractors
and/or subcontractors on all Philadelphia Water projects.

Additional outcomes of this effort will be:

1)
2)
3)

Meaningful creation of gainful employment for under-represented populations in the Philadelphia region;

Maintaining and exceeding PWD's economic inclusion compliance standard mandates;

Providing support for PWLD} projects, like Green City, Clean Waters and other anticipated opportunities,
which require participants with specialized skill sets and education.

This plan will employ seven primary points of action:

Establishing and maintaining partnerships to

help identify appropriate prospective contracting
businesses and build mutual awareness between PWD
and these businesses.

Addressing barriers to participation by building on
existing networks through OEQ which mitigate factors
currently deterring or prohibiting new and lower-
capital businesses from successfully participating in
public works projects with PWD. ‘

Exploring options and researching best practices in
diversity procurement programs offering incentives,
discounts, resources, capacity and de-bundling
methods.

IV. Developing and using various public infermation tools
such as the quarterly newsletter, website, social
networks, resource partner events, workshops and
forums to identify current and prospective small
business participants and increasing public awareness
of contracting opportunities.

V.

vi.

Coordinating databases to track project and contract
information, activity and details from multiple sources,
including OEO payment tracking system, ACIS, FAMIS,
CAPIT, SPEED and ADPICS, for benchmarking and
metrics reporting.

Improving internal contract development processes to
enhance participation.

VII. Training staff on the importance of supplier diversity

and participation.

Method

This plan lays out the goals, objectives and actionable items
related to each of the primary points, identifying prescribed
timelines and key stakeholders.
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POINTS OF ACTION |

| Establishing and maintaining partnerships to help identify

appropriate prospective contracting businesses and build
mutual awareness between PWD and these businesses.

Purpose: Engaging with partner organizations allows PWD to leverage their expertise and netwarks
in the small business space without the requirement of specific or significant PWD capital investment.

a) ldentify organizations and single points of contact in the small
business space for facilitation of plan-specific partnerships

b) Assess and .'sel_é:c_t_‘pért‘ners' existing workshops/ __inf_o;f_nation
_sessions that PWD can leverage for information distribution

c} Leverage department’s network of resource partners that offer
technical assistance and business support to build a referral
plan for businesses access resources to enable them to do
business with PWD

d) Partner with other city agencies in providing contract opportu-
nity information sessions designed to inform vendorson how
_..to bid.on projects and/or respond to RFPs

e) Develop a program around project initiatives, needs, and
requirements with external providers to educate business
interested in doing business with PWD .

Ongoing

Ongoing

May 2015

Ongoing - .-

July 2015

OEQ
Local SBA

OEO
_Resource Partners

0OBS
OEQ
SBN

OEQ - o oo
Procurement
City Agencies

Business Chambers
MBDA
GBCA
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POINTS OF ACTION

4

'

Il Addressing barriers to participation by building on existing
networks through OEO which mitigate factors currently deterring
or prohibiting new or lower-capital businesses from successfully

participating in public works projects with PWD.

Purpose: The use of these networks and focus groups will create input and simultaneously build buy-in to the
Participation Plan from partners and stakeholders. Their input will also help PWD prioritize efforts to create more

meaningful participation opportunities.

a) Commission a report from the Sustainable Business Network
on barriers identified by the G5! Industry Partnership

h) C_c_)prdi_nat_g_PWD—sp_eé_iﬁc_ focus groups to identify barriers

c) Exploré and analyze options and solutions for addressing
already established barriers to increase participation

d) Explore barriers that affect contractors in the building trades
through PLAs

e) Encourage partnerships/collaborations between larger
contractors and MWDSBE subcontractors to strengthen
workforce capacity

f) Leverage use of City policies to formalize a community benefits
program for the purpose of engaging residents, support local
disadvantaged minority and women businesses, and support
local workforce development through training

Completed

Ongoing ., ...

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

May 2015

SBN

OO
Prlme Contractors.. . ;...
 MWDSBEs

OEO
Procurement
Finance

Law

SBN

Mayor's Office
OEO

Local CDCs
Business Districts
Prime Contractors
PhilaWorks
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POINTS OF ACTION

lIl Exploring options and researchlng best practices in d:versnty
procurement programs offering incentives, discounts,
resources, capacity and de-bundling methods.

Purpose: Learning from other peer cities will allow PWD to enact best practices for proven success.

a} Conduct research on best practices for increasing participation ~ Ongoing QED

in peer cities

b) Coordinate ef;fonr'ts Wit:h"é'thall business lenders, td’éxplbré their . Ongoing™ S PIDC
reqmrements for contractors to obtain lines of credit, in addltlon ' e e e T g RN R
to, optlons of surety bondlng ) e . ' Foundations -
c) Explore methods for in creasing July 2015 Procurement

procurement capacity, deeper bid discounts for st time par- Law
ticipants, and making adjustments to the letting process that Finance

would allow smaller ﬁrms to bld on smailer contracts

.. Procurement

e) Evaluate the possibility of recruiting businesses through Oct. 2015 Procurement
a prequalification process and rotation of contractors License and Inspections
Public Property
Law
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POINTS OF ACTION

IV Developing and using various public mformatnon tools such as the
quarterly newsletter, website, social networks, resource partner
events, workshops and forums to identify current and prospective
small business participants and increasing public awareness of
contracting opportunities.

Purpose: Public information tools will serve as a primary cost-effective and track-able vehicle for disseminating
to targeted audiences on short and long-term trends in water infrastructure construction opportunities and
requirements, as well as related training and education to facilitate participation readiness.

a) Develop protocol and timelines for collection and submission Completed 0BS
of participation newsletter content, a reqular schedule of QEO
publication, and distribution avenues Resource Partners

tni r_ef‘forts and work w_:th resource partners to '__;:_'_'O_ng'c_:in::g_‘ o

capture'newstetter content standafds or categones

Xesource Partners™

c) Participate in conferences, trade shows and networking Ongding | OEO

events to identify innovative small disadvantaged businesses Business chambers
and share information on doing business with PWD SBN

Commerce

EEB Hub

Universities
d). Manage webpage with part|c1pat|on mformatlon updates,and: Ongolng EEAY PRl U
calendar of events ’ :

e} Manage social media content for Twitter, Facebook through Ongoing
existing accounts

) Measure impact of public information tools Ongoing
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POINTS OF ACTION | ‘
V Coordinating databases to track prolect and contract

information, activity and details from multiple sources,
including OEO payment tracking system, ACIS, FAMIS, CAPIT,
SPEED and ADPICS, for benchmarking and metrics reporting.

Purpose: The reconciliation of data will provide multi-faceted, up-to-date and accurate information on
contracts, qualified MWDSBE contractors and sub-contractors, and will provide PWD with a valuable repository
of potential resources for meeting contractor participation needs, facilitating a pool of appropriately skilled,
qualified, and diverse contractors. The availability of these mechanisms provides an essential function to

respond to policy and regulatory mandates,

a) Determine feasibility of database establishment {technical an ngoing

operational capabilities) and establish primary iT contacts 0EO

: b) 1 wetermme database respon5ib|l|tles, establish ownershlp Ongoing ..
repo_ ‘ng protocol including who should submit content to - S

c) Use OEO online system (B2GNow) designed for primas Ongoing 0OEO
to record subcontractor payments for reporting

“dy! Use Labor Standards certlhed payrolls online submission: tool': “Ongoing - P47 Labor Standards ¢+ i

oIT

g) Evaluate potential use of CAPIT or other systems to support Ongoing
data collection reporting participation
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POINTS OF ACTION

] fl

VI Improving contract development processes and policy

to enhance participation.

Purpese: In order to leverage the participation plan for business success, PWD will implement this initiative
throughout the organization. PWD will drive participation through the integration of systems of contract
development that proactively involve contract opportunity evaluation, staff development, and technology
improvements.

a) Develop an analytical report on existing policy
and procedures of contract development and
participation tracking

: b) Mod|fy reportmg requrrements for contractors _
) to subm:t part:cupatlon numbers that include deadhnes
rnat meetmg them ;

c} Coordinate with Public Works and Professional Services units
to detect indicators of noncompliance and work across city
department partners to leverage compliance

. Ongoing -+ *

Ongoing

Ongoing OEO

Streets Dept.
L&l
Public Property
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POINTS OF ACTION | | |
VIl Training staff on the importance of supplier diversity
and participation.

Purpose: Training and staff inclusion will ensure that every PWD division understands the importance of
participation and integrates efforts to meet and exceed participation goals into daily decision-making.

a) Manage training program for current staff and new hires Ongoing Procurement
on the importance of participation and the city's requirements
in contracts

_b) Facilitate cross training thh OEO staff and PWD contracts Ongoing QEO |
staff on OEO timelines and process . BRI

c) Initiate a working group to discuss the barriers or obstacles May 2015 Procurement
to awarding a contract with requirements met, implement OEO
participation ranges, and determine the staff understanding of
the goals and requirements of these mandates



 APWD resource for business diversity onPWD projects T Janvary 2015

Bond Education Program graduates 13 businesses

PWD has placed great emphasis on supparting programs that help the minority, women, green and
small business community grow. PWD's commitmenlis ta increase participation and assist companies
in addressing issues arcund performance, business development capability, capital bonding, business
planning, and technical support. To achieve this task, PWD partnered with the Mid-Atlantic Small
Business Transportation Resource Center to provide a stx-week hands-on, multi-component program
designed to address what businesses need to become bond-ready.

Businesses met with local surety bonding professionals to help in assembling the materials
necessary for a compiete bond application. This program was tailared to businesses competing for
transportation-related contracts with SEPTA, the Phifadelphia Streets Department, the Philadeiphia
Water Department, and PennDOT. The curriculum was packed with topics that included: construction
related business ptanning and management, construction accounting and financial management,
financing and credit, project management, workforce, field eperations, claims and dispute resolution,
estimating, hidding, joint venturing/teaming, and one-on-one consuitation with bonding agents.

PWD is proud 1o announce that 13 participants graduated from the Bond Education Program,
resulting in three companies getting bonded and two pending bend applications. These participants
committed three hours every Wednesday evening for six weeks,

Participants included ownets from the following businesses:

Nesmith & Company Inc. Atrium International, Inc. Mario's Electrical Contractor

Tinamarie's C&R Services, LLC AWM Painting, LLC Journey Into Wellness, LLC

Gracie Painting LLC BKC Industries, Inc. Gerard Carr Forms & Application Services
Mid Atlantic Land Surveyors LLC DKJ Construction INC Weathertite Construction Group

Deem Construction

PWD would like to thank our partners for their commitment and support of this
program. Specifically, Ms. Nyime Gilchrist, the National Bonding Education
Program Manager from the United States Department of Transpertation
Office of Small and Disadvantaged Business Utilization (US DOT OSDBUY.
Ms. Gilchrist approved PWD's participation in the Bond Education Program
recognizing that we partner with many transportation entities. Ms. Della
Clark is the President of The Enterprise Center and provided classroom space
to host sessions every Wednesday evening for the six weeks. Ms, lola Harper
is the Director of the Mid-Atlantjc Small Business Transportation Resource
Center and Craig Campbell is the Outreach Manager. Ms. Harper and Mr.
Campbeil coordinated the Bonding Education Program details and logistics.
in addition, this program wouldn't have been possible without the foliowing
program partners that included Greg Myers from the SEPTA DBE Office,
Philadeiphia Streets Commissioner David J. Perri, and Mark Corbin from the
DBE & SBE Supportive Services Center at Cheyney University. Grzouates of the Bond Education Program




Venice [sland Underground Storage Tank and Recreation Center Ribbon Cutting

The Venice Jsland Underground Storage Tank and Recreation Center Project is finally complete!

The site is located between the Manayunk Canal and the

Schuylkill River, between the Lock and Cotton Street bridges in the Manayunk neighbarhood of Philadelphia. The ribbon cutting and official opening of Venice
Island occurred an Gctober 7, 2614, which celebrated the visionary project and partnership between PWD, Philadelphia Parks and Recreation, the Manayunk
Development Corporation and the Manayunk community. Venice Istand is now a place for community events, an after-school haven for city kids and a spot for
community theatre. It's also a hub for waterfrant activities and a model of stormwater management. Venice Island boasts a state-of-the-art, 250-seat performing
arts and recreation center, a spray park, an outdoor amphitheater, basketball court, green roof and rain gardens, underground storage basin and more.

Venice Island is representative of PWD's approach 1o partnerships. Parks and
Recreation saw an apportunity ta revitalize a papular but aging recreation center
in a cost-effective way when PWD identified Venice (stand as the ideal site for
an underground basin to temporarily store stormwater runoff and keep sewage
averllow out of the Schuylkill. The underground storage basin is 400 feet long,
75 feet wide and 25 feet deep, capable of holding nearty four million galfons
of water, thus avoiding overflows directly inta the Schuylkill River. The punip
house is tapped with a highly-visible, sloped green roof. The complementary
canal improvements will also greatly benefit the area by creating more ftow
through the canal, improving water quality. Gther green infrastructure on the
site includes a rain garden, porous pavement and tree trenches, creating a site
that embodies Philadelphia’s innovative Green City, Clean Waters plan.

This project had an Economic Opportunity Plan with a Project Labor
Agreement. Project Labor Agreements (PLAS) can pravide opportunities for
the City, contractors, and labor organizations to make progress in meeting their
respective goals for worker diversity and local employment. PLAS can ensure
that a building or construction work projects are completed at the lowest

reasanable cost by the highest quality and most professional workforce in a timely manner without labor disruptions such as strikes, lockouts, and slowdowns.
The City of Philadelphia has determined that certain projects, because of their size, complexity, need for a variety of craft labor, and ¢ritical deadlines are generally
appropriate for PLAs. The 345 million Venice Island project is an excellent example of a PLA working well.

The Prime Conlractors on the Project were Daniel J. Keating {General Contractor), Riggs Distler & Co. (Electrical), and Five Star {Plumbing and HVAC).

M/W/DSBE contractors that participated
on this project included:

Brass Roots Insulation, inc (WBE)

CNS Construction Corp (MBE)

Decision Distribution, LLC (MBE)
Dispasal Corporation of America (MWBE)
Labe Sales, Inc (WBE)

Lake Glenn Enterprises, Inc (MBE)
Manna Supply, Inc (MWBE)
Minority Contractors, Inc {MBE}

MJK Electrical Corp (MBE)

Labov Plumbing & Heating Supply, Inc (WBE)
Thomas Building Group, Inc (WBE)

Tierra Construction Services, LLC (MBE)
Trijay Systems, Inc (MBE}

This project achieved 30% in contract participation.
The workforce diversity of this project shows workforce
participation in the following categories:

Minarity Journeypersons: 30%
Minarity Apprentices: 28%
Female Sourneypersons: 5%
Female Apprentices: 9%

Local Journeypersons: 43%
Local Apprentices; 44%

< Take Part! January 2055



On the Horizon

PWD currently has two active projects that have Economic Oppertunity
Plans with Project Labor Agreements. They are:

Belmont Raw Water Basin - This is an $18.5 miilion project to make
improvements 1o the coffer dam and overall health of the basin. The
project is expected to be complete in Fall 2015.

Narthern Liberties Flood Relief - This t is a $1% million project to
relieve stermwater overflow in the Northern Liberties section of the city.
This project is expected to be completed in Dacember 2017,

Both projects have construction and workforce geals with an established
oversight commitiee that will meet quarterly o discuss progress refated
io economic inclusion. PWD is following a best practice model from
our experience and lessons learned from the Venice Island project to
monitar our initiatives. We wili continue to provide updates on both
projects in our subsequent issues.

Proposed Upcomlng Opportunltles

PROPOSED UPCOMING PLANT LETTINGS

Descripton ~_ workType o

East Park Reservolr iject _General Construction

EmergencyAccess to S. Filter Bldg Basement@BelmontWTP - General COHS'[FUC'[IOI'lu -
Roll-Up Door and HVAC at QL Raw Water Pumping Statlon 7 Nlechamcal/HVAC

Replace Frelght Elevator in PTB S Mechap_:calm____g - o
Exterior Siding Panels Torresdale FilterWater Pumplng Statlon ~ General Construction

New 10MG Concrete CWB tanks at Baxter * General Construction

PROPOSED UPCOMING STREET LETTINGS

Descrlptmn | _ WorkType

Cobbs Creek Intelceptlng Sewer Llnlng Phase 2 Sewer Llnlng Replacement WaterfSewerfLmlng

Storm Flood Relief - Moore Street - - Water Main Replacement S
Fuler/Rhavn/StanwoodTabor Ave — Water & Sewer Replacement

WOOdWErd STiWinchester Ave iWafe,,l,,ll{l_,al”. RePlacer,‘]?_’lF

Disclaimer

PWD has provided this newsletter and its contents as an informational service only. Your receipt or review of this document does not construe any promise of
special consideration, assistance or endorsement for successfully bidding on any Public Works contracts issued by the Department. PWD follows the fair bidding
practices and protocol set forth by the Philadelphia Home Rule Charter.

Take Part! January 2015



Small Business Resources & Events

The U.S. Small Business Administration spansors a myriad of FREE and
low-cost workshops and webinars that hightight smalt business counsefing
services, access to capital programs, and federal centracting opportunities. All
interested small businesses and entrepreneurs can access the SBA’s Philadelphia
District event details at https://www.sha.gov/offices/district/pa/king-of-prussia.
(The “Find Events and Workshops in Your Area” Calendar is located on the right
side of this website}

The Sustainable Business Network of Greater Philadelphia has
cantinuing education grants for members {(Up to $5kfyear/business) to take
caurses and attend conferences such as the upcoming Accredited Organic
Land Care Professionals course and February's Mid-Atlantic Hardscaping Trade
Show. Educational opportunities abound, including Interlocking Concrete
Pavers Institute certification and a special designation for permeable paver
installation taking place February 16-17, 2015. GSI Partners receive 75% in
grant funding towards the cost of these and cther opportunities to suppert
ongoing professional development and continuing education, More information
at https:/fwww.icpi.org/atlanticcity,

ioin the Greater Philadelphia Hispanic Chamber of Commerce far the
25th anniversary celebration at the 2015 Alegria Ball; Puerto Rico: del Mar y el
Soi2 on fanuary 16, 2015 at Vie in Philadelphia.

The largest Latino business gathering in the region, the 2015 Alegria Ball will
bring 1ogether peaple of varied ethnic, professional, business and geographical
hackgrounds to achieve a common geal -- support of local Hispanic business
developmemt and educationat programs provided by the GPHCC. The proceeds
of the event support the $mall Business Development and Education program
offering warkshops, seminars, minority business services, technical assistance
and business development oppertunities for Latinc businesses and ertrepreneurs
across the region. GPHCC works to promote, develop and advocate for Hispanic
business in the Greater Philadelphia region. For more information, visit
http:/fwwnw,philahispanicchamber.orgf.

Stormwater Planters and Pump House with Green Roof at Venice island in Manayunk

Contact Information of Resource Partners

The Office of Business Services
215-683-2000
www.phila.govicommerce

This office provides businesses with information on:
o Business start-up or expansicn

e Help with license and permit matters

s Financial resources

e Preparing for City inspections

The Office of Economic Opportunity
Philadelphia Department of Commerce
215-683-2057

www.phila.govfoeo

This office provides assistance to minority, woman and disabled-owned
businesses with:

e Resources for obtaining MWDS-BE certification
e Registration with the City of Philadelphia
e Networking for business partnerships with larger companies

e Addressing prompt payment issues for current City contractors

City of Philadelphia Procurement Department
http:/fmbec.phila.gov/procurement

This site lists contracts currently eligible for bid and tips for navigating the City
contract process.

PWD Projects Control Unit
{215) 685-6337
http:/fwww.phita.goviwater

This office can provide plans and specifications for PWD Public Works projects.
There is a fee for these documents, ranging {Tom $10, te $25 or more.

Office of Labor Standards
{215) 686-3501
www.phila.gov/commerce

This office can provide infermation on prevailing wage requirements and other
labor standards for all Public Werks projects.

Take Part! January 2015
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1. Program Description

The Philadelphia Water Department {PWD) Trade Apprenticeship Program was created to provide meaningful work
experience to Philadelphia High School students and recent vocational/technical school graduates who demonstrate
an interest in full-time employment with the City of Philadelphia. Participants are provided with structured on-the-job
learning combined with classroom training to advance their development and prepare them for job oppoertunities within
the City of Philadelphia or in the private sector. Apprentices learn from highly-skilled Department employees/Mentors,
while working at one or more of our facilities.

PWD is working in partnership with the Schoal District's Office of Career and Technical Education {CTE) to identify and
recruit qualified seniors to enter the program. Additionally, graduates from area vocational/technical schools are eligible
to apply for admittance to the program.

1.1 Goals and Objectives

The goal of the Trade Apprenticeship Program is to build and maintain a diverse, high performing workforce by effectively
recruiting, hiring, and retaining top talent from Philadelphia high school programs and vacational/technical training
institutions. The Trade Apprenticeship Program will also address skill and knowledge transfer to maintain the high quality
service PWD delivers. Amang the specific objectives of the program are:

. Focused on-the-job training.

. Application of classroom learned skills to a ‘real-world' environment.

. Enhancement of academic and vocational skills through supplemental training.

. Development of professional netwarks that will facilitate and premote future job opportunities.
. Filling critical vacancies at PWD.

. Contributing to the economic viability of the city of Philadelphia.
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1.2 Terms of Apprenticeship

The Apprenticeship Program will be conducted over a period of two and one-half years consisting of three phases and is
currently enrolling Apprentices in the following job titles:

= HVAC Mechanic 1

= Electrician 1

=  Maintenance Mechanic T

« Instrumentation Technician

1.2.1Phase |/Pre-Entry Level - Student Intern

Phase | is designed for eligible high school seniors only. Once selected, Student Interns will typically commence Phase
I during the month of January of their senior year of high school and work one day per week through the duration of the
spring term. Phase | Apprentices will be introduced to the Department's industrial operations and be required to apply
the knowledge and skills learned through the National Oceupational Competency Testing Institute (NOCT1) Job Ready
Assessment Blueprint. The objective is to test and assess the student’s skills to determine whether or not they have
mastered the core competencies necessary to move to Phase Il of the Apprenticeship Program.

Apprentices at this level are expected to meet the following conditions:

= Maintain a program attendance rating of 90% or greater.

= Arrive on time to work consistently.

= Demonstrate a professional manner and appearance while at PWD facilities and with PWD staff.
»  Obey all applicable PWD workplace rules and regulations.

»  Consistently master CTE/PWD approved core competencies as established by the NOCTI Job Ready Assessment
Blueprint.

«  Achieve satisfactory performance on two Apprentice evaluations during the program {March and May).

During Phase | all Apprentices are expected to follow and adhere to all attendance, work and dress code policies. Failure to
follow these policies or exhibiting any other negative behavior will result in termination,

Students who have successfully completed Phase [ will advance and will be admitted to Phase .

3
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1.2.2 Phase |I/Entry Level - Vocational School Intern

Successful Phase | participants and vocational/technical school graduates are eligible for his phase. Phase Il beginsin
June of each year and lasts 12 months, The Apprentice at this level will be appointed to a temporary position working five
days per week. Each Apprentice’s work schedule will be contingent upon the hours of operation of his or her worksite.
During this phase the Apprentice will continue to develop the knowledge and skills required to advance to the next phase.

Additionally, each Apprentice will be enrolled one day per week at Community College of Philadelphia for supplemental
English and Mathematics support. The English courses will begin during the Fall Semester and the Math courses will
begin during the Spring Semester. Phase |l Apprentices will also be required to attend vocational/technical training
courses an technical theary and applied skills. Among the courses offered Electrical Troubleshooting, Electrical Theory and
Applications, Heating Theory and Applications, Air Conditioning, Refrigeration, and Heating Measurement.

Apprentices at this level are expected to meet the following conditions:

= Maintain a program attendance rating of 90% or greater.

= Arrive on time to work consistently,

» Demonstrate a professional manner and appearance while at PWD facilities and with PWD staff,

«  Obey all applicable PWD waorkplace rules and reguiations.

- Attend all required academic and technical training.

= Pass and/or maintain a 70 (C) or above in all required academic and technical classes.

»  Obtain a valid proper class motor vehicle operatar's license as issued by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

= Maintain quarterly satisfactory performance Apprentice evaluations during the program {Sept; Dec; March; May).

Students must successfully complete Phase Il in order te be admitted to Phase lll of the program.
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1.2.3 Phase Ill/Civil Service Apprenticeship Level -
Utility Maintenance Apprentice

After successful completion of Phase ll, each Apprentice will be qualified to advance to Phase lll of the Apprenticeship
Program. Upon acceptance into Phase Ill the Apprentice will become a permanent full-time employee subject to a six (6)
month probationary period. After serving as a Utility Maintenance Apprentice for a period of 12 months, each Apprentice
will be prepared to test for full performance level trade work in the area of specialty practiced in the program. During
this phase additional academic and vocational/technical training may be required to prepare the Apprentice for full
performance level trades work. The training is contingent upon the Apprentice's specific job duties/categories and other
recommendations by their supervisor.

Apprentices at this level are expected to meet the following conditions:

- Attend all required academic and vocational training.

= Pass andfor maintain a 70 (C) or above in all required technical classes.

= Possess a valid proper class motor vehicle operator's license as issued by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

»  Maintain satisfactory or better performance rating issued at the 2nd and 5th month of their six month probationary
period.

= Successfully complete six month probationary period to become a permanent Civil Service employee.

1.2.4 Qutcomes

At the conclusion of Phase Ill of the Apprenticeship Program each participant will be qualified to register and sit for the
appropriate civil service test for the program track in which they have participated. The following is the anticipated
schedule for testing and job appointment:

= June: Announcement for HYAC 1, Electrician 1and Maintenance Mechanic 1 or Instrumentation Technician
(tentatively scheduled)

= JulyfAugust: Civil Service Eligibility list established (tentatively scheduled)

= August or anytime thereafter: Hired as an HVAC 1, Electrician 1, Maintenance Mechanic1 or Instrumentation
Technician (subject to availability of an available position)

[6]
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2. Green Apprenticeship Program

2.1 Goals and Objectives

The primary goal of The Green Apprenticeship Program is to
expose students to a variety of opportunities that exist within the
stormwater management and green infrastructure (aesthetic)
maintenance industry. This training is designed to motivate students (e
to explore a career within this diverse and constantly changing ”'
industry; to challenge students into developing the necessary skills;
and to meet the industry’s standard requirements for competency
and safety. Among the specific objectives of the program are:

» Tolearn approved techniques and best managerment practices
«  Toexplore new skills and to experience a variety of methods for effective knowledge transfer.

«  Tobecome active participants in the educational experience.

2.2 Terms of Apprenticeship

The Green Apprenticeship Program lasts six months and begins each February. During the first four months the students
participate in a classroom setting, provided by JASTECH Development Services, Inc., in which they are provided the
academic hackground for green stormwater.

During the final two months the Apprentices work in the field applying the skills to actual projects and green
infrastructure installations. PWD is recognized as a Work Ready Seal of Approval employer.

PWD is working in partnership with the School District’s Office of Career and Technical Education (CTE) to identify and
recruit qualified high school juniors to enter the Green Apprenticeship Program. Currently the program is recruiting
students from Randolph Skill Center and Overbrook High.

[7]
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2.2.1 Curriculum

The curriculum is a 15 module project-based learning and training that includes activities that support a watershed
theme with scientific exploration, mathematical measurements, green infrastructure, aesthetic maintenance and creative
expression through writing and art. Core competencies will be derived from the Office of Watershed’s GS] Maintenance
manual listed below.

http:/iphillywatersheds.org/doc/ GSIMaintenanceManual-1stEdwpreamble_HRes. pdf

The curriculum consists of the following:

- Orientation

. Personal Responsibility

- Water: A Renewable Resgurce

. Trees Please

. How Can the Landscape Act as s Filter

. Physical and Mental Energizers

- Green Stormwater Infrastructure (GSI) Maintenance Manual
. CPR Training — American Red Cross

. Creating a Schoolyard Assessment for Dealing with Stormwater
. Green Street Design Manual

- Topographic

. Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, RETHINK

2.2.2 Outcomes

Upon completion students will have the ability to provide aesthetic maintenance to any of PWD's GSl sites throughout the
city. In addition, program participants will learn about pretreatment devices and green infrastructure.
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3. Current Partic

Phase | Student Interns:

pants:

Duron Riley,Building Maintenance Mechanic at SW Plant - Randolph Skill Center
Terrance Bernhardt, Electrician with Pumping Unit - Mastbaum High School

Hakim Ben-Abdou, Electrician with Facilities Management - Mastbaum High School

Phase Il Vocational School Interns:

Luis Maldonado, HVAC Mechanic at SE Flant - Edison High

Elijah Valentin, HYAC Mechanic with Facilities Management - Edison High
Christopher Blackwell, Building Maintenance Mechanic at SE Plant - Powercorps PHL
Jamar Larry, Electrician at SE Plant - Powercorps PHL

Juan Jefferies, Electrician at Belmont Plant - Powercorps PHL

Robert Robinson, Electrician with Pumping Unit - Powercorps PHL

Jeremiah Tomlin, Instrumentation Technician at SE Plant - Powercorps PHL

Keith Williams, Maintenance Mechanic at Baxter - Powercorps PHL

Christopher Gay, Electrician at Baxter - Powercorps PHL

Phase lll - Utility Maintenance Apprentice Candidates:

All Phase ll interns are or soon will be eligible for Phase ill.

Green Apprentices

Shawn McAndrews - Randolph Skill Center
Donte McCrae - Randolph Skill Center

Doquan Paris-Williams - Randolph Skill Center
Andre Brown - Randolph Skiil Center

Ayanna Turner - Overbrook High Schoal
Ricardo Lothian - Overbrook High School
Andre Barnes - Overbrook High School
Keyonna Stewart - - Overbrook High School

Devan Curtis - George Washington Carver
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2014-2015
Awards

Partnership for Safe Water Award — PWD received the Partnership for Safe Water 15 year Director’s
Award in 2014 for excellence in meeting the water quality standards set by the Partnership that are stricter
than State and Federal water quality regulatory requirements.

National Association of Clean Water Agencies Platinum Award — NACWA presents awards to wastewater
facilities that achieve 100% compliance with their National Discharge Elimination Standards permits.

+ In 2015, the Northeast Water Poilution Control Plant (WPCP) will receive a Platinum 9 Award for nine
consecutive years of 100% compliance.

e Also in 2015, the Southeast WPCP will receive a Platinum 15 Award; and

¢ the Southwest WPCP will receive a Gold 4 Award.

National Planning Excellence — Philadelphia Water received the 2015 National Planning Excellence and
Achievement Award for Implementation from the American Planning Association for the implementation
of Green City, Clean Waters, Philadelphia’s green stormwater infrastructure program,

Leadership in Urban Forests — Commissicner Howard Neukrug received the 2015 Leadership Award by the
Arbor Day Foundation in honor of his outstanding contribution to tree planting, conservation and
stewardship.

Pennsylvania’s 2015 Governor's Award for Environmental Excellence — The Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection bestowed this award on Philadelphia Water for the protection of natural
resources through the Delaware Valley Early Warning System- Tidal Spill Trajectory project.

WorkReady Seal of Approval — Philadelphia Water's Green Apprenticeship Program provides Philadelphia
high school students with academic training and work experience in green infrastructure, who are
compensated for their work hours. As a result, Philadelphia Water is being recognized as a WorkReady Seal
of Approval Employer by the Philadelphia Youth Partnership Network.

Green Power Leadership Awards — The City of Philadelphia received one of the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency's Green Power Leadership Awards in the On-site Green Power Generation category.
Philadelphia Water was particularly honored for two green power projects, a sewage geothermal
installation and a solar photovoltaic system, both at the Southeast Water Pollution Control Plan.

TTF Watershed Milestone Award — The Tookany/Tacony Frankford Watershed Partnership recognized two
Philadelphia Water engineers with their annual Watershed Milestone award. Hasan Malik was awarded
the Friend of the TTF Watershed award, and Rick Howley received TTF's Watershed Municipal Leader
award, along with Roh Armstrong from Philadelphia Parks and Recreation.

Environmental Communications Award - Philadelphia Water won the 2014 Environmentat
Communications Honor Award from the American Academy of Environmental Engineers and Scientists,

1
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The award recognizes the importance of conveying environmental messages to the public and emphasizes
innovative and creative approaches to communication messages.

o Outstanding Research Award — Water Research Foundation's annual award to the utility subscriber that
has made notable improvements to treatment, delivery and management through the application of
research.

o Emerson Distinguished Service Award — Commissioner Howard Neukrug received this award from the
Water Environment Federation for his leadership in the water environment.




water quality

Source water protection Is a flexible and sustainable approach to address water quality concemns of the future
and protect this one shared resourca as populations expand and watersheds bacome more developed.

ELIZABETH COUILLARD, MOLLY D. HESSON, KELLY ANOERSON,
CHRIS CROCKETT, AND MARY ELLEN MCCARTY

Philadelphia’s One-\Water
Approach Starts With
Source Water Protection

ore than a decade ago in Pennsylvania, in 2002, the Phila-
delphia Water Department (PWD) completed award-
winning source water assessments (SWAs) for the
Schuylkill River and Delaware River watersheds. {The
A CAREFULLY DEVELOPED, 28 Schuylkill River is shown in the photograph on p. XX.)
MULTIE ACETJED BLAN THAT [PHOTO 1] Wlth the knowledge gained from those assessments, PWD devel-
oped source water protection plans that provide PWD with priority objectives
EXTENDS INTO TWO KEY to implement in the watersheds: building partnerships in the watershed,
WATERSHEDS AND ENSURES increasing communication around emergency events, developing sustainable
PROTECTION OF THE funding f(.:pr rest_oration and education projects, increasing pu-blic awareriess
of the regional importance of the two watersheds, and reducing the impact
REGION'S WATER SUPPLY. of point and nonpoint source pollution.

PHILADELPHIA WATER
DEFARTMENT'S SOURGCE
WATER ASSESSMENT LED TO
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By nccomplishing watershed goals
and@bmilding program capabilities,
PWD has developed a source water
protection program (SWPP) that
reaches outside the jurisdictional
limits of Philadelphia into the
Schuylkill and Delaware River
watersheds (Figure 1), This approach
to ensuring the safety and quality of
Philadelphia’s drinking water supply
has elevated PWD as a respected
resource for technical analysis, pol-
icy review and coordination, and
partnership facilitation in the region.

The SWPP employs science and
research, innovation, ordinances,
technology, and—most important—
partnerships as mechanisms to
accomplish program goals. Three
examples demonstrate the applica-
tion of these mechanisms. The SWPP
uses watershed partnerships, science,
and research to implement upstream
pathogen-reduction best practices.
Through policy development and
implementation in Philadelphia,
PWD is poised to demonstrate to
upstream parfniers stormwater man-
agement practices that protect source
water quality. The SWPP has created
an emergency communication and
event notification system using tech-
nology, such as state-of-the-art com-
puter modeling and web applica-
tions, to inform a partnership of
upstream dischargers and municipal
and industrial intakes.|

Wastewater-effluent discharges
and stormwater runoff upstream in
the Delaware and Schuylkill River
watersheds influence water quality
at Philadelphia and regional drink-
ing water intakes. Knowledge and
experience from the management
and operation of PWD wastewater
and stormwater utilities inform and
enhance SWPP strategies. The prac-
tice of source water protection unites
organizations that must comply with
Clean Water Act {CWA} and Safe
Drinking Water Act (SDWA) regula-
tions. Source water protection also
mobilizes organizations not regu-
lated by national water policy and
unites them with the regulated com-
munity around the common cause of

-

maintaining “one shared water” In

addition, “one water” approache

{AWWA terms this as Total Water
1

following discussion describes some
capabilities of the SWPP and how
PWD experiences as an integrated

As a wastewater and stormwater utility, Philadelphia
Water Department has many obligations to fuffilf in
order to meet Clean Water Act goals.

Solutions®) help bridge the gap
berween the SDWA and CWA. The

utility er\;hance the SWPP,

-

FIGURE 1 Philadelphia source watershed map

The Delaware River and Schuylkill River watersheds make up the 10,000 mi2 source
watershed for Phlladelphia. The contributing watershed area covers parts of three states:
Pennsylvania, New York, and New Jersey.
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The shyline
Fairmount Park,

PATHOGEN REDUCTION

The SWPP uses a triple-bottom-
line approach to pathogen reduction
{Figure 2). Guided by its experience
as a wastewater utility and sup-
ported through a robust watershed
partnership nerwork, PWD achieves
regulatory obligations under the

of Philadelphia, Pa., as seen fromn the north along the Schu

»

i

ylkili Rive

r at

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface
Water Treatment Rule (LT2ESWTR).
To achieve regulatory credit for com-
pliance with LT2ESWTR at one
water treatment facility, PWD devel-
oped and is implementing a water-
shed control plan to reduce the load-
ing of Cryptosporidium and

FIGURE 2 Triple-bottom-line approach
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pathogens in the Schuylkill River
watershed over a five-year period,
Cryptosporidium is a waterborne
pathogenic protozoan that is respon-
sible for cryptosporidiosis, a gastro-
intestinal disease that is particularly
dangerous for immunocompromised
individuals. In developing the water-
shed contrel plan, PWD identified
wastewater treatment plant effluent
as the largest potential source of
Cryptosporidium in the contributing
watershed; iagricu[tural runoff as the
second-largest source; and animal
vectors, such as geese, as the third-
largest source. The goal of the water-
shed control plan is to reduce Cryp-
tosporidium loading in the
watershed, and ultimarely lower the
concentration at the water treatment
plant intake. There are more than
100 treated wastewater discharges in
the Schuylkill River watershed
upstream of Philadelphia. With PWD
responsible for wastewater treatment
in Phifadelphia County and sur-
rounding suburban communities, the
SWPP was able to include PWD
wastewater experts and experiences
in discussions that shaped the
approach to addressing Cryptospo-
ridium upstream.

Wastewater treatment plants dis-
infect effluent before discharging to
surface water. Many plants use chlo-
rine to disinfect effluent, but Crypto-
sporidium iT resistant to chlorine and
can remain! viable—able to infect a
human or animal host—after chlo-
rine disinfection. The LT2ZESWTR
intake sampling method and regula-
tion do not differentiate between
viable and nonviable Cryptosporid-
itm. Ultraviolet {(UV) radiation is an
alternative disinfection technology
that effectively inactivates Crypto-
sporidium. While an increase in the
number of plants upstream of Phila-
delphia that disinfect effluent with
UV technology would decrease the
loading of viable Cryptosporidium
to the watershed, this would not
decrease the quantity of Cryptospo-
ridium detected during water-treat-
ment-plant intake monitoring.
Therefore, the quantity of Crypto-




sporidium observed at the drinking
water treatment plant intakes using
the current Cryptosporidium sam-
pling method would remain
unchanged, even if all dischargers
upstream implemented UV technol-
ogy. It is easily argued thar despite
having no effect on Cryptosporidium
levels observed at water treatment
plant intakes, an increase in the pro-
portion of wastewater treatment
plants using UV disinfection would
decrease the loading of viable Cryp-
tosporidium to a watershed,

Under the CWA, wastewarter utili-
ties do not have a regulatory driver
to implement UV specifically, and
the benefits of UJV implementation
would not be acknowledged by the
SDWA. While this may seem like an
opportunity for policy integration,
such an action would simply shift
the cost of SDWA compliance onto
those who have CWA compliance
obligations, and restrict the options
for managing pathogens in a water-
shed-to-treatment technique. The
management of a complex pathogen
like Cryptosporidium, in the context
of both the CWA and SDWA, is an
opportunity for the practice of
source water protection and is an
incentive to implement upstream
triple-bottom-line pathogen-man-
agement practices.

PWD is familiar with the biggest
challenge facing drinking water,
wastewater, and stormwater utilities:
how to balance affordable customer
costs with the need to finance grow-
ing expenses associated with aging
infrastructure and regulatory
requirements. At most utilities, each
capital project is priotitized among
the needs for other capital projects
as part of a capital plan and pro-
gram. Within this framework, there
are possible unintended—and pos-
sibly counterproductive—conse-
quences to utilities’ capital priorities
that may result from shifting waste-
water disinfection technologies to
protect drinking water suppliers. For
example, critical upgrades or repairs
that are delayed may result in raw
sewage overflows or untreated sew-

The Philadelphia Waf

Department's Source Wat

‘Program hosted 8 tour of

agricultural best management practices implemented in the Schuylkill River watershed in

August 2014, Participants met with farmers and saw on-the-ground profects that protect

source water quality downstream.

age discharges that would increase
downstream water supply risk.
Therefore, the overall condition of
the upstream system needs to be con-
sidered before applying a one-size-
fits-all approach. In addirtion, the
economic, social, and environmental
costs and benefits must be assessed
to find the optimum balance for sus-
tained improvement in the long term
for the water supply.

Given the complexiry of address-
ing wastewater effluent as the pri-
mary source of Cryptosporidium
upstream of Philadelphia, the SWPP
employs a long-term strategy using
watershed partnerships (see the pho-
tograph on page XX} <<Photo 2>>.
Woatershed partnerships such as the
Schuylkill Action Network (see the
logo on page XX) <<Image 1>>, con-
sisting of point and nonpoint source
dischargers, state and federal regula-
tory agencies, and drinking water
utilities, are an effective forum to
discuss the benefits of improving
wastewater treatment technologies
and strengthening the connection
between upstream and downstream
entities that rely on the river. PWD
and the Schuylkill Action Network
partners meet regularly to share dis-
charge data, employ solutions to
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reduce the impact of discharges in
the watershed, and study the influ-
ence of treated effluent on source
water qualiry.

The SWPP complements the long-
term approach to dealing with Cryp-
tosporidium in upstream effluents
with a rargeted short-term approach
to reducing the second-largest source
of Cryptosporidium upstream—agri-
cultural runoff. As documented by
previous studies, young livestock can
produce significantly large numbers

The Schuylkiil Action Network is a
watershed-wide organization with a
mission to improve and protect the water

resources of the Schuylkill River watershed.
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of infectious and viable C. parvum  can excrete as much Cryptosporid-
(Crockert, 2007; Fayer, 2007; Atwill,  fm asiifiar estimared in 1 mgd of

2006, 2003, 2002a, 2002b, 1999,  raw sewage (Crockett, 2007). By

Advance notification during emergency events
allows drinking water utilities to take precautidnary
measures that may include closing intakes,
monitoring water more frequently, deploying

booms, and adjusting operational procedures.
| |

Santin, 2004). In fact, these estimates leveraging resources through the
suggest that just one to three calves  watershed partnership framework,

FIGURE 3 Sewage service districts, Philadelphia, Pa.

Philadelphia Water Department is a wastewaler utlllty that provides services for combined
sewer and the separate sanllary sewer service areas. Green stormwaler infrastructure
captures runoff in the combined sewer service area before It enters the sewer system.
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the SWPP selected manure storage
basins, stream-bank fencing (sec:ihic.
photograph on page XX) <<Phoro
3>, riparian buffers, and other best
management practices {BMPs) as a
triple-bottom-line approach to
upstream’ pathogen reduction
because they are cost effecrive and
provide a societal and environmental
benefit. Manure storage basins are
an affordable way to achieve a
reduction in Cryptosporidium load-
ing in agricultural runoff and pre-
vent the contamination of local
groundwater and triburaries with
pathogens such as fecal coliform,
Escherichia coli, and enterococcus.
In addition to pathogen removal,
manure storage basins reduce non-
point source runoff of sediment and
nutrients, provide secure storage of
manure until the timing is appropri-
ate to fertilize crops, and reduce the
amount of synthetic fertilizer and
organic materials farmers must pur-
chase to maintain crop production
and soil health. The implementation
of manure storage basins in the
Schuylkill River watershed, with the
support of the SWPP, has been so
successful that word-of-mouth sup-
port in the farming community has
increased the number of farms inter-
ested In participating in source water
protection. A photograph of a
manure storage basin is on page XX.
<<Photo 4>=

In addition to long- and short-
term strategies that address the pri-
mary and secondary sources of
Cryptosporidium in the watershed,
the SWPP works with a local univer-
sity to conduct Cryptosporidium
research. Some species of Cryptospo-
ridinsm are known to infect humans
and others are not; PWD and its
parters collect data on the viability
and species of Cryptosporidium
detected in the Schuylkill River
watershed (Jellison et al, 2009). This
information is critical to the evalua-
tion and prioritization of sources
and control strategies to address
pathogens,

The watershed contrel plan,
approved by the Pennsylvania




Department of Environmental Pro-
tection in 2012, is;a-showcase for
strategic source water protection
that maximizes watershed benefits
while minimizing costs to utility
ratepayers. Source water protection
techniques are a flexible and cost-
effective approach to uniting the pri-
orities of the CWA and SDWA,

DEMONSTRATING STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

As a wastewater and stormwater
utility, PWD has many obligations to
fulfill in order to meet CWA goals.
Borrowing from PWD’s experiences
with meeting CWA obligations, the
SWPP offers technical support and
shares solutions with upstream part-
ners developing their own compli-
ance strategies for the Narional
Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO)
Control Policy and Municipal Sepa-
rate Storm Sewer Systems {MS4).

During rain events, runoff from
60% of the surface area in Philadel-
phia enters the combined sewer sys-
tem, and runoff from 40% of the
surface area enters the separate
sewer system (Figure 3). The com-
bined sewer system captures surface
runoff and sewage in a shared pipe
that conveys the water to wastewater
treatment plants. Wet-weather condi-
tions cause the combined sewer sys-
tem to reach capacity and discharge
into surface creeks and streams (Fig-
ure 4). Such incidences of stormwa-
ter mixed with raw sewage must be
reduced under the National CSO
Control Policy. A novel approach
was needed to meet this regulatory
obligation because of the character,
history, and existing infrastructure of
Philadelphia. PWD chose a different
approach from the traditional policy
or technology (e.g., tunnels) to
reduce combined sewer overflows to
meet regulatory requirements in
most cities. As thé county wastewa-
ter and stormwater utility, PWD has
implemented a triple-bottom-line
approach that uses ordinances to
reduce stormwater from new devel-
opment and motivates private imple-
mentation of stormwater manage-

e —

FIGURE 4 Wet- and dry-weather diagramsiof drainage conditions for
combined sewer systems
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Livestock are fenced out of streams and sensitive wetland areas to reduce the loading of

nutrients and pathogens to the watershed. Stream bank fencing was installed at this farm

in Berks County, Pa.

ment, aligns treatment plant
expansion and upgrades with CSO-
related regulatory benchmarks, and
implements new green stormwater
infrastructure—engineering tech-
niques that maximize civic and envi-
ronmental benefits while minimizing
costs. This approach—called Green
Cities, Clean Waters—focuses on
improving water resources and revi-
talizing Philadelphia. Over a 25-year
implementation period, PWD will

invest approximately $2.4 billion in
the Jargest green infrastructure pro-
gram in the United States.

The stormwater policies and green
stormwater infrastructure being
demonstrated in the urban setting of
Philadelphia are also relevant to sub-
urban and rural communities
upstream in the source watersheds.
The 2,000-mi? Schuylkill River
watershed is home to more than one
million people upstream of Philadel-

A manure storage facility was set up on this farm in 8erlis County, Pa, Manure storage

basins are an affordehle means to achieve a reduction in Crypfosporidium loading in

agrictltural runoff,
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phia, with more than 200 munici-
palitics#in. 11 counties. There are
,more than 400 mi of streams and
tributaries listed as impaired by
stormwater by the Pennsylvania
Department of Environmental Pro-
tection. Stormwater management in
suburban communities must over-
come complex jurisdictional chal-
lenges such as adjacent townships
with different stormwater ordinances
and nonpoint source pollution origi-
nating in one township and traveling
to another. Compared with other
suburban counties, Philadelphia
County has no townships or bor-
oughs and may enact countywide
policies and approaches to stormwa-
ter management. The stormwater
regulations affect a vast area of resi-
dential, commercial, and industrial
land uses and offer upstream part-
ners an opportunity to observe the
successes and lessons learned in
Philadelphia.

Stormwater best management
practices and green infrastructure are
source water protection techniques,
Green Cities, Clean Waters aims to
intercept stormwater in green roofs,
hioretention planters in parking lots,
naturalized stormwater basins (see
the photograplh on page XX) [Photo
5], and porous pavement. Intercepted
stormwater is then infiltrated into
the ground, evaporated into the air,
or slowly released back into the
sewer system, The green-infrastruc-
ture approach to stormwater man-
agement increases groundwater
recharge and baseflow and improves
water quality. Raising the water table
is important in ensuring a resilient
drinking water supply during dry
conditions. Infiltrating stormwater
through a vegetated soil profile
removes pollutants before the storm-
water reaches groundwater, thus
improving water quality. The social
and environmental benefits of the
Green Cities, Clean Waters program
are restored environmenial amenities
and expanded green space for city
residents, compared with traditional
stormwater infrastructure that is
implemented underground out of




public view.

Using green stormwater infra-
structure as the central strategy in
stormwater planning and manage-
ment in Philadelphia, PWD is poised
to inform policy and regulations as
well as build'support for stormwater
management upstream. It will also
ptovide upstream communities with
additional tools to meet the obliga-
tions of the more stringent MS4
Phase II National Pollutant Dis-
charge Elimination System permit,
Through watershed partnerships like
the Schuylkill Action Network, the
SWPP will conduct outreach to
upstream communities to promote
the Green City, Clean Waters
approach and welcome partners to
Philadelphia to observe constructed
projects and meet with stormwater
planners and engineers.

EARLY WARNING AND
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION
With drinking water intakes
downstream of highly developed
watersheds, PWD has a multi-tiered
emergency prevention and response
strategy that uses watershed partner-
ships and advanced technology to
provide early warning of source
water events. The SWPP established
the Delaware Valley Early Warning
Systemn (EWS} (Figure 5) to improve
the safety of the drinking water sup-
ply by reduging the communication
time betweejl a spill event and utility
notification. Advance notification
during emergency events allows
drinking water urilities 1o take pre-
cautionary measures that may
include closing intakes, monitoring
water more frequently, deploying
booms, and adjusting operational
procedures. In this private sub-
scriber—based forum, members are
dischargers, intakes, and regulatory
agencies, Events are often reported
to EWS by the members responsible
for or responding to the accidental
discharge. Given the voluntary
reporting of accidents to EWS, PWD
experience as a wastewater and
stormwater utility [ed to the develop-
ment of a strong partnership to build

trust among EWS subscribers.

The EWS geopipThic coverage
area includes the Schuylkill and Del-
aware River watersheds from the
Delaware Water Gap to Wilmington,

is reported, EWS runs the time-of-
travel model, which gives an esti-
mated arrival time of the contami-
nant at all downstream intakes using
real-time streamflow and historically

il

The stormwater policies and green stormwater

infrastructure being demonstrated in the urban

setting of Philadelphia are also relevant to
suburban and rural comrrﬂunities upstream in the

source watersheds.

Del. The subscribers form the EWS
Partnership and include water sup-
pliers, industries, and state and fed-
eral regulatory agencies, As of 2014,
there were more than 300 users rep-
resenting 50 organizations. EWS
provides subscribers with an
advanced communication tool that
includes a notification system, time-
of-travel model, a tidal-spill-model
analysis tool, real-time water qualiry
data, and a central website where
users can access event information,
analysis tools, and data. A subscriber
may report an event by telephone or
through the website. Once an event

high streamflow. Spill simulation is
available in the nontidal and tidal
geographical extent of EWS. To use
this function, a spill location may be
selected on the interactive map, and
real-time streamflow from the US
Geological Survey determines the
travel time to each downstream
intake. Spill simulation may be used
in emergency mode, which notifies
all downstream subscribers of the
results, or planning mode, which is
used to evaluate hypothetical events
for emergency response without
notifying other subscribers.
Although EWS has a number of

FIGURES Early Warning System chart, Delaware Valley, Pa.*

*Notification system, monitoring network, and website and data portat
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in Philade!phia.

advanced technological capabilities,
the EWS Partnership is the most
critical component. System subscrib-
ers reporting an event can easily and
rapidly communicate with down-
streamn water suppliers. Water suppli-
ers in the system receive timely notice
of the event and can use the event-
notificarion and system directory to
contact the reporting group or
nearby water suppliers for more
information or updates. Subscribers
know one another and are empow-
ered to directly communicate during
events that may affect one or more
organizations: Semiannual EWS
steering committee meetings provide

This is an example of green stormwater infrastructure in the combined sewer service area

effects. Only dischargers, intakes,
and regulatory agencies are permit-
ted access to the EWS and member-
ship in the EWS Partnership. The
confidence that emergency respond-
ers, regulators, and dischargers have
in reporting accidents to the system
drives the success of the EWS. Know-
ing that trust and confidence deter-
mine the ultimate success of a notifi-
cation system that relies on voluntary
reporting of accidental discharges
and spills is an insight drawn from
the experience of PWD as an inte-
grated utility.

SOURCE WATER PRGTECTION AND

The overall condition of the upstream system

needs to be considered before applying a one-size-

fits-all approach.

an opportunity for subscribers of the
system to provide feedback on their
experiences and meét one another.
As the only EWS subscriber that is
a drinking water, wastewater, and
stormwater utility, PWD recognizes
that emergencies are inevitable and
that rapid communication and plan-
ning are critical to mitigating adverse
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ONE SHARED WATER

Whether a discharger or an intake,
what unifies water users in the three
examples of Philadelphia source
water protection initiatives is that
regional water supplies are one
shared resource. Source water pro-
tection techniques are able to empha-
size the common interests among

water users and unite the objectives
of the CWA and SDWA. At a sum-
mary level, the CWA aims to reduce
pollutants and pathogens in surface
and groundwater, and the SDWA
aims to reduce pollutants and patho-
gens in treated drinking water. At an
operational level, there are inconsis-
tencies between the policies, such as
those that govern Crypiosporidium,
that provide incentive for utilities to
practice source water protection.
Whether using green stormwater
management or leveraging watershed
partnerships to implement agricul-
tural best management strategies
such as manure storage basins,
source water protection is able to
tailor triple-bottom-line approaches
that meet water quality objectives
and enhance community environ-
mental benefits while minimizing
costs. This flexible, sustainable
approach is most successful when
partnerships are fostered among
organizations that share cne water
(sce the photographs on page XX).

Partnerships play an important
role in all source water protection
initiatives. One of the most signifi-
cant benefits to utilities participating
in watershed partnerships arises dur-
ing an emergency: knowing and
building trust among the people and
organizations that use and regulare
water is critical for open, judgment-
ft;ee conversations that must happen
in order to protect drinking water
supplies from contamination.
Whether or not utilities have an
advanced technological tool such as
the Delaware Valley EWS to facili-
tate emergency communication and
planning, all intakes can reach out to
upstream dischargers and industries
as well as emergency response agen-
cies to express a desire for direct
communication if an accidental dis-
charge or spill occurs.

As populations expand and water-
sheds become more developed, the
need for source water protection will
expand. It is essential that opportu-
nities and incentives for source water
protection continue to exist as a
bridge between the CWA and SDWA.

N e




As regulatory change proceeds to

include water quality concerns of thi

future, the role of source water pro-
tection must always be considered as
a sustainable, flexible alternative
capable of delivering triple-bottom-
line benefits to communtties and
utilities.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC PROPERTY
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET TESTIMONY
APRIL 28, 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT MISSION AND FUNCTION
Mission; To professionally manage the infrastructure supporting City government operations through the acquisition,
disposition, lease, design, construction, renovation and maintenance of City properties.

Description of Major Services: The Department of Public Property (Public Property) is responsible for the acquisition,
disposition, lease, design, construction, renovation and maintenance of City properties. Public Property provides
these services through three divisions: Real Estate, Capital Programs and Facilities Management. Public Property is
also responsible for the negotiation of leases for City-occupied space, as well as managing the space standards for City
owned buildings.

PROPOSED BUDGET HIGHUIGHTS/FUNDING REQUEST

Budget Highlights: The Department of Public Property’s budget includes costs for space rental and utilities and the
SEPTA subsidy. The proposed FY16 General Fund Operating budget is slightly lower than the FY15 Current Projection
mainly due to an estimated $11 million onetime payment related to the sale of Love Park Garage.

FY15 Current FY16 Proposed FY16-FY15 FY16-FY15
Class FY14 Actual Projection Budpget Change Percent Change

200 26,860,977 30,858,919 30,942,633 82,714 0.3%

Other* Total 26,860,977 30,859,519 30,942,633 82,714 0.3%
Positions Q 0 0 0 0.0%

* Other Funds includes: County Liquid Fuels Tax Fund, Special Gasoline Tax Fund, Healthchoices Behavioral Health Fund, Hotel Room
Rental Tax Fund, Grants Revenue Fund, Community Development Fund, Car Rental Tax Fund, Housing Trust Fund, Water Fund, Water
Residual Fund, Aviation Fund, and Acute Care Hospital Assessment Fund.

Staff Demographics Summary {as of December 2014

Minority

Full-Time Staff
Executive Staff
Average Salary - Executive Staff si1497

Median Salary - Executive Staff $113,850 S0 $113,850

51 38
$116,438




Employment Levels (as of December 2014)
Budgeted Filled

Full-Time Positions
Part-Time Positions
Executive Positions

Contracts Summary {as of December 2014

Total amount of contracts 9, R 77 _?'O,'
Total amount to M/W/DBE | $30,216,651 $29,3§S_,?_$8 _ $27,250,883 528!7‘9__5,132
Participation Rate : { 399 62 : ‘ A1
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PERFORMANCE, CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE (OPERATIONS)

Total lease expense decreased by 3.3% between FY14 and FY13 and has continued to decrease during the first half of
FY1S compared to the same time pericd in FY14. The number of square feet managed decreased slightly from FY13 to
FY14 but has decreased to 1.3 million square feet as of the first half of FY15. Public Property is responsible for
overseeing major capital improvements to City owned facilities and has seen a decrease in the number of
substantially completed construction projects from 85 in FY13 to 60 in FY14 due to the complexity of projects
completed. For example, playground renovations typically take less time to complete than major building
construction. The goal is to complete 65 projects in FY15S, and 39 have been completed through the second quarter of
FY1S. In FY14, facilities division work order volume increased by 32.4% and volume for the first half of FY15 increased
by 21.4%. Due to increased workioad and the growing number of vacant positions, the percentage of work requests
completed within service level agreements established with stakeholders has decreased by 5.3% from 90% to 85.3%
between the first halves of FY14 and FY15,

FY15-
FYi4 FY15 FY14 FY15
Q1-Q2 Ql1-Q2 Q1-Q2 Goal

FYi14-
Performance Measure FYos FY13 FYi4 FY13

Change Change

1,354,714 1,441,268 1,426,773

-1.0% 1,440,061 1,309,569 -9.1% 1,309,569 1,309,569

Facilities division work
order volume

N/A 10,060 13,321  32.4% 5,719 6,941 71.4% 13,500 13,300

DEPARTMENT CHALLENGES

« Technical Support and Systems Needs: In conjunction with the Office of Innovation and Technology, the
funding for a city-wide asset management system was approved, and a request for proposal will be out in the
spring that will help DPP track operating, capital and maintenance costs, as well as determine the proper
maintenance tasks required to have a facility properly maintained, and meet its useful life cycle.

¢ Recruitment and Retention: The Department hires many employees for trades and engineering positions,
which are difficult to recruit for as the salaries are not comparable to trade union salaries or other
engineering firms. DPP partnered with the School District to hire students in vocational programs to work in
the DPP and obtain the skills necessary to obtain a trades position with the City after graduation. The pilot
program has been slow moving, but we anticipate better participation in FY16. The Department is working
with the Office of Human Resources to recruit professionals in the engineering field via different mechanisms
such as LinkdIn and hope to obtain candidates in that field.

¢ Maintenance of City-managed property: The average age of the top 100 used city-maintained properties is
over 70 years, which is past the normal life cycle of most facilities. Best practices in the private sector which
are just starting to take root in the public sector, on of which is to set aside a percentage of operating
maintenance funding for each capital project and have that money earmarked throughout the lifetime of the
asset. Because we maintain our aging facilities usually in an emergency scenario, maintenance funding for
newer facilities is lacking. DPP is beginning to combat that issue with a preventive maintenance program. DPP
staff is proactively going to each facility and performing preventive maintenance work that has saved
resources from having to fix emergency issues. One such example is inspecting and maintaining each HVAC
system in advance of the summer season to ensure they will be working as needed. The same preventive
maintenance work was performed on the heating systems before the winter season.

¢ Maintenance of City-owned vacant property; The City of Philadelphia takes property acquired for tax
foreclosure when there is no other bidder, thus leaving the City with an inventory of property that is not
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considered viable for market re-sale. Maintenance of these properties takes a lower priority than
maintenance for City-managed facilities, which actually house City employees, but this lack of maintenance
contributes to blight and opens the City up to public criticism and lawsuits. The Department is hopeful that
the establishment of the Land Bank will see these properties transferred to the Land Bank which should
eventually have the capacity and funding to maintain the properties it cannot sell.

e Space Utilization: The Department is responsible for the negotiation of leases for city-occupied space, as well
as maintaining the space standards for our owned space. The space standards are based on the assumption
that every employee needs a work space, and does not take field employees into account, nor the more
modern concepts of hoteling and reducing individual space, while opening up community space. A
comprehensive space utilization study is necessary to determine current footprint vs. actual space needs.
DPP partnered with the City Planning Commission and the Office of Sustainability, to conduct a space
assessment of the 13" floor of One Parkway, Recommendations were made for more modern space;
unfortunately, the City cannot make a commitment to the construction funding at this time. On a positive
note, space was reconfigured in the Department of L& for its new hires utilizing more modern space
standards and was well received for opening up the work space to allow for collaboration.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS & INITIATIVES

New Police Facilities: The Real Estate division competed for two Base Realignment Closure facilities (BRAC) and won
the title to the two facilities located at Weoedhaven and Wissahickon Avenues from the federal government. The
Wissahickon BRAC was renovated in 2015 and is the new home of the Police Department’s Narcotics unit. The
Woodhaven facility will be the new home for the Police Department’s Training Bureau in the summer of 2015.

Award for Major Capital Projects: The Capital Programs Division completed renovations to facilities fer Fire, Fleet,
Library, Parks and Recreation, Police, and various other departments. Highlights include the construction of the
Sturgis Playground Building, Pleasant Playground Building, and the SWAT/Bomb/Canine facilities. SWAT
/Bomb/Canine received two Project Achievement Awards from the Mid-Atlantic Chapter of the Construction
Management Association of America (CMAA), one for Public Buildings Under $20 million and the other for Sustainable
Construction.

City Hall Renovatians: City Hall is one of the most recognized historical landmarks in Philadelphia and a building DPP
is constantly trying to improve. Working with the Mayor’s Office and City Council, medern digital signage in City Hall
was placed in the four common areas, as well as outside of the Council President and Chief Clerk’s offices. The walls
on floors 1-7 were painted and DPP has partnered with Center City district to place historic pictures and directional
signage on the 7" floor. During FY16, Public Property will begin to replace old ceiling tiles and instail new recessed
lighting. DPP also designed the North Apron of City Hall, where the current old concrete will be replaced, the steps at
the North portal will be resurfaced and a handicap ramp will be constructed. DPP also partnered with Center City
District to design, fabricate and install ornate gates on City Hall by the end of calendar year 2015. The cost estimate
for the portal gates is approximately $1.5 miillion.

City Municipal Buildings: In the FY16 Proposed Capital Budget, $2.7 million in funding is for the continued
improvements of city government buildings such as the Municipal Services Building (M5B}, Criminal Justice Center and
One Parkway Building. These capital improvements include new elevators, window improvements, and exterior
improvements. Currently, a new roof is being placed on the MSB.

City Hall Improvements: $1.1 million of capital funding is proposed in the FY16 Capital Program for exterior
renovations to City Hall to restore City Hall portals, lightwells and tower and core infrastructure improvements.
$300,000 is being requested to maintain City Hall’s recent exterior renovations,

Completion of Facilities Assessment: During FY15, DPP conducted a comprehensive assessment of all 86 public safety
facilities and developed a capital and operaticnal improvement plan for public safety facilities. The facility assessment
will help determine how to better utilize a combination of operating and capital funding to produce more complete
renovations in the City’s public safety facilities.

Decrease the Completion Time and Cost for Capital Projects: Capital projects are classified as major construction,
renovation and demolition projects exceeding $15,000. On average, there are over 250 active projects at any given
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time with a total investment of $50-70 million. Projects procured under the public works requirements generally take
in excess of one year to complete, mostly due to extensive processing constraints. During FY14, Public Property
analyzed improvements to the capital process and reduced professional services timelines by 13 and 47 weeks
{depending on the type and complexity of the project} by implementing multi-professional services requirements
contracts. During FY15, Public Property aims to implement a capital projects Quality Assurance and Quality Controls
{QA/QC) team to establish, evaluate and monitor project schedules and budgets and decrease the number of change
orders.

Public Property also implemented a Job Order Cantracting (JOC) method of performing capital projects in the second
quarter of FY15. JOC is a competitively bid contracting system that utilizes a unit price structure to carry out required
work. Itis used to accomplish a large number of small to medium sized construction works projects quickly and cost
effectively. The Department anticipates that JOC will reduce project implementation time in excess of 30 weeks over
the conventional public works process. The cost of the system is based upon a percentage of the dollar value use;
however, Public Property anticipates that there will be project cost reductions due to reduced design consultant use,
lower project implementation and administrative costs, reduced escalation, and elimination of change orders which
will resuilt in overall project savings. Public Property aims to use Job Order Contracting on 80% of projects. One
successful example of utilizing JOC is an electrical project at the Zoo. The cost to do the wark through the JOC process
was 19% lower than working through the alternative requirements contract process.

Preventative Maintenance: The average age of the top 100 used City-maintained properties is 70 years, which is past
the normal life cycle of a property. Historically, there was little to no preventive maintenance performed on City
facilities, thus requiring expensive capital deferred maintenance projects. Best practices from the private sector are
beginning to take root in the public sector. These practices include setting aside a percentage of operating
maintenance funding for each capital project and earmarking the funds throughout the lifetime of the asset. During
FY14, Public Property conducted an initial inspection and created a preventative maintenance plan for all City facilities
and implemented a balanced maintenance program that includes preventive and reactive maintenance. The program
is still in the beginning stages, but in FY15 with additional funding budgeted, DPP was able to perform preventive
maintenance on all public safety facilities. Throughout the implementation of the Preventive Maintenance plan, many
issues were discovered and addressed before the problem required emergency repair or caused a facility outage.

Configuring Space in City-Owned Buildings: New space requests present Public Property with an opportunity to
reduce the amount of space that is assigned to various City departments by using it more efficiently. Public Property
has identified opportunities for space reduction by designing touchdown space {work area set aside as a place where
employees can work other than the traditional cubicle or office) for field employees in various departments. During
FY14, Public Property completed design pilot for space reconfiguration open floor plan on the 13" fioor of One
Parkway. During FY15, Public Property plans to budget for pilot reconfiguration, construct new space configurations
for the Department of Human Services at the One Parkway Building and design a new Department of Licenses and
Inspections District office in the Northeast utilizing new space standards. Design of new space for the Department of
Licenses and Inspections inspectional staff at the Municipal Services Building has been completed.

Consolidating Leased Space: The Real Estate Division was able to consolidate leased space into City owned property,
thus eliminating many high rent lease payments, totaling $3.5 miliion dollars in annual savings. Leases were
terminated at 1401 Arch Street (August 2010), the Packard Bullding {June 2012), the Frankford Arsenal {Building 110
in December 2012 and Building 102 in December 2014}, 8 Penn Center (June 2012}, Three Parkway (April 2014}, and
345, 11" Street (June 2014).,

Reduce the Number of City-Owned Vacant Properties: The City of Philadelphia takes property acquired for tax
fareclosure when there is no other bidder, thus leaving the City with an inventory of property that is not considered
viable for market re-sale. Maintenance of these properties is conducted after maintenance for City managed facilities.
In conjunction with the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, the Office of Housing and Community Development,
the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation, the Mayor’s Office, City Council and the Office of the Director of
Finance, the following activities were accomplished during FY14: established the inventory of all publicly owned
vacant land, developed a comprehensive disposition policy, began offering land for purchase electronically, created
an urhan garden partnership with the Department of Parks and Recreation, began the process of clearing the backlog
of land conveyances, created a land development policy for land conveyed for nominal consideration, created a
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partnership with CLIP, and established the Land Bank. During FY15, Public Property aims to create a partnership with
the Philadelphia Water Department to establish storm water management projects on vacant lots and convey Public
Property owned land to the Land Bank.
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STAFFING

STAFFING LEVELS

The current staffing levels for FY15 are:

Facilities Management Division

Authorized

Authorized

Filled

98 112
Real Estate Division
Filled

8 g

Capital Projects Division

Authorized

Authorized

Filled

18

General Support Division
Filled

15

= The department hired eighteen employees. The ethnic composition of these new hires is 1 Hispanic or Latino,
9 White (not Hispanic or Latino) and 8 Black or African American (not Hispanic or Latino). Of these eighteen
new employees one is fluent in twao languages, Russian and Ukranian. ’

« The department currently employees 19 bilingual employees (eight of which speak two languages and one of
which speaks 4 languages other than English). Following is a list of languages that the employees in the Public
Property can speak: Arabic, Cantonese, French, German, Gujarati, Hindi, Italian, Japanese, Malayalam,
Mandarin, Portugese, Portugese-Brazilian, Russian, Spanish, Spanish-Castillian, Swedish, Tagalog, and
Ukranian for a total of 18 languages other than English.

Full-Time Staff

Male

African-American

Staff Demographics (as of December 2014}

Female

African-American

Totof Totof

% of Total % af Tatal
Total Total

% aof Total % af Total
Taotol Total

% of Tatol % af Tatal
Total Total

% of Totol % af Tatol

Oth

Total Total

% of Total % of Toetal
Total Totol

% of Tatol % of Totol
Total Totol

% of Total % of Total

Executive Staff

Male

African-American

Female

African-American
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CONTRACTING

M/W/DBE Participation on Large Contracts
FY1S Contracts

% of
Sesvice Amount of . RFPIssue Contract Ranges in M/W/DBE
Provided Cantract Date Start Date Participation
Achieved

$ Value of Total % and $
M/W/BBE Value Participation
Participation -All

Living Wage

Vendaor Compliant?
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OTHER BUDGETARY IMPACTS

FEDERAL AND STATE (WHERE APPLICABLE}
Not applicable.

OTHER
Not applicable.
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OFFICE OF THE CITY COMMISSIONERS
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET TESTIMONY
APRIL 28, 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT MISSION AND FUNCTION
Mission: To conduct fair and accurate elections.

Description of Major Services: The Office of the City Commissioners sets and enforces department policies to
administer voter registration and conduct elections in accordance with federal and state voter registration and
election laws.

PROPOSED BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS/FUNDING REQUEST

Budget Highlights: The total FY16 Proposed Operating Budget maintains the Cffice of the City Commissioners at the
FY15 Current Projection levels.

FY16-FY15
rcent Change

FY15 Currant FY16-FY15

Projection

FY16 Praposed

FY14 Actual

100 38,523

100,000

100,000

0

200 18,592 600,000 600,000 0

Other* 300/400 1,755 200,000 200,000 0
200 0 0 0 G

Total 58,8670 900,000 800,000 9

0

Paositions 0 0 0

A

* Other Funds includes County Liquid Fuels Tax Fund, Special Gasoline Tax Fund, Healthchoices Behavioral Health Fund, Hotel Room Rental Tax Fund,
Grants Revenue Fund, Community Development Fund, Car Rental Tax Fund, Housing Trust Fund, Water Fund, Water Residual Fund, Aviation Fund, and
Acute Caze Hospital Assessment Fund.

Staff Demographics Summary {as of December 2014)
Minority

Full-Time Staff

Executive Staff

Average Salary - Executive Staff L8 $60,4627 |7 §53
Median Salary - Executive Staff 656,746 564,672 554,105

* 2 African American Deputy Commissioners left the department at the end of 2014 and are not
included in these figures ‘



Employment Levels (as of December 2014)

Budgeted
Full-Time Positions =
Part-Time Positions o e 0
Executive Positions S ER e O [

Contracts Summary (*as of December 2014

5,511 $601,635
_ $10,960 $20,405
1% C 3%

Total amount of contracts
Total amount to M/W/DBE
Participation Rate

$326,207
31%.. 7

$260,734
43%-

310,087
1%

$11,500
1%
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PERFORMANCE, CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE {OPERATIONS)

s Approximately 172,000 voter registration applications, changes, and cancellations processed between July 1,
2014 and March 22, 2015

s 41 polling places moved in 2014 General Election (G'14)

s 22 voting machine demanstrations were conducted for G’'14

e 385,783 (37%) voters participated in G'14

s 188 Election Board trainings in G'14 (increase from 150). 5econd half of the fiscal year will have 197 due to
the Special Election

s 8,350 Election Board Officials worked in G'14

e 3,736 voting machines in use

s 1,686 divisions in 848 polling locations

s 7,547 absentee hallots were mailed in G'14

s 3,681 ahsentee ballots were received and counted in G’'14

* 4,476 provisional ballots castin G’'14

s 68 candidates filed nomination petitions in February/March 2015

s 18,532 five-year notices sent out in 2015

DEPARTMENT CHALLENGES

¢ Election Board vacancies
Department response: (S5ee Accomplishments & Initiatives section)

* Decreased reliability of aging voting machines
Department response: Increase the amount of Election Day machine technicians

e  Special Election in the 170" Legislative District
Department response: The election was held on March 24, 2015, The department was simultaneously tasked
with providing support to the Court of Common Pleas regarding nomination petition challenges and
preparing for the 2015 Primary Election. This challenge was overcome by our experienced staff who worked
extended hours to ensure all responsibilities were met.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS & INITIATIVES

DECREASE IN UNEXCUSED ABSENCES: The department has seen a significant decrease in the amount employees who
are late or absent without leave. Prior to 2013, the department did not take steps to mitigate unexcused absences,
teaving the department unable to forecast productivity. In April 2013, after meeting with the laber units which
represent departmental employees and using policies in place in other city departments, the City Commissioners
approved staff regulations to address these issues. The adherence to these regulations has led to a decrease in
unexcused absences, an increase in employee pay, more consistent productivity and has not resuited in the dismissal
of any employees.

Absent Without Leave Late
2012: 32811/16 187 5/16
2013: 1755/16 1031/16
2014: 47 1/16 305/16

{In days for the calendar year specified})

INCREASE IN WEBSITE FUNCTIONALITY / USERS: The department created an interactive website
(www.PhiladelphiaVotes.com} in July 2013. The website enables all members of the public to access election related
data. The department has seen dramatic increases in users as we continue to increase functionality and awareness.
Prior to the 2015 Primary Election, we will launch a new interactive election results section and functionality that will
allow users to enter their addresses to find the Sample Ballot for their division.
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Unique Wehsite Users

Primary 2013 to General 2013: 10,310 Election Day — General Election 2013: 3,327
General 2013 to Primary 2014: 25,472 Election Day — Primary Election 2014: 6,343
Primary 2014 to General 2014: 52,797 Election Day — General Election 2014: 14,324

DECREASE IN MISSING ELECTION DAY MATERIALS: In an effort to decrease the amount of election materials
{machine cartridges & write-in tapes) not returned by election boards, the department revamped training seminars
and provided instruction before Election Day by mail. On Efection Day, the department now communicates with every
division by phone and via in-person visits. We worked with the Police Department which is now taking additional
steps to make sure proper materials are enclosed in the return bags they receive. After Election Day (when needed),
the department communicates with Election Boards by mail and by conducting hearings.

Note: Unreturned machine cartridges rarely contain recorded votes. They are in machines that Election Boards decide
not to use. However, the department cannot reach 100% reporting until all are recovered.

Cartridges Unreturned on Election Night Unreturned Write-in Tapes
2013 (2 elections): 114 120
2014 (2 elections): 51 62

DECREASING MACHINE INSPECTOR VACANCIES: In an effort to decrease the amount of vacancies on Election Boards,
the department took several steps. The first was to make the list of elected and appointed Election Board Workers
public on our website so those interested in filling vacancies would know where each exists. The second was to
increase Election Board Worker pay for attending training from $20 to $30. Lastly, beginning in the 2014 General
Election, we began recruiting, training, and appeinting Machine Inspectors to fill vacancies not filled by Judges of
Election. One hundred fifteen individuals were trained and appointed as Machine Inspectors, of which 85 worked on
Election Day. This led to a reduction from the 2014 Primary of 109 Machine Inspector vacancies. We are taking steps
to further reduce these vacancies for the 2015 Primary Election. Each Machine Inspector receives $125 for training
and working on Election Day. The cost for the additional 109 Machine Inspectors was approximately $13,625.

Machine Inspector Vacancies
Primary 2014: 301
General 2014: 192

CONVENIENT ELECTION BOARD TRAINING SEMINARS: During the 2014 Primary Election, the department held
additional Sunday election board training sessions at our Voter Registration Office. Beginning in the 2014 General
Election, we began holding Sunday election board training sessions at all possible locations. This increased the
number of trainings the department conducts to 188 (from 138).

Election Board Training Seminars
2013 General Election: 138
2014 Primary Election: 150
2014 General Election: 188
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STAFFING

The Office of the City Commissioners current staffing level is 96. The required staffing level in Fiscal Year 2016 is 98.
This is the appropriate staffing level for next year’s elections and as we prepare for the 2016 General Election which
will occur in the first half of Fiscal Year 2017.

New hires;

African American -5
White—5

Hispanic =1

Women —~3

Bilingual — 1

The Department has 6 staff members who speak Spanish and English and 91 who speak only English.

Staff Demographics {as of December 2014)

Full-TIme Staff Executive Staff
Male Female Male Female
African-American African-American African-American African-American
Total A ::_-22*_ i, e 14 BTERRK Total — ” 2 T [ ; s
%of Total Foil 0n 7724 09 0 ORISR R s of Tatal S n 000 s
White White White
Totol 38 A P R 10 Total EE R
%of Totol |+ < 41.8% LT e %of Totol |27 80,0%° 40 F 5 L 0 a00%Eys
Hispanic Hispanic Hispanic Hispanic
Tato! T gl e ' A B 3 Total : S o e HE L
% of Totai R 33% % af Totol
Asian
Total NSkl o DT Totol
% of Total 0,006 % of Total
Other
Total e e e T e BT Total Ra . p .
% af Total S 1A% L 0.0% e BofTotal | .  100% ol L DO
Bi-lingual Bi-lingual Bi-lingual
Total - : Tatal
% of Total % of Total :20,
Fermnale
Tatal Total
% of Total % of Total
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CONTRACTING

M/W/DBE Participation on Large Contracts
FY15 Contracts

Cleaning MBE: 0% %0

AYS voting s10,874 §/25/14 114 | wee
Machine ’ H 100% 510,874 Yes
Warehouse . 50

* Computer. - -
" Supplies

OFFICE OF THE CITY COMMISSIONERS | FY16 BUDGET TESTIMONY | p.6



OTHER BUDGETARY IMPACTS

FEDERAL AND STATE {WHERE APPLICABLE}
During FY16 the Office of the City Commissioners will see a decrease in grant funding from the Help America Vote Act
(HAVA) for certain types of expenses. There are no longer sufficient grant funds for:

e 555,298.86 for Voting system procurement, maintenance, or support
s 533,454.99 for Election Board training stipends

The department will need to find savings in Class 200 to compensate for the $88,753.85 no longer being provided
through HAVA grant funding.

OTHER
Not applicable.
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SHERIFF'S OFFICE
FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET TESTIMONY
APRIL 21, 2015

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT MISSION AND FUNCTION
Mission: To serve and protect the lives, property, and rights of all those in the City and County of Philadelphia.

Description of Major Services: The Sherifi’s Office is responsible for providing safety to all that enter Philadelphia
courtrooms, including, judges, juries, defendants, witnesses, courtroom personnel and the public. Each day the
Sheriff’s Office also transports up to five hundred prisoners to and from courts and area prisons. The Sheriff’'s Office is
also responsible for managing all First Judicial Court ordered foreclosures of property - that includes mortgage and tax
sales - in an ethical, honest, transparent and respectful manner while offering dignity to all involved in the procedure.
The Sheriff's Office also carries out orders of the Court including protection from abuse, confiscation of property, and
evictions.

PROPOSED BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS/FUNDING REQUEST

Budget Highlights: The Sheriff's Office FY15 General Fund Current Projection is approximately 22% higher than FY08
funding levels. The total FY16 Proposed Budget reduces the Sheriff’s Office by approximately 2%, primarily due to one
time spending needs in FY15.

FY15 Current £Y16 Proposed FY16-FY15 FY16-FY15
FY14 Actual Projection Budget Change Percent Change




PERFORMANCE, CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE (OPERATIONS}

See Accomplishments and Initiatives below.

DEPARTMENT CHALLENGES

See Accomplishments and Initiatives below

ACCOMPLISHMENTS & INITIATIVES

We have installed a data management system; we have gone to electronic deed filing; and we have updated our
cash management policies. As a result this fiscal year we will provide the city over $60 million in delinguent taxes
and fees. This is over 100% more than was provided to the City when we assumed took office.

For years people who lost their homes in Sheriff's Sales were never given any excess money owed them. in
calendar year 2014 we found and paid out $1.7 miilion owed to Philadelphians who had lost their homes for back
taxes or foreclosure. We are on track to equal that in 2015. If so; during my term as Sheriff, we will have returned
$S million to people who need it the most.

This year 10,500 new properties were placed in Sheriff Sales. Some seventy percent are eventually sold. When we
took office, it took six months or more for purchasers to get a deed for their property. Today it is done within
forty days of the sale.

This year we transported 125,000 prisoners to and from prisans to courts without serious incident.

We protect 149 court rooms, twenty more than we did three years ago. We established a three dog K9 unit and a
twelve member bicycle unit. These units protect the parameter of Court facilities, particularly from witness
intimidation.

We are now able to station mare Deputies in City Hall, particularly City Council meetings and hearings.

In the last two and a half years we have put efficiency and integrity back in the Sheriff’s Office.

With the support of the Nutter Administration we have been allowed to hire eighty-eight {88) new deputies since
February 2013.We appreciate their support, but the FY 2016 Sheriff's Office budget they have sent to City Council
does not recognize two new realities.

At the request of the Nutter Administration and the First Judicial District, the Sheriff's Office took responsibility
for the First Judicial District’s forty eight {(48) member Warrant Unit. These people serve warrants for offenses
such as failure to appear in court. They are un- trained, and do not have State certification. At times they have
exceeded their limited authority. Until they are trained and State certified, certified Sheriff's Deputies must
supervise and accompany them. This increases the cost of overtime and takes Deputies away from their tasks in
the Courts. Today overtime for securing courts, transporting prisoners and supervising the Warrant Unit costs
$300,000 to $400,000 a month; $100,000 of this is attributed to our work with the Warrant Unit. Taking over the
Warrant Unit increased the need for additional deputies.

~ o In addition, each year Sheriff's Deputies must serve over three thousand warrants of a more serious nature,

These fugitive warrants include protection from abuse, child support, child abuse and domestic violence.
Because we lack the Deputies, there is a back log in our service of these warrants. In addition to supervising
the First Judicial Unit, we will need more deputies to provide service.
o The budget for the Warrant Unit remains with the First ludicial District. As you know you can’t administer
something unless you control its budget.
o We are asking for thirty two additional Deputies and transfer of the Warrant Unit Budget to the Sheriff’s
Office. Additional Deputies would cost $1,120,000 a year plus $65,000 to equip them.
We have been able to double the amount of money provided the City because a Court order requires the Sheriff
to hire sufficient numbers of clerical personnel to prepare and run the Tax and Foreclosure sales. Because the
Administration controls the city hiring process, we hire these people through personal service contracts.
Like the new data processing system, the contract employees are paid by the Cost Recovery money authorized by
state law. These people are responsible for doubling the amount of money the City receives and decreasing the
time it takes for buyers to obtain a deed and return a property to productive use. Yet they earn 515 to 525 an
hour and do not receive the benefits of a City employee. They work next to City employees. This is unfair. We are
asking the City provide clerical positions for them in the FY 2016 budget. The money we now use to pay them will
be transferred to the City to help defray the costs. Twenty clericals would cost $700,000 plus benefits.
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* The dedicated men and women of the Sheriff's Office have accomplished a great deal. But this would not have
been dane without City Council’s support. Thank you for your consideration.
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STAFFING

Staff Demographics {as of December 2014}

Full-Time Staff Executive Staff
Male Female Male Female
African-American African-American African-American African-American
Total — e d Total — — —_— —
% of Tatol % of Total
Total Tatal
% of Total % of Total
Totol Tatal
% af Total % gf Tato!
Total Total
% of Total % of Totol
Total Total
% of Toto! : i = % of Totol & :
Bl-lingual Bi-lingual Bi-lingual
Total i [ Totol
3% of Total 0.0%; % of Totol
Fermnale
Total F55 Totol
% of Total 5 3% % of Total
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CONTRACTING

Vendor

Service Provided

M/W/DBE Participation on Large Contracts

Amount of
Contract

RFP
55ue
Date

Contract
Start Date

FY15 Contracts

Ranges
inRFP

% of
M/W/DBE
Participation
Achieved

$ value of
M/W/DBE
Participation

Total % and §
Value
Participation
- Al DSBEs

Living
Wage
Compliant

Isdanor

$150,000

3/15/13

50

40%

$60,000

Cardines-
Grant

Advertising

$900,000

$900,000

WBE; 0% S0 100% NfA
DSBE 0% 50 $900,000 N/A
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OTHER BUDGETARY IMPACTS

FEDERAL AND STATE {WHERE APPLICABLE}

The Sheriff's Office does not receive Federal of State funds.

However we are intent on training our Deputies and Sheriff's Warrant Officer at the Philadelphia Police Academy
instead of at Penn State University in Happy Valley. This nineteen (19) week program is paid through state fees which
we collect from warrant service. Training in Philadelphia would be mare convenient for our peaple, especially women
Deputies and Warrant Officers., and would reduce the cost of training since room, board, and travel would be
eliminated.

OTHER
See Accomplishments and Initiates above.
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OTHER RELEVANT DATA AND CHARTS

See attached.
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